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TRANSBOUNDARY

COOPERATION

Sovereign states discuss and coordinate their
actions to meet the varied and sometimes

DRINKING
WATER AND HUMAN
WELL-BEING

Populations have access to safe, sufficient
and affordable water to meet basic
needs for drinking, sanitation
and hygiene, to safeguard
health and well-being,
and to fulfil basic

human
FLonovic rights. ECOSYSTEMS
ACTIVITIES AND Ecosystems are preserved
DEVELOPMENT and can deliver their services, on
Adequate water supplies are which both nature and people
available for food and energy rely, including the provision
production, industry, of freshwater.

transport and tourism.

WATER-RELATED
HAZARDS AND
CLIMATE CHANGE

Populations are resilient to water-related
hazards including floods, droughts
and pollution.

The negative effects of

conflicts are avoided,
including reduced water
quality and/or quantity,
compromised water infrastructure,
human resources, related governance,
and social or political systems.

PEACE AND
POLITICAL STABILITY

competing interests for
mutual benefit.
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STATEMENT BY THE
MINISTER OF HUMAN
SETTLEMENTS, WATER
AND SANITATION

L N Sisulu, MP
Minister of Human Settlements,
Water and Sanitation

The Department of Water and Sanitation is central
to the economic development and social well-being
of the country as its mandate is to provide sufficient,
reliable, clean water 365 days a year to support socio-
economic growth. The portfolio | am privileged to lead
is responsible for ensuring that all people in South Africa
are water secure. That means that through the Water
Authorities they must have an accessible, affordable and
reliable supply of enough safe drinking water as well as
sanitation provision that sustains health and a dignified
life, and supports their livelihoods and protects their
environment.

It is often stated that South Africa is a water-scarce
country. While that is undoubtedly true, one should also
note that water security, which is our over-arching goal,
is a function of not only hydrology and climate, but also
of the capacity to provide secure and sustainable access,
protect against waterborne disease and water-related
disasters, and preserve ecosystems. This can only be
achieved through financial and institutional stability.

To maintain water security in the face of South Africa’s
variable and unpredictable climate and aggravated by
climate change we must strengthen the State’s long-
term planning capabilities. The Trans-Caledon Tunnel
Authority (TCTA) is an essential institution in our strategy
towards an equitable and water-secure future. The TCTA's
financing and implementation of bulk water infrastructure
projects including the financing of infrastructure in
Lesotho, has enabled the Department of Water and
Sanitation to maintain a positive water balance in the Vaal
River System on which the socio-economic well-being of
at least 15 million people depends. | expect the TCTA
to continue on this path and to undertake infrastructure
development necessary to supply urban and industrial
activity.
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The recently launched National Water and Sanitation
Master Plan will drive our agendas in the coming decade;
at its core is the alignment of sector institutions and the
functions they perform. An integrated approach to water
resource development and management is important
to maintain a balanced approach in which the vital role
of infrastructure to manage variability and uncertainty is
recognised and balanced with the goals of environmental
protection and conservation.

As the shareholder representative, we will continue to
supportthe TCTA in all of its endeavors and acknowledge
the on-going work of the Board and Management in

ensuring that strict governance prescripts are adhered to
at all times in the delivery of its mandate.

L N Sisulu, MP
Minister of Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation




FOREWORD BY
THE CHAIRPERSON
OF THE BOARD

Gerald Dumas
Chairperson of the Board

The term of this Board commenced on 1st May 2019, one
month after the 2018/19 financial year had ended. On
behalf of the new Board, | wish to thank the Minister for
entrusting us with the responsibility of leading TCTA into
a challenging time for the water sector.

Water is the ultimate catalyst for economic development
andphysicalwellbeing; thisis auniversal truth everywhere.
Hence, should we fail in respect of water security, and
providing access to all citizens, we will also fail to reach
the targets of increasing GDP per person and reducing
inequality, as set out in the National Development Plan.
We are mindful of our responsibilities in this regard.

The recently launched National Water and Sanitation
Master Plan does not reflect well on the water and
sanitation sector of South Africa. Water security is not
being achieved for many citizens, and the situation
continues to deteriorate. The fiscus is particularly
constrained, and a widespread culture of non-payment
for services is making it difficult to raise funding for off-
budget projects. The governance of state-owned entities
is rightly in the spotlight, following several high-profile
failures, which creates a tough environment for raising
project funding. It is heartening to see TCTA being an
exception to this norm, having secured Ré.5 billion in
commercial loans during the year under review.

Since the Board assumes ultimate responsibility for the
performance and affairs of TCTA, it is incumbent upon
us to ensure that the organisation is fit for purpose and
that an environment is created in which it can operate
efficiently and effectively as primarily an implementing
agent for the Department of Water and Sanitation. In
this vein, we are aware that the project implementation
environment has changed considerably over the
past two decades; today, project feasibility needs to
encompass regulatory, environmental, social, financial

and engineering considerations in equal measure, in
order to proceed with implementation.

During the reporting period the Board moved decisively
to improve governance stability in the organisation,
by appointing a permanent Chief Executive Officer, a
permanent Company Secretary and a Chief Internal
Auditor.  Similarly, the Minister ensured governance
continuity in the appointment of the new Board, through
a smooth handover and the retention of two members,
along with the return of one earlier member.

The Board has noted the non-achievement on 57% of
predetermined objectives for 2018/19. It is our analysis
that this shortfall is largely attributable to the organisation
committing itself to deliverables prematurely before
the Department of Water and Sanitation has created
the necessary conditions for the projects to proceed.
Consequently, the Board has decided to henceforth take
a stricter view of what will be included as predetermined
objectives; only projects where all the preconditions for
implementation have been met, will be included.

Going forward, TCTA will pursue a more proactive,
collaborative and holistic approach to project planning,
with the aim of a more efficient project pipeline. In
particular, the Department will be engaged to identify
and resolve project challenges at an early stage, before
feasibility studies have been finalised. It has been the
experience of TCTA that unless environmental, social
and financial issues could be resolved during feasibility
assessments, along with the engineering issues, that
projects may be launched prematurely, and incur
considerable cost, without any meaningful progress
being made in implementation.

In its current institutional form, TCTA remains dependent
upon the Department of Water and Sanitation for
directives for new capital projects, and on the revenue
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stream collected by the Water Trading Entity in the
Department. Increasingly, TCTA also relies on fiscal
funding made available by National Treasury to the
Department for infrastructure and pre-implementation
work that cannot be funded through commercially raised
funding. We hope that long-anticipated institutional
alignment, and a financial turnaround of the sector, will
help to alleviate this dependency.

The financial year of 2018/19 resulted in our first
qualified opinion since our establishment in 1986. It is
the Board's considered view that the reasons provided
by the Auditor-General for his qualified audit opinion do
not indicate a deterioration in TCTA's credit profile nor
a reflection of TCTAs ability to fulfil any of its financial
obligations, which is strengthened by the improvement
in the backlog of payment of invoices by DWS. As such,
TCTA can meet its financial obligations to lenders, with
government support through explicit guarantees on the
Vaal River System, and government commitment to step-
in and fulfil TCTA's obligations if it is unable to do so on
other projects.

The Board wishes to assure the Minister that TCTA
remains strong from a governance, financial and
operational perspective, and is ready to fulfil whatever
future role is envisaged.

The Board wishes to thank the previous Board and
recognise the considerable efforts of the Executive
Management and staff of TCTA in what was a difficult
year.

Gerald Dumas
Chairperson of the Board




STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND
CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY OF THE
INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm the following:

all information and amounts disclosed in the Integrated Annual Report are consistent with the annual financial
statements audited by the Auditor-General of South Africa.;

the Integrated Annual Report is complete, accurate and free from any omissions;

the Integrated Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on annual reports as issued
by National Treasury and incorporates elements of the “"G4 Sustainability Report Guidelines” issued by the Global
Reporting initiative;

the Annual Financial Statements (Part G) have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards;

the Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and the judgments
made;

the Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control, which has
been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information,
the human resources information and the annual financial statements, and

external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

In our opinion, the Integrated Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, performance information, human resources

information and financial affairs of the entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2019.

The Board approved the Annual Performance Report on 30 May 2019 and the annual financial statements on
11 December 2019.

- By
Gerald Dumas Percy Sechemane
Chairperson of the Board Chief Executive Officer

Date: 31 January 2020 Date: 31 January 2020
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ABOUT THE INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT

The Trans-Caledon Tunnel Authority presents this Integrated Annual Report for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019
as our principal medium of communication to our stakeholders on this continuing journey to create sustainable value for
water users.

The primary purpose of the Integrated Annual Report is to give assurance to:

+ the Shareholder, represented by the Minister of Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation and overseen by the
Parliamentary Portfolio Committee on Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation, that TCTA is performing its
functions in accordance with the Notice of Establishment and directives; and

+ the lenders and investors, to indicate that the proceeds of funding are used in accordance with the purpose for
which they are provided and that TCTA can meet its financial obligations.

In the short- to medium-term TCTA adds value by raising funds for projects, ensuring that infrastructure delivers water
when required by users, is built within budget and to specification. In that frame, TCTA also ensures that all the aspects
relating to the implementation of projects, particularly the environmental and social dimensions, are satisfactorily
addressed. Over the long-term, the organisation ensures that debt is managed in such a manner that it is affordable
and sustainable as well as within regulatory requirements.

The deliverables, inherent in current project directives, as well as flowing from the Notice of Establishment are reviewed
every year. This exercise results in a Shareholder’s Compact between the Minister and the Board of TCTA, which maps
out the predetermined objectives for the financial year. TCTA is required to report against these objectives in the
Annual Performance Report (refer to Part B). The Shareholder's Compact and the subsequent Corporate Plan are drawn
up in accordance with Treasury Regulations for Departments, Constitutional Institutions and Public Entities.

All TCTA projects are implemented on behalf of the Department of Water and Sanitation; this information on project
progress and the outstanding liability are consolidated in the Department’s Annual Report
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S REPORT

P Sechemane
Chief Executive Officer

The financial year of 2018/19 has been a challenging one
for TCTA. Various financial, regulatory and extraneous
hurdles impacted the momentum of TCTA's project
implementation programme. And yet, | am confident
that much of what has challenged us, has also left us
stronger, more alert, and better prepared for the years
to come.

| was appointed to the CEO position on 22 October
2018, some five months before the end of this reporting
period. | want to thank Professor Ola Busari, from whom
| took over, for the diligent manner in which he filled
the position. | also want to thank my executive team
for their comprehensive briefing and orientation, which
expedited my understanding of the business of TCTA,
and the organisation.

| can reflect on a few highlights from 2018/19. Despite
a challenging economic climate TCTA managed to
secure R6.5 billion in loans from commercial banks, at
favourable rates, to redeem the WS05 bond in August
2018. This reaffirms the on-going good standing of TCTA
with lenders.

In February 2019, TCTA received a new directive to
fund and implement components of the R23 billion
uMkhomazi Water Project, to further augment the Mooi-
Mgeni System. This exciting new project includes an 81m
high dam on the uMkhomazi River, and a conveyance
system comprising a tunnel of 32.5 km and a pipeline
of 5.2km. We are pleased with the enduring trust being
placed in our ability to execute very large, off-budget
infrastructure projects.

Good progress was made in building human capital;
several long-standing grievances were resolved, and we
have made strides towards a more united organisation.
TCTA remains capable of attracting a talented workforce.

In our operation and maintenance portfolio, which TCTA
manages on behalf of DWS, the Delivery Tunnel North of
the Lesotho Highlands Water Project, as well as the AMD
treatment plants on the Western, Central and Eastern
Basins of the Witwatersrand, we have seen good results.
Discharged water consistently complied with DWS
water quality specifications, and there was no decant
of untreated acid mine drainage in the Western Basin.
The water level in the Eastern Basin is already below the
environmental critical level, while progress continues
in the Central Basin towards the environmental critical
level; despite a slower than expected draw-down rate,
there has been no external impact.

In respect of TCTAs key project implementation
responsibilities, TCTA confronted several challenges
during the year. Prevailing economic conditions and
the financial constraints experienced by the DWS and
the fiscus, impacted on TCTA's progress in project
implementation. The cumulative effect of multiple delays
in fiscal transfers and borrowing limit approvals, is that
TCTA achieved only 9% of the capital expenditure it had
planned for 2018/19.

On Phase 2A of the Mokolo-Crocodile Water
Augmentation Project (MCWAP), mainly supporting
strategic power generation in the Waterberg area,
progress is being held up by an environmental appeal,
currently with the Department of Environment, Forestry
and Fisheries for adjudication, as well as the signing of
Water Supply Agreements by DWS with commercial off-
takers, and an Implementation Agreement with TCTA.
Once resolved, it will enable commercial funding to be
sourced. Timing is critical, as the water supply for power
generation and Eskom’s compliance with World Bank
loan conditions are at risk.
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Gaining traction on the project to implement the
Berg River-Voelvlei Augmentation Scheme, intended
to enhance the security of supply to the City of Cape
Town and surrounding areas, has been problematic. Two
critical paths are at play: Critical project preparation work
in the immediate timeframe is being held up by lack of
a budget allocation in the 2019/20 financial year and in
the concluding of water supply agreements between
DWS and water users, which will enable the granting
of a borrowing limit and the subsequent raising of
commercial funding.

Our directive to implement a desalination capacity on
the Acid Mine Drainage Project in the Witwatersrand
has stalled, following a withdrawal of the guarantee and
funding model by the Minister of Finance, and a further
investigation by DWS into the impact of the released
effluent on the saline load at the Vaal Barrage. A request
for the suspension of the directive has been made by
TCTA.

While we approach completion of the fiscal-funded
Olifants Phase 2C project, delays in the release of funding
to settle contractor claims, as determined through
arbitration, need to be resolved urgently, in order to
avoid possible litigation. Elsewhere, the absence of
funding for the Mzimvubu Water Project is holding up
the project, and progress has been constrained.

Scope exists for TCTA's positioning with regards to
project planning and development to be enhanced
by implementing a collaborative arrangement with
the DWS, to involve TCTA more meaningfully at early
stages of project planning. Current arrangements lead
to potential for delays, and ultimately increased project
costs. TCTAis pursuing dialogue in this regard with DWS.

In our debt management portfolio, the dependence of
TCTA on DWS was illustrated when outstanding tariff-
related debt climbed to R2.6 billion early in 2018/19,
creating some concern. | am however pleased to
report that constructive engagement with our parent
organisation has yielded positive results, and the debtor
balance levels have since been restored to normal levels.
Consequently, | can report that the debt portfolio is being
managed very well; all commitments are being met,

and liquidity is sufficient. There are however emerging
concerns that the earlier delays in tariff-based transfers
from DWS, the slow approvals of borrowing limits and
granting of guarantees, and the delayed finalisation of
audit outcomes will lead to closer scrutiny by funders.

In our project finance portfolio, the raising of funds for
Phase Il of the Lesotho Highlands Water Project, as part
of the Vaal River System, looms large. This will require
the expeditious issuing of government guarantees to
support a JSE bond issue early in 2021.

The financial year of 2018/19 resulted in a qualified
opinion, ending our run since inception, of 32 unqualified
annual financial statements. We fully comprehend the
three findings that resulted in the qualification, and
steps are being taken to avoid a recurrence. We have
put controls in place, to prevent the errors in audit
submissions that resulted in two of the findings.

A workshop will be held to determine the correct
accounting treatment of payments made to the Lesotho
Highlands Development Agency. We are also engaging
with our lenders in complete transparency to provide the
necessary reassurance.

Despite a challenging year, TCTA staff and management
take heart and encouragement from important lessons
learned and remain proud of the critical role we continue
to play in the water sector. As an organisation, we will
continue to explore opportunities to do more and to do
it better, and so enhance our value proposition to the
sector. We aim to continue building our track record of
infrastructure project delivery and always be mindful of its
impact communities and the environment. We anticipate
a future of great strides forward, towards a sector with
much improved institutional alignment. We are ready to
play our part in the turn-around of the sector.

P Sechemane
Chief Executive Officer
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FINANCIAL GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
FOR THE LESOTHO HIGHLANDS WATER

PROJECT

To understand the Governance Framework of the Lesotho

Highlands Water Project it is necessary to understand:

* the history between South Africa and Lesotho and

* the drivers behind the development of water
resource management infrastructure in Southern
Africa.

These two factors largely influenced the development
of the international agreements between Lesotho and
South Africa, which govern the cross-border aspects of
the Lesotho Highlands Water Project (LHWP).

With regards history, in the 1800s the British in the Cape
Colony and the Orange Free State fought several wars,
which resulted in the Basotho ceding land. In 1866, in
order to prevent further incursions, King Moshoeshoe
petitioned Britain to become a protectorate. This was
formalised in 1869 when the British signed a treaty at
Aliwal North with the Boers that defined the boundaries
of the Protectorate of Basutoland. This treaty effectively

Figure 1: Strategic Water Source Areas
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reduced King Moshoeshoe's kingdom to half its
previous size by ceding away the western territories of
Basutoland. In 1966 Basutoland gained independence
as the Kingdom of Lesotho but is fairly unique in being
an enclaved country i.e. totally surrounded by South
Africa. The only other enclaved countries in the world are
the Republic of San Marino and the Vatican City, both
enclaved within Italy. For a significant part of its history
Lesotho was a source of migrant labour to South Africa
as there were few development opportunities within the
country. This history has resulted in a proud people who
value their sovereignty and independence.

In South Africa the development in the interior was
shaped by the location of minerals, rather than the
location of water resources, which are extremely limited
in extent, with ten per cent of South Africa’s land area
producing 50% of the surface water runoff. (see Figure 1).
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The most pertinent example of minerals driving
development in the absence of water resources is the
development of towns along the watershed to exploit
the Witwatersrand Goldfields.  Since lack of water
was restricting the ability to exploit the goldfields the
solution was to bring the water from the Vaal River to the
goldfields through the creation of Rand Water in 1903.
This was followed by the building of the Vaal Dam in the
1930s, and when the demand exceeded the yield from
the Vaal River, bringing water in from other catchments
such as the Tugela River as shown in Figure 2. Eventually,
the Government looked to the Orange River catchment
to augment the supplies in the Vaal River and was faced
with two options:
1. To take the water from the Orange River in the
vicinity of Gariep Dam and pump it to the Vaal
River; or

Figure 2: Integrated Vaal River System
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generate electricity as it could do under Option 2.
Option 2was, therefore, the logical choice for South Africa
and the LHWP was conceived as part of the Integrated
Vaal River System. This choice has been further validated
in the current power crisis in South Africa as the electricity
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the water and provide power to Lesotho.
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The project is unique in the world in that water
infrastructure in Lesotho is mostly for the benefit of
consumers in South Africa, who would be responsible for
paying, and Lesotho has retained full ownership of it.

Since South Africa wished to ensure that it was receiving

value for money for the infrastructure that it was paying

for, a compromise needed to be reached which satisfied

both parties. This expression of satisfaction resulted in:

1) The Treaty on the Lesotho Highlands Water Project
signed on 24 October 1986; and

2) The Agreement on Phase Il of the Lesotho Highlands
Water project signed on 11 August 2011.

As the Lesotho Highlands Water Project, as shown in
Figure 3, involves the development of a resource on the
Orange River catchment, which is shared by Botswana,
Lesotho, Namibia and South Africa, the principles set out

Figure 3: Lesotho Highlands Water Project
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This is a service provided by Lesotho, in Lesotho,
for South Africa and, therefore, Lesotho legislation
is applicable unless amended by the Treaty or the
Agreement. An example of such a modification is that
VAT will not be charged by Lesotho, on the construction
of works in Lesotho.

The Department of Water and Sanitation (representing
the Government of South Africa), utilises TCTA, in terms
of Section 24 (a) of the Notice of Establishment, “to
fulfil all the Republic’s financial obligations in terms of
or resulting from the Treaty”. These obligations are as
follows:

* the costs incurred by the Lesotho Highlands
Development Authority on the implementation and
operation and maintenance of the water transfer
portion of the LHWP in Lesotho

« the monthly royalty payments to Government of
Lesotho — This is calculated on Lesotho’s share of
the net benefit as Lesotho also benefits from the
generation of hydropower

+ the operating costs of the Lesotho Highlands Water
Commission (Republic of South Africa Delegation
portion)

Payments are in terms of the 1986 Treaty and 2011
Phase Il Agreement. In terms of Article 10 of the
Treaty, South Africa is responsible for costs wholly and
reasonably incurred on the implementation, operation
and maintenance of the water transfer component of the
LHWP. These cost related payments have taken the form
of:
«  Payments to LHDA for costs incurred (Since 2005)
¢ Repayment of loans raised by LHDA (Phase 1)
*  These options do not give RSA the right of access
to LHDA's contracts with and invoices from its
suppliers. This arrangement is no different from the
purchase of power from Eskom, which does not give
a customer the right of access to Eskom'’s contracts
with and invoices from its suppliers.
In a monopoly situation, where the possibility of abuse
of power as a dominant supplier can exist, it is standard
practice to regulate. In the case of electricity provision
in South Africa this is undertaken by the National Energy
Regulator of South Africa whilst in the case of the LHWP
this is undertaken by the Lesotho Highlands Water
Commission (LHWC) This was first established in the 1986
Treaty as the Joint Permanent Technical Commission
(Article 9) and renamed as the LHWC in Article 2 of
Protocol VI signed on 4 June 1999.

The LHWC comprises two delegations both representing
their respective Governments. The RSA delegation
reports to the Director-General of the Department of
Water and Sanitation, while the Lesotho delegation
reports to the Principal Secretary in the Ministry of Water.
All decisions of the LHWC require the agreement of both
delegations (Paragraph 3: Article 9 of the Treaty)

In terms of Article 5 of Protocol VI, the LHWC “shall be
responsible and accountable for the project, shall act
on behalf of and advise the governments and be the
channel of all government inputs relating to the project”.

As such the following is subject to LHWC approval:

*  Appointment of the Board of the LHDA (Article 3 of
Protocol VI);

«  All expenditure (Budgets, Contracts, Loans);

+ Cost Related Payments (Article 10 of the Treaty) — to
ensure that costs are reasonably incurred;

* Annual cost allocation report; and

* Annual cost to funding report (which is subject to
independent review).

The LHWC also has oversight of the Board of the LHDA.
This is in contrast to the position in South Africa where
the Board of TCTA is appointed by the Minister of Human
Settlements, Water and Sanitation.




Figure 4: Financial Governance Framework for Lesotho Highlands Water Project
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LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

The legislative framework for the water sector, within which TCTA operates, is set out in Figure 5.

Figure 5: Legislative Framework
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The Trans-Caledon Tunnel Authority (TCTA) was
established in 1986, by Notice 2631 in Government
Gazette No. 10545, dated 12 December 1986, to finance
and build the Delivery Tunnel North of the Lesotho
Highlands Water Project (LHWP). In 1994, a directive
was received to fulfil the financial obligations of the
Government of South Africa, in terms of the Treaty on the
Lesotho Highlands Water Project, on the water transfer
component in Lesotho.

On 24 March 2000, the Notice of Establishment was
amended by Notice 277 in Government Gazette
No. 21017, to include the 1994 directive and to allow for
the Minister, in terms of Section 24(d) of the notice, to
issue directives to TCTA in terms of Section 103(2) of the
National Water Act (Act No. 36 of 1998).

In accordance with Section 3 of the Notice of
Establishment, TCTA is set up to:

* implement, operate and maintain that part of
Phase 1 of the LHWP, situated in the Republic of
South Africa, in accordance with the provisions of
the Treaty; and

» perform the functions set out in Clauses 24(a) and
(b) and any other additional functions which the
Authority may be required to perform in terms of a
directive by the Minister under Section 103(2) of the
National Water Act.

In doing so, the Minister must be satisfied that such
directives will not prejudice the capacity of TCTA to
perform the functions for which it was established. The
National Water Act allows the Minister to direct a body,
established under Section 102 of the Act, to perform
additional functions which may include, but are not
limited to, providing water management institutions,
both within the borders and external to the Republic,
with:

* management services (project implementation);

+ financial services (structuring and raising project
finance, debt management and advising on tariff
setting);

e training; and

» other support services.

The above provision makes it clear that TCTA cannot
undertake any function outside of its Notice of
Establishment without the permission of the Minister,
unlike the Water Boards, which are given such
opportunity in terms of Section 30 of the Water Services
Act (Act No. 108 of 1997).

The National Water Act requires that TCTA manages its
different functions separately. This is further emphasised
in the Notice of Establishment for TCTA, which states, in
Section 20(1), that TCTA must manage its Treaty functions
separately from its non-Treaty functions and account
for them separately, as required by Section 105(1) of
the National Water Act. The Treaty functions in terms
of Section 8A of Protocol 6 of the Treaty are limited to
the operations and maintenance of the Delivery Tunnel
North within South Africa.

Section 20(2) furthermore states that the Authority's
Treaty responsibilities are not applicable to its non-Treaty
functions.

The bulk of TCTAs work now comprises non-Treaty
functions. How TCTA accounts for this depends on the
nature of the function assigned to the organisation in
terms of Section 103(2) of the National Water Act. The
impact of these provisions on TCTA is that, regarding the
LHWP mandate and each directive, there is a separate:

*  borrowing authority from the Minister of Human
Settlements, Water and Sanitation with the
concurrence of the Minister of Finance, government
guarantees and funding arrangements;

e general ledger; and

* where money is borrowed to finance a project,
separate income/implementation agreements with
DWS, which are back-to-back with the water supply
agreements between DWS and the off-takers.

The income/implementation agreements with DWS
determine how costs may be charged on each project.
To date, the following four principles have been applied:

* astructure per project is applied to ensure break-
even of revenue with regard to costs over the
debt repayment period. Key principles applied in
determining an appropriate tariff structure for a
project include end-user affordability, predictability
and sustainability;

+ the revenue is only used to recover costs related to
each project, namely capital costs, funding costs
and administration costs; and

* management of liquidity and funding risks.

Since its original mandate (the Notice of Establishment),
TCTA has received a further 19 directives. The mandate
and directives, as of 31 March 2019 are shown in Table 1.
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Table 1: Mandate and Directives

Mandate / Directive Type of work

Lesotho Highlands Water Project (LHWP): Delivery Tunnel 12 December 1986 J 4
North (Treaty obligations)
Vaal River System (VRS): To fulfil all the Republic’s financial 3 August 1994 (and J J
obligations in terms of or resulting from the Treaty (non- incorporated into
Treaty functions) on the Lesotho Highlands Water Project amended Notice of
and any other obligations on the Vaal River System (e.g. Acid  Establishment, 24 March
Mine Drainage Project). 2000)
Umgeni Water 4 July 2001 J
Advisory Services to Water Management Institutions, Water 17 May 2004 J
Boards and DWA
Berg Water Project (BWP) 6 May 2002 J J*
Vaal River Eastern Subsystem Project (VRESAP) 6 October 2004 J | JF
Mooi-Mgeni Transfer Scheme — Phase 2 (MMTS-2) 29 November 2007 J J*
Olifants River Water Resources Development Project — Phase 17 June 2008 J I
2C (ORWRDP-2C) (directive revised

12 March 2012)
Komati Water Scheme Augmentation Project (KWSAP) 29 September 2008 J Y J*
Mofolo-Crocodile Water Augmentation Project — Phase 1 19 May 2010 J | JF
and Phase 2A (MCWAP-1; MCWAP-2A)
Metsi Bophelo Borehole Project 2 March 2011 J
Acid Mine Drainage — Short-term Intervention (AMD-ST) 6 April 2011 J1 4 |
Phase 1 of the Mooi-Mgeni Transfer Scheme — Phase 1 29 November 2011 J
Strategic Integrated Project 3 (SIP-3) 10 November 2012 J
uMzimvubu Water Project (MWP) 10 February 2014 J 4

(latest revision revised

19 January 2019)
Strategic Integrated Project 18 (SIP-18) 26 February 2014 J
Amendment to MMTS-2 directive to include the 20 March 2014 J
construction of a potable water pipeline for Umgeni Water
Olifants River Water Resources Development Project — Phase 25 February 2015 J1d |
2B (ORWRDP-2B) (directive revised

22 October 2015)
Water Off-take for Kriel Town (KRIEL) 20 June 2015 J J
Acid Mine Drainage — Long-term Solution (AMD-LTS) 19 May 2016 J | J
Berg River—Voélvlei Augmentation Scheme (BRVAS) 18 May 2017 N J
uMkhomazi Water project (MWP) 22 February 2019 J | J

* Institutional arrangements

(=)
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MAJOR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

To fulfil the responsibilities, set out in the Notice of Establishment, and the directives that are given to it from time to
time by the Minister, TCTA has established the following capabilities:

1) project management and implementation of water infrastructure:
*  Project design
* Project construction
*  Environmental compliance
+ Land acquisition

2) operation and maintenance;

3) debt management;

4) structuring and raising project finance;
5) knowledge management;

6) risk management;

7) socio-economic transformation; and
8) tariff setting.

These products and services are in alignment with the functions set out in Section 102 of the National Water Act.

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

The business model by which TCTA renders services, receives revenue and allocates business risk, is schematically
displayed in Figure 6 and has remained largely unchanged since its inception more than thirty years ago. TCTA responds
to Ministerial directives to implement mainly off-budget national water infrastructure, by progressing projects to a state
of bankability and securing finance, followed by the procurement of design and construction services. Lenders draw
comfort from the undertaking by government to assume TCTA's obligations to funders if it is unable to do so. This
emanates from the Minister of Finance giving concurrence to the Minister of Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation
to the borrowings of TCTA. Loans are typically repaid over twenty years.

Figure 6: Business Model
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OUR CONTRIBUTIONS TO DEVELOPMENT
OUTCOMES

In delivering on our mandate and the directives issued to us by the Minister of Human Settlements Water and Sanitation,
the organisation continuously ensures that it strongly contributes to the developmental priorities of government, as
reflected in Table 2.

Table 2: Government outcomes and TCTA's contribution

TCTA Contribution

Providing cost-effective water infrastructure as an enabler of
economic growth and jobs.

4 Decent employment through inclusive
economic growth.

5 Skilled and capable workforce. Developing a strong skills-set in scarce fields, thereby enabling
SA to compete in world markets.

Promoting entrepreneurship in small businesses.

Ensuring a comprehensive financial and implementation
package that delivers the most cost-effective solution.

6 Efficient, competitive and responsive
economic infrastructure network.

7 Vibrant, equitable and sustainable rural Supporting other water sector institutions to enable them to

communities with food security for all. deliver on their mandate.

Providing affordable infrastructure and improved access to
basic services.

8 Sustainable human settlements and
improved quality of household life.

9 A responsive, accountable, effective and Supporting other water sector institutions to enable them to

efficient local government system. deliver on their mandate

10 Environmental assets and natural resources Developing infrastructure in an environmentally responsible
that are well protected and continually and socially inclusive manner, in accordance with global best
enhanced. practice.

Contributing to the development of critical knowledge in the
sector and beyond (e.g. project financing and implementation,

12 An efficient, effective and development-
orientated public service.

desalination, water reuse).

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

Effective stakeholder engagement enables better-
planned and more informed policies, project plans,
programmes and services. Stakeholder engagement
is mutually beneficial to TCTA and its stakeholders.
The benefits for stakeholders include the opportunity
to contribute to policy and programme development,
participation in the decision-making processes, where
applicable and appropriate, and the promise of achieving
a favourable outcome on matters of mutual interest.
For TCTA, well-thought-out stakeholder engagement
strategies bring about improved information flow and
a window to tap into local knowledge, including “road
testing” policy initiatives or proposals with stakeholders,
and provides an effective platform to unlock obstructions
to business success.

TCTA seeks to contribute to the nation’s water security
through cost-effective financing and development

of water infrastructure. Management of stakeholder
relationships is, therefore, critical to the execution of
the organisational mandate, including the successful
implementation of its infrastructure projects.

In order to provide a reliable, sustainable and coherent
service to water users, the organisation creates and
maintains inclusive relationships with a variety of
stakeholder groups. Effectively engaging stakeholders
with diverse experiences, knowledge and perceptions
delivers strong outcomes for the organisation, and this
extendsits success beyondwhatitcan achieveinisolation.
In the period under review, TCTA focussed its efforts,
primarily, in maintaining and improving relations with the
parent national department, DWS, other government
departments and institutions with a significant impact on
its business, as well as funding institutions with a financial
interest in the projects managed by the organisation.

(=)
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Table 3 below outlines the organisation’s broad list of stakeholders and the nature of engagement with them.

Table 3: Stakeholder Relationships

Stakeholder Nature of interest/stake [ Engagement strategy

Parliament

Shareholder (Ministry)

Shareholder
Department (DWS)

Treasury

Major Water Boards

Water Boards and
water entities

Off-takers

Local Government

Regulation and
compliance with
legislation.

Directive and mandate
to operate.

Financial guarantees
and compliance.

Compliance on
Ministerial directives
and mandate.

Operation within
borrowing limits.
Compliance with
applicable legislation.

Current and future raw
water off-takers and
tariff payments.

Key water sector role-
players.

Mutually beneficial
relationships on bulk
water infrastructure
projects.

Water off-takers and
tariff payments

Availability of water
infrastructure in their
jurisdiction.

Empower with project information.

Present Integrated Annual Report and Corporate Plan.
Account on performance and governance of the organisation.
Manage the relationship.

Consult stakeholder on all major decisions, including project
directives and associated predetermined objectives of
performance, as well as the future direction and sustainability of
the organisation.

Account on performance and governance of the organisation.
Provide monthly project reports.

Hold regular meetings.

Collaborate and empower with relevant information.

Manage the relationship.

Advise on funding requirements.

Provide advice and support on consultations with bulk water
users.

Communicate results and performance.

Obtain feedback on requirements or any changes.

Provide frequent status reports and updates.

Have stream focused collaborative meetings/engagements at
senior management level.

Collaborate and empower with relevant information.

Manage the relationship.

Account for performance and governance of the organisation.
Consult on all major financial decisions and PFMA related
matters.

Provide regular status reports and updates.

Collaborate and empower with relevant information.

Manage the relationship.

Involve and keep stakeholders informed on all developments
within the implementation of projects.

Provide support on consultations with bulk potable water users.
Ensure regular reporting on project progress.

Provide transparent information.

Explore future opportunities.

Manage the relationship.

Empower and consult on sector-wide issues.
Provide support on consultations with bulk potable water users.
Lobby for support as required.

Involve and keep stakeholders informed on all developments
within the implementation of projects.

Ensure regular reporting on project progress.

Provide transparent information.

Manage the relationship.

Identify relevant municipalities and collaborate with them.
Lobby for support as required.

©
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Stakeholder

Financiers

Communities

Government
Regulators

Bi-national
partnerships

Rating agencies

Contractors

Suppliers &
consultants

Media

Civil society

Affiliations and
associations

Internal stakeholders

Ability to service loans.

Favourable decisions.

Compliance and good
governance.

Servicing the terms of
the Treaty.

Compliance and good
governance.

Successful
implementation of
projects.

Provision of quality

services & products and

timeous payment of
services rendered.

Successful management

of contractors.

Accessibility of
information and brand
visibility.

Social and
environmental
responsibility.

Contribution to

excellence in the sector.

Organisational
performance and a
conducive working
environment.

Nature of interest/stake | Engagement strategy

Keep satisfied.

Keep informed on the financial standing of the organisation.
Meet regularly.

Comply with contractual agreements.

Report on good governance.

Empower and consult on relevant issues.
Establish representative community forums in active project
areas.

Keep satisfied.

Keep informed.

Engage regularly.

Provide compliance reports.

Manage closely.
Collaborate and consult.
Regular meetings with bi-national partners.

Keep satisfied.
Keep informed.

Manage closely.

Schedule monthly performance evaluation meetings.
Monitor performance.

Satisfy contractual obligations.

Manage closely.

Schedule monthly performance evaluation meetings.
Monitor performance.

Inform timeously on changes.

Satisfy contractual obligations.

Keep informed.

Engage and empower.

Provide factual information.

Ensure deadlines are met on all enquiries.
Manage the relationship.

Keep satisfied.

Consider needs and concerns.
Respond decisively and responsibly.
Manage the relationship.

Share information.
Attend to all membership requirements within guidelines and
expectations.

Manage the relationship closely.

Collaborate and empower with information.

Account on performance and governance of the organisation.
Consult stakeholder on all major decisions.

Have regular meetings.

Promote organisational values.

Promote accessibility.

Motivate.

Provide effective communication.

(2¢)



ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The organisational structure as at 31 March 2019 is as per Figure 7.

Figure 7: Organisational Structure
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PERFORMANCE AGAINST THE
PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

TCTA's performance during the reporting period was
anchored in the following predetermined objectives, as
agreed with the Minister: The predetermined objectives
for the 2018/19 financial year were as follows:

1) ensurethefinancial sustainability of the organisation;

2) manage the implementation of projects to meet
defined objectives;

3) operate and maintenance of acid mine drainage
plants in accordance with requirements;

4)  structure project funding and secure institutional
arrangements, as well as requesting necessary
authorisations;

5) raise funding for implementation of infrastructure
projects; and

6) manage debt within the approved borrowing limit
and ensure debt will be repaid.

The environment in the 2018/19 financial year was not
conducive to TCTA achieving its objectives as reflected
in Table 4. For a project to proceed DWS must ensure
that enough allocation is made in the budget and/or the

income agreements are in place between themselves
and the users, so that TCTA can proceed with the raising
of funding. DWS must also determine the configuration
of the project and issue it to TCTA in the Record of
Implementing Decisions. In the three major projects that
TCTA had anticipated to be making marked progress on
in 2018/19, MCWAP-2A, BRVAS and AMD-LTS, one or
more of the factors were not in place. This also resulted
in a marked underperformance on capital expenditure.
On one project, AMD-LTS, there was even regression.
National Treasury withdrew its commitment to fund
two thirds of the capital costs and did not allow this
inclusion in the Vaal River System. DWS also decided to
reassess the need for the project in light of the salinity
levels at the Vaal Barrage not increasing as anticipated
with the restarting of the Central and Eastern Acid Mine
DrainageTreatment plants.

As noted in the Chairperson of the Board's report the
non-achievement of many of the objectives was due to
including targets before all the external factors were
resolved, mainly by, DWS enabling TCTA to deliver.
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Table 4: Performance against the predetermined objectives

Target for 31 Status as at 31 March 2019 Reasons for variance

Predetermined
March 2019

Objective

1. Ensure the  Cost-effec- 1.1 Actual An amount of R263 million was spent on operational -m
financial tive financial spend on  costs between 1 April and 31 March 2019, representing R mil R mil
sustaiabil-  manage- operation- 57% of the target for the year.
ity of the ment in al costs is Staff 187.7 2515 638
organisa- corporate between Costs
tion operations 90-100% of Blireciens 89 157 68

budgeted e

operation- RS

al costs
Consulta- 20.0 588 388
tion fees
Depreci- 10.8 15.1 4.2
ation and
amortisa-
tion

Rent paid 10.0 10.7 0.8
- Prem-
ises

Equip- 6.2 8.8 2.6
ment
Rentals

Commu- 1.4 9.7 8.3
nication

Other 18.2 934 752
Oper-

ating

expenses

- 2632 463.7 | 200.5

The lower spend is directly attributable
to the project workload not materialising
as anticipated, and there being no
progress on the National Water
Resources and Services Authority
(NWRSA). Where costs are directly
project related, the spending of the
budget is conditional on the monies
being available in the DWS budget or
DWS and National Treasury creating the
requisite conditions in which funding can
be raised. With regards to the NWRSA,
for which there was a budget of R30
million, DWS did not create an enabling
environment where progress could be
made, and there would be a meaningful
spend of the budget.

This resulted in a cautious approach to
optimise human resources and manage
administration costs.

Sufficient 1.2 At least No liquidity buffer is available The External Auditor (EY) ruled that since
liquidity R500 million the liquidity buffer would form part of
buffer avail-  liquidity buffer the tariff receivable and had not been
able to act (on tariff re- approved by DWS or National treasury, it
as a buffer ceivable reve- could not be implemented.
for non-pay-  nue) available
ment by as a reserve to
DWS be converted

into cash of

the remaining

term of the

debt repay-

ment

@ Achieved @ Not achieved
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Predetermined| Measure Target for 31 Status as at 31 March 2019 Reasons for variance
Objective March 2019
Sufficient 1.3 90% of 92% of the revenue billed and due, including outstanding The Department has significantly
revenue is revenue billed billings from the previous financial year, has been improved payments in the last quarter.
collectedto  and due is collected All Fitch-rated projects do not have long
meet obliga-  collected outstanding invoices as at year-end,
tions An amount of R 298 million has been collected between with VRS having two months’ worth of

1 April and 31 March 2019 pertaining to billings in this invoices past due. A payment of R264m
and the previous financial year. Of this amount, R9 183 for VRS (for AMD) was received just after
million relates to amounts due; the balance is payment  year-end.

for invoices not yet due.

Capital 1.4 Between  An amount of R67.13 million was expended between 1 BWP- The lower spend is due to a delay
expenditure 90 and 100%  April 2018 and 31 March 2019 representing 9.25% of the  in obtaining the necessary Authority and
(excluding of planned target. Ministerial approvals to commence with
LHWP2) expenditure: the construction of the Skuifraam Ruins
R725 million heritage site as required by the Record
by 31 March Actual of Decision by Heritage Western Cape
2019 18/19 Q1-04 on the BWP. The building approval by
BWP 381 0.17 4% Stellenbo_sch Municip_ality is.cgrrer?tly
outstanding and requires Ministerial
ORWRDP-2C 63.96 39.06 61%  signature as the owner of the land.
TCTA has requested through DWS the
VRESAP 1.58 0 0% Power of Attorney from the Minister to
MMTS2 15.45 10.68 69%  Sign t-his'application and other related
submissions to progress the works.
KWSAP 9.65 0 0%  ORWRDP-2C - The lower spend is mainly
due to a delay in the finalisation of
MCWAP-1 11.96 0.98 8% contractor claims under the contractual
AMD-STI 79.18 11.03 14% dispute resolution processes. It was
anticipated that financial closure would
AMD-LTS 281.26 0 0%  substantially have been attained by
31 March 2019 but has now shifted to
MCWAP-2A 195.51 5.20 3% 2019/20 due to a more protracted claim
il 26.65 0 0%  resolution processes th?r? anticigated.
The processes are administered in
BRVAS 16.52 0 0%  accordance with the provisions of the
3

' > contract under the direction of the
Total Capital 725.53 67.1 9.25% independent Dispute Adjudication
Expenditure Board.

VRESAP- Under expenditure due to an
allowance for land claims that have not
materialised.

MMTS-2 — Underspent mainly due

to deferral in the commencement of
the biodiversity plan due to a delay

in a decision by DEA only received in
November 2018. A further requirement
by DEA is to establish an advisory forum.
The TOR has been submitted and
approval is awaited.

KWSAP -Delay in the implementation of
a legacy project entailing an upgrade
to the water treatment works for the
community of Kriel. The delay is linked
to the delay in the Kriel Pipeline project
due to funding constraints by the DWS.
MCWAP-1 — Underspent due to the
completion of the project at a final cost
marginally lower than anticipated

AMD STI- The lower spend is due to
savings against the final account and
claims from the contractor that are

less than was anticipated. The planned
expenditure on the design of a new
sludge disposal pipeline for the Eastern
Basin has been delayed due to the need
to obtain DRD Gold agreement on

the pipeline route and appointment of
engineering services on an open tender
basis.

AMD LTS; MCWAP-2A; Kriel; BRVAS-
Under expenditure due to funding
constraints beyond TCTA control
resulting in delays in the commencement
of new projects and completion of the
Kriel project.

@ Achieved @ Not achieved
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Predetermined

Objective

Target for 31
March 2019

Status as at 31 March 2019

Reasons for variance

2. Manage
the imple-
mentation
of projects
to meet
defined
objectives

Achieve-
ment of crit-
ical project
milestone
dates

2.1 MCWAP-
2A: Tender
design
and docu-
mentation
complete
by March
2019

2.2 AMD-
LTS: Final
conceptual
design and
optimisa-
tion of the
scheme
completed
by October
2018

2.3 BRVAS: En-
gineering
Profession-
al Service
Provider
appointed
by October
2018 (eval-
uation and
supervision
only).

2.4 BRVAS:
Tender
document
for Design
& Build
Contractor
issued by
October
2018

2.5 MWP:
Finalise
handover
of project
from DWS
and initiate
project
preparatory
activities

2.6 MWP:
Handover
report
completed
by July
2018

Tender design and documentation not completed by
March 2019.

PSP contract awarded in March 2019.

Final conceptual design and optimisation not completed
by October 2018.

The deliverable was based on the design
to commence in May 2018, after the
award of the PSP contract in April 2018.
The award of the contract only occurred
after funding was received from DWS in
January 2019.

PSP contract not awarded to date. Board
resolved not to award the contract
pending clarification from DWS on the
issues raised by Minister of Finance

in a letter dated 16 March 2018 to the
Minister of Water and Sanitation.

As at year-end, the matter remains
unresolved and the DWS has
commenced a review study on the
impact of the additional salt loads on the
Vaal River System. The outcome of the
study will inform the timing and extent of
the AMD LTS.

PSP contract for the tender evaluation and supervision of The appointment is subject to TCTA

the Design and Build Contractor not awarded to date.

Tender evaluation report presented to the Board for
approval on 30 November 2018. The award of the

PSP contract on hold pending the finalisation of the
institutional and funding arrangements for the project.

Tender documentation for the Design & Build contractor
not issued to date.

Tender documents for the design-build contract has
been compiled by the Technical Specification Committee
(TSC) and considered by the Operations Tender and
Adjudication Committee (OTAC) on 30 January 2019

Handover report not completed by July 2018.

On 16 January 2019 TCTA received a revised Directive to
provide project management and advisory services for
Stage 1.

A revised charter has been developed and presented

to the Technical Committee in February 2019 and
subsequently to DWS.

TCTA has commenced with providing project
management services and the establishment of a Project
Management Office (PMO) in accordance with the
revised Directive.

Handover report not completed by July 2018.

On 16 January 2019 TCTA received a revised Directive to
provide project management and advisory services for
Stage 1.

A revised charter has been developed and presented

to the Technical Committee in February 2019 and
subsequently to DWS.

TCTA has commenced with providing project
management services and the establishment of a Project
Management Office (PMO) in accordance with the
revised Directive.

@ Achieved @ Not achieved

securing funding.

The delay in the appointment was due
to:

1) Issuance of the tender documents
pending review by the PSP on their
appointment.

2) Process on hold pending the
finalisation of the institution and
funding arrangements.

Implementation of the project took a
different route from what was originally
envisaged due to direct Ministerial
intervention. This was outside of TCTAs
control.

Implementation of the project took a
different route from what was originally
envisaged due to direct Ministerial
intervention. This was outside of TCTA's
control.

@
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Predetermined

Objective

Target for 31

Status as at 31 March 2019

March 2019

Reasons for variance

3. Operate
and main-
tain AMD in
accordance
with re-
quirements

4. Structure
project
funding
and secure
institution-
al arrange-
ments, as
well as
requesting
necessary
authorisa-
tions

Maintaining 3.1 An average

or reducing
water levels
within the
mine voids

Quality of
treated water
from treat-
ment plants
(weighted
average for all
plants)

Institutional
arrange-
ments se-
cured

3.2 The water

3.3 Quality of

4.

-

The average volume of treated water in the plant met the
volume target (32.7 MI/d).

of water

treated in

the Western

Basin of

between 30

-33MlI/d

The target water level of between 10 to 15 meters below
the ECL has not been achieved. The water level as at

31 March 2019 was 14.34 m above ECL.

level in the
Central
Basin is
lowered to
between
10.1-15m
below ECL
by 31 March
2019

Note: ECL is

at 126m be-

low ground

level

The quality of treated water from Western Basin, Central
and Eastern Basin plants was within 90 - 94% of DWS
specifications.

Specifi- | Average | Comment
cation
PH

6.5-9.5 8.83

treated wa-
ter from the
Western Ba-
sin, Central
and Eastern
Basin plants
within 90 -
94% of DWS
specifica-
tions

Compliant

Iron mg/I <1 0.06 Compliant

Manganese  mg/I <10 0.76 Compliant

Aluminium mg/I <1 0.01 Compliant

Sulphates mg/l <3000 2018.9  Compliant

Electrical mS/m <450 316.05 Compliant

Conductivity

Turbidity NTU <30 6.84 Compliant

The Minister of Finance did not concur to the BRVAS
borrowing limit covering an indicative R43.5 million
borrowings in 2018/19, as approved by the Minister of
Water and Sanitation, by June 2018.

BRVAS: Bor-
rowing limit
covering an
indicative
R43.5 million
borrowings
in 2018/19,
approved by
the Minister
of Water
and Sani-
tation, with
the concur-
rence of the
Minister of
Finance by
June 2018

@ Achieved @ Not achieved

The basin has been drawn down
further during the year to 10.5 metres
below the surface on 31 March 2019,
creating sufficient buffer to prevent any
uncontrolled decant during the year.

The target was not met mainly due to:

a) Planned betterments and repairs
(reactors and settlers) undertaken dur-
ing the year reducing the treatment
capacity to 50% for approximately 90
days;

b) Three pump failures from December
2018 to March 2019 for an aggregate
period of 60 days, also reducing treat-
ment capacity to 50%.

TCTA was on track to obtain the
borrowing limit well before the target
date of June 2018. The Minister of Water
and Sanitation indicated his intention to
grant TCTA the borrowing limit and had
written to the Minister of Finance on 19
March 2018 to request his concurrence.
The Minister of Finance responded on
25 June 2018 but declined to give his
concurrence and insisted on the off-
takers first signing off-take agreements
with DWS and urged DWS to provide
bridging funding to TCTA while the off-
take agreements were being negotiated.
Despite many attempts to obtain
funding from DWS, none was made
available, which means the project could
not proceed: commercial funding could
not be raised without a borrowing limit
and fiscal funding; thus, TCTA could not
award contracts for the PSP. To expedite
the conclusion of preparatory work as
directed by the Minister of Finance, the
TCTA Board approved the Procurement
of Grant Funding for BRVAS Project
Preparation Facility on 29 November
2018.

©
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Predetermined

Target for 31 Status as at 31 March 2019

March 2019

4.2 AMD-LTS:  Water supply agreements were not submitted to the
Agreements parties (DWS and each off-taker) for signing by June
submitted ~ 2018.
to the par-
ties (DWS A pricing term sheet setting out the principles for
and each pricing of water, which will feed into the water supply
off-taker) for agreements was prepared.
signing by
June 2018

43 AMD-LTS:  The income agreement has not been signed.
Income
agreement  The Income Agreement was drafted
signed by
June 2018

4.4 MWP: Terms
of Reference
prepared
and ready
for signa-
ture by key
stakeholder
principals in
September
2018

The terms of reference were not prepared.

A new directive was issued on 16 January 2019

@ Achieved @ Not achieved

Reasons for variance

TCTA intended to issue a Request
for Information (RFI) to Development
Finance Institutions (DFls) requesting
proposals from those who are willing
to provide grant funding for project
preparation and pre-implementation
activities that will lead to project
bankability.

The above should help unlock the
borrowing limit authorisation. In the
meantime, TCTA engaged with all the
off-takers and stakeholders, including
DWS Western Cape, in the region and
progress has been made towards off-
take agreements negotiations.

TCTA could not anticipate and had no
control over the actions of the Minister
of Finance to ask for a review of AMD-
LTS implementation and its removal from
the VRS guarantee. With the uncertainty
on AMD-LTS, the water supply
agreement negotiations could not be
meaningfully conducted,

The Water Supply Agreements and
Income Agreement are on hold pending
a decision by the Minister of Water and
Sanitation and the Minister of Finance on
the future of AMD-LTS as raised in the
Minister of Finance's letter requesting
removal of AMD from the VRS guarantee
and a review of AMD-LTS.

Implementation of the project took a
different route from what was originally
envisaged due to direct Ministerial
intervention.

TCTA demonstrated in engagements
with the Minister that commercial
funding was not viable because the
project serviced social needs, while
funding from China was not realisable
because of the onerous conditions
attached to it. Minister then directed
that DWS implement the project itself,
with TCTA supporting, which changed
the target for TCTA.
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Status as at 31 March 2019

Target for 31

March 2019

Reasons for variance

Predetermined| Measure
Objective
5. Raise Arrange-
funding ment of
for imple-  funding
mentation  facilities
of infra-
structure
projects
6. Manage Debt man-

debt aged within
within the approved bor-
approved rowing limits,
borrowing in respect of
limitand  TCTA' obliga-
ensure tions emanat-
debt will  ing from:
be repaid - VRS

- BWP

- VRESAP

- KWSAP

- MTS-2

- CWAP

5.1 VRS: Loan  Ré4.5 billion in loan facilities were available from 3
facilities commercial banks in July 2018.
available by
July —~August
2018
5.2 MCWAP: Funding facilities for MCWAP were not available for
Funding drawdown from 31 March 2019.
facilities
available for A borrowing limit and request for a guarantee was
drawdown  submitted to DWS for approval by the Minister, in
from 31 February 2019.
March 2019
In January 2019, DWS made an advance payment of
R69 million.
The Implementation Agreement is 95% complete. When
signed, it will allow underutilised funding facilities under
MCWAP-1 to be used for MCWAP-2A bridge funding
and allow for the establishment of a Commercial Paper
Programme.
5.3 BRVAS: The Global Bridging facility and/or budget were not
Global available from 30 June 2018.
Bridging
Facility and/ The borrowing limit for the Global Facility was submitted
or Budget  to DWS for approval by the Minister in May 2018 and the
from DWS  Minister of Finance had not responded by year-end.
available for
use from 30
June 2018
5.4 BRVAS: The long-term funding was not available from January
Long-term  2019.
funding
available
from January
2019 to cov-
er the bal-
ance of the
R225 million
funding re-
quirements
for 2018/19
and 2019/20
6.1 Debt All projects were within their approved borrowing limits
managed at the end of each quarter.
within the
Forrowmg Project | Borrow-
imits and
all payment
obligations
are met VRS 42500 18674 15874 14745 13
988
BWP 715 643 604 604 565
VRESAP 4039 3917 3914 3829 3779
MMTS2 1860 1808 1802 1781 1774
KWSAP 1408 1277 1269 1262 1255
MCWAP 4400 1529 1520 1383 1370

All debt servicing on the long-term loan facilities and
the WSP3-5 bond coupon was made successfully and
timeously.

All payment obligations of interest and principal were
met, and there were no events of default.

@ Achieved @ Not achieved

Funding could not proceed while DWS
had not given direction on project

size, which was required to finalise the
Implementation Agreement, which is in
turn required to raise funding. DWS only
provided the required fiscal funding, in
January 2019, which enabled the project
to proceed.

The Minister approved the submission
for a borrowing limit and government
guarantee as presented and a request
for the Minister of Finance's concurrence
was submitted to the National Treasury
in the 4" quarter of 2018/19. TCTA is
awaiting the outcome of the request for
the Minister of Finance's concurrence.

The Minister of Water and Sanitation
approved the submission for the
borrowing limit as presented, and a
request for the Minister of Finance’s
concurrence was submitted to the
National Treasury on 23 October
2018. The Minister of Finance had not
responded by year-end.

The revised implementation programme
indicates that long-term funding will only
be required in June 2020.
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SUMMARY OF PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

In the 2018/19 financial year, the TCTA portfolio of
projects consisted of projects which were at preparatory,
construction and advisory phases.

The key activities undertaken during the year under
review are summarised as follows:

PROJECTS AT
PREPARATORY PHASE

Mokolo and Crocodile River Water
Augmentation Project — Phase 2A

The project comprises an abstraction weir, pump stations
and a 160-km pipeline to transfer water from the Crocodile
River near Thabazimbi to the Lephalale area. The project
is a prerequisite to enable further development of the
Waterberg Coalfields, as envisaged in the first Strategic
Infrastructure Project of the Presidential Infrastructure
Co-ordinating Commission. It will enable Eskom to
operate an additional three flue gas desulphurisation
units at the Medupi Power Station, which could not be
supplied with the water available from the Mokolo Dam.
The units minimise the environmental emissions from the
power station, which is a condition of the Eskom’s World
Bank loan. It also stipulates that the desulphurisation
units should be all be fully functional by 2024.

In the 2018/19 financial year, the following progress was
made.

TCTA assisted DWS to complete the Environmental
Impact Assessment (EIA), which was followed by
obtaining  Environmental Authorisation from the
Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA). The
Environmental Authorisation was successfully issued by
DEA on the 18 March 2019, and this was achieved well
ahead of the projected timelines.

The conclusion of the Implementation Agreement, which
is a prerequisite to raising funding was delayed, due to
issues around the project size, and this impacted the
ability to raise funding. Fiscal funding was only received
from DWS in January 2019, which then allowed, on
18 March 2019, the appointment of the Professional
Service Provider (PSP). This represented at least a
10-month delay in the project programme.

The Implementation Agreement between DWS and
TCTA and the Water Supply Agreements between DWS
and the off-takers were drawn up and are expected to
be concluded in the 2019/2020 financial year. A request
to approve the renewal of the borrowing limit and a

government guarantee was submitted to the Minister of
Water and Sanitation and is under consideration for the
concurrence of the Minister of Finance during 2019/20
financial year.

Berg River Voélvlei Augmentation
Scheme

The Water Reconciliation Strategy for the Western Cape
Water Supply System indicates that the system is in
deficit and should be augmented by at least 2019/20 to
avert a serious shortfall. This need was evident when the
water supply system was unable to cope with the drought
situation that was experienced in 2018/19. BRVAS was
identified as the next surface water development that
can contribute to satisfying this requirement.

BRVAS will abstract and pump winter flows from the Berg
River to the existing Voélvlei Dam, improving its yield by
23 million m® per annum. The project consists of a weir,
pump station and a 6.3 km long pipeline to deliver water
to the Voélvlei Dam.

In order to shorten the project implementation period,
a Design and Build contracting approach has been
adopted. In this approach, the PSP will undertake
technical evaluation, construction monitoring and
administration/contract management of the project.
On 30 November 2018, the Board approved the award
of the PSP contract subject to securing funding for the
project. Also, the tender documents for the Design-Build
Contract have been approved. However, their issuance
is subject to review by the PSP, when appointed, and
availability of funding to cover the construction costs.

With National Treasury not approving TCTA's application
for the borrowing authority until the Off-take Agreements
have been signed with the end-users and DWS not
allocating any funds for project preparatory work, this
project will regress to an advisory phase next financial year.

PROJECTS IN
CONSTRUCTION PHASE

Olifants River Water Resources
Development Project — Phase 2C

The project comprises a 40-km distribution pipeline
from De Hoop Dam, which feeds the De Hoop Water
Treatment Works at Steel Bridge, and a pump station
near Steelpoort, where it can interconnect with the
Lebalelo Water Users Association infrastructure. Water
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from the De Hoop Dam is for the mining industry along
the eastern limb of the Bushveld Complex as well as
for municipal consumers in the Sekhukhune District
Municipality.

In the year under review, the construction of the entire
40-km pipeline and pump station was completed with
the Taking Over Certificate issued on 14 December 2018
and the project handed over to DWS.

Off-take Pipeline to the town of
Kriel

The project will provide a backup water supply to Kriel
when the water supply pipeline from Jericho Dam is out of
service. The project comprises the construction of a 3-km
pipeline and an upgrade of the existing water treatment
works.

TCTA's role on the project is to plan, design, undertake
environmental work and provide project management in
support of DWS who are constructing the works itself.
Progress on the construction of the sedimentation tank
which forms part of the water treatment upgrade was
made up to a point whereby construction slowed down
due to DWS not allocating funds to the project and
construction has now halted.

The project was formally put on hold in 2018/19 and
TCTA will only recommence activities when DWS makes
funding available.

PROJECTS IN ADVISORY
PHASE

This section covers projects where a directive has been
received, but work is required to make the project
bankable so that funding can be raised, or where
insufficient funds are available from the fiscus. During
this phase, TCTA acts in an advisory capacity to DWS to
resolve these issues. The eventual quantum of funding
will impact on the scope of works. There are three
projects currently in this phase.

Olifants River Water Resources
Development Project - Phase 2B

The project involves the development of bulk raw water
distribution infrastructure in the middle Olifants River
catchment area, comprising a 70-km pipeline from Flag
Boshielo Dam to Pruisen near Mokopane with pump
stations and reservoirs. When completed, the project
will provide water for use by both the mines and the
Mogalakwena Local Municipality.

During the financial year, TCTA continued to explore an
alternative funding mechanism with the Development
Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA) to fund the project,
including under-writing of the debt, without signed off-
take agreements with commercial users. A bankability
study was completed, and the DBSA Board approved the
funding mechanism. However, the borrowing limit and
funding proposal will require DWS and National Treasury
approval. If successful, this will lead to the granting of a
borrowing limit and enable the raising of funding for the
implementation of the project.

Acid Mine Drainage — Long-term
Solution

The feasibility study recommended the construction
of desalination plant/s to treat acid mine drainage
abstracted via the Short-term Intervention infrastructure
to a potable or industrial standard as a long-term solution
for the salinity impact of acid mine drainage on the Vaal
River System.

This project was in preparatory phase in the last financial
year but has regressed to an advisory phase due to DWS
undertaking further studies on the impact of the effluent
from the Short-term Intervention on the Vaal River
System and National Treasury’s unwillingness to fund the
two-thirds capital and operating costs or have the costs
included in the Vaal River System.

During the year, the procurement of the PSP to undertake
the optimisation of the layout of desalination plant/s
including water off-takes was completed to the point
where the award could be made. However, the award
was not made due to further studies being undertaken
by DWS and funding issues.

The Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) activities
were also suspended as these were dependant on the
appointment of the Engineering PSP to produce the
Conceptual Design Report to determine the final layout
of the project.

uMzimvubu Water Project

The overall objective of the project is to provide water
for social needs and to contribute to the economic
development of the poor and rural north-eastern region
of the Eastern Cape Province by leveraging the water
resources of the uMzimvubu River catchment to support
agriculture, water supply, hydropower, transport and
tourism.

In the 2018/19 financial year, the Minister of Water and
Sanitation established the uMzimvubu Project Task Team
(MPTT), which included TCTA, to resolve the challenges
that were hindering progress. The objective being to
refocus the project under a new implementation model
with funding from the fiscus.

()
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The MPTT developed a new implementation model
which model maximises the use of state institutions
and resources in the form of TCTA, DWS Infrastructure
Development Branch and DWS Construction Unit. It
also promotes the socio-economic transformation and
state institutional capacity by prototyping a template
for accessing private sector expertise and partnerships
while retaining state control. The implementation model
was approved by the Minister and was adopted for the
project.

The MPTT recommended the project to be implemented
in stages and on 16 January 2019, TCTA received a

revised directive to provide project management and
advisory services for Stage 1 of the uMzimvubu Water
Project comprising the access roads and other advanced
infrastructure.

As part of initiating the implementation of Stage 1, the
TCTA Board Chairperson and Management supported
the Minister of Water and Sanitation with stakeholder
engagements, which mainly involved traditional leaders
and communities in the project.

Progression on the project is dependent on DWS
allocating sufficient funds in 2019/20.

SUMMARY OF OPERATION AND
MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES

TCTA operates and maintains the following two

infrastructure projects on behalf of DWS:

1) Delivery Tunnel North of the Lesotho Highlands
Water Project; and

2) the Short-term Intervention of the Acid Mine
Drainage Project.

A summary of these activities is as follows.

Delivery Tunnel North of the
Lesotho Highlands Water Project

In terms of the Treaty, as amended by Protocol IV between
the Republic of South Africa and the Kingdom of Lesotho,
TCTA is responsible for the operation and maintenance of
that part of the project situated in the Republic of South
Africa, Delivery Tunnel North, and is accountable to the
Lesotho Highlands Water Commission in this regard.

TCTA also manages the Ash River Management Plan,
a river erosion monitoring and mitigating plan that was
implemented following the start of water deliveries from
LHWP.

During the financial year under review, TCTA complied
with all its operations and maintenance obligations to
ensure that the infrastructure could deliver the scheduled
780 million m* of water at the designated outlet point in
the Ash River.

A planned outage for the inspection and possible minor
repair work on the tunnel was originally planned for
October/November 2018 but was postponed on the
request of Lesotho to 2019. TCTA commenced with the
procurement of the PSP for the outage. Evaluation of the
tenders was completed, and the contract award will be
done in 2019/20.

)



A summary of performance on the acid mine drainage treatment plants is as follows:
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Table 5: Performance of AMD Plants in 2018/19

CentralBasin

Average Volume Treated 32.8 Ml/d 51.7 Ml/d 64 Ml/d
Environmental Critical level Has not been 126 m below ground 106.6 m below ground
determined level level
Level as at 31 March 2018 10.5m 111.6m 118.4m
Water Quality | Units | Specifications | Treated Water Treated Water Treated Water
(as per DWS (Annual average (Annual average Annual average
directive) 1 April 18-31 March 19) | 1 April 18-31 March 19) [FIFAprM8=31March 19)
PH 65-95 9,4 8,7 8,65
[ron mg/I <1 0,17 0,03 0,038
Manganese mg/I <10 1,46 1,04 0,169
Aluminium ma/I <1 0,06 0 0,003
Sulphates mg/I <3000 2171 2648 1433
Electrical mS/m <450 306 403 251
Conductivity
Turbidity NTU <30 11,5 6,6 4,64

Figure 8: Annual Expenditure on Plants in 2018/19
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the year ended 31 March 2019, TCTA was successful
in achieving its strategic financial goals, as outlined
below:

* Raised finance for infrastructure projects, on behalf
of DWS, that would be recovered through user
tariffs (either partially or fully);

* Ensured that sufficient funds were available at all
times to meet the requirements during construction.
Where long-term funds are utilised TCTA entered
into short-term investments to offset costs of these
long-term funding;

e Collaborated with DWS to ensure that the tariff, set
in terms of the Pricing Strategy, is sufficient to cover
their obligations and the obligations that TCTA has
incurred on their behalf. These obligations comprise
of interest payable on funding obligations and
capital repayments on all projects funded outside
the fiscus, operation and maintenance costs on
certain projects, and other obligations of the South
African Government in respect of the Lesotho
Highlands Water Project.

However, for the first time since inception, TCTA has
received a qualified audit opinion. The qualification was
based on shortcomings in three areas.

With respect to the Acid Mine Drainage Receivable
matter differences were identified between the financials
and the workings, which resulted in the financials not
balancing. The error was caused by a mistake in the
preparation of the information which could not be
corrected and resubmitted before the deadline for the
resubmission. This error was corrected, and the numbers
revised. However it was too late to resubmit the revised
provision to the Auditor-General as the submission
deadline had passed.

With respecttothe provisionforcompensation, itoccurred
due to TCTA having reflected a transaction between
a third party, the Lesotho Highlands Development
Authority and impacted persons in Lesotho, in its
financial statements and thus being unable to produce
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence as required in
time with this information being in the possession of the
Lesotho Highlands Development Authority in Lesotho.
This limitation occurred in part due to the somewhat
convoluted institutional arrangements, as reflected on
pages x to x, that govern the Lesotho Highlands Water
Project, where the flow of money between institutions is
not matched by the opposite receipt of a benefit, which
flows to another institution. TCTA intends to engage with
the Auditor-General ahead of the next audit in order to
avoid a repeat finding or any finding related to TCTA's
role in the Lesotho Highlands Water Project. TCTA will

reflect on how it accounts for payments made to the
Lesotho Highlands Development Authority on behalf
of the Department of Water and Sanitation, so that it is
properly accounted for in subsequent years. Addressing
this issue will either result in a restatement if the figures
were to change or a review of the accounting for third-
party expenditure will be performed. Ultimately, it does
not change TCTA' ability to perform the Government of
South Africa’s financial obligations to Lesotho in terms of
the Treaty and the Phase Il agreement

Finally, with respect to the provision for Capital
Commitments, TCTA excluded provisions for the
outer years (5 years and beyond) from the financials.
This resulted in differences between the provisions
disclosed in the financials and those reflected in the
Capital Commitments schedule that was submitted as
evidence of the workings. This error was corrected, and
the numbers revised, however it was too late to resubmit
the revised provision to the Auditor-General as the
submission deadline had passed.

Despite the qualification received, TCTA was still in a
position to achieve our strategic financial goals which
can best be interpreted via a deeper insight into the
following five elements in its financial statements

a) The Tariff Receivable

b) Cash inflows

c) Utilisation of Cash Received

d) Sources of funding

e) Distribution of debt across projects

— =

a) The tariff receivable

The Tariff Receivable represents TCTA's entitlement
to recover the project costs incurred for the funding,
construction and implementation of national water
infrastructure as well as the subsequent management
of the debt incurred for the implementation of these
projects. The Tariff Receivable relates to the present
value of all cash flows that are payable by DWS to TCTA
in order to settle construction costs and other expenses
incurred for each project.

The amounts received on a monthly basis from DWS
decreases the outstanding Tariff Receivable balance
(refer to note 10.4 for details on the calculation of the
Tariff Receivable).

The Tariff Receivable decreased due to restatement of
the Tariff Receivable (refer to notes 25, 12 and 10.4 for
further details).

(w)
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iii. Management

The accounting policy applied to the measurement
of the Tariff Receivable had been amended. The Tariff
Receivable is a financial asset measured at amortised
cost. The effective interest rate was previously
calculated to exactly discount the estimated future
cash flows over the expected life of the Tariff
Receivable as determined by the contractual terms
of the individual projects. The effective interest rate
was determined when the Tariff Receivable was first
recognised and the expected cash flows were re-
estimated on an annual basis. On the determination
of gross carrying amount at the end of the year
based on the revised cash flows, a gain or a loss
was recognized previously referred to the AG 8
modification.

The revised accounting policy allows for the re-
estimation of the effective interest rate when the
expected cash flows of the financial assets are
incorporated into the Tariff Receivable models, hence
no modification fluctuations will impact on the profit
or loss reported at the end of each financial year.

TCTA incorporated the social portion of the AMD,
which is two-thirds of the costs incurred on the AMD
short-term intervention in the VRS model for the
calculation of the Tariff Receivable. The model had
used the assumption that the entire cost relating
to the AMD will be recovered over 20 years, as the
repayment terms had not been agreed with DWS
in prior periods. During the year management
revised the strategy on the recovery of the social
portion of the AMD costs which amended the
initially assumed payment profile. This necessitated
a separate determination and disclosure of the AMD
Receivable. The AMD costs funded by the fiscus have
been removed from the VRS model resulting in an
AMD Receivable of R 727 million as at 31 March 2019
and R774 million as at 31 March 2018, resulting in a
decrease in the Tariff Receivable.

assessed its accounting policy
adopted for the treatment of the MCWAP Tariff
Receivable as the costs for Phase 2 of the project
has previously been included in the determination
of the MCWAP Tariff Receivable. Phase 2 had been
included based on indicators that a combined
borrowing programme and combined tariff would

be utilized. The Phase 2 costs have been removed
from the MCWAP Tariff Receivable model as those
indicators have not materialised, and the phases are
separately accounted for. The second phase of the
project is included in the Loans and other receivables
(refer to note 12), resulting in a decrease in the Tariff
Receivable.

iv. The balance owed by the DWS has decreased from
R3.2 billion at 31 March 2018 to R2.3 billion at 31
March 2019. As at the end of the financial year all
invoices outstanding were less than 30 days with no
invoices past due, with the exception of R219 million
on VRS. Refer to note 10.4 for further detail.

b) Cash inflows

Cash and cash equivalents are held for the purposes of
meeting TCTA's short-term cash commitments. Some
short-term investments are included as cash and cash
equivalents when it is readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and the risk of a change in the value is
insignificant.

The maturity period of these short-term investments,
classified as cash and cash equivalents, are normally less
than three months from the date of acquisition.

TCTA prioritises liquidity across all its projects, as such;
most investments are allocated to Call and Money
Market Funds.

The composition of cash inflows from operating activities
(Figure 9) for the year ended 31 March 2019 remained
unchanged from the year ended 31 March 2018. The
higher receipts were partly due to the repayment
of the outstanding balance for the 2017/18 financial
year. The total receipts for the 2018/19 financial year
amounted to R?.8bn. The tariff billing for the current
financial year was higher than the previous financial year
due to increased volumes. The DWS debtors balance
decreased from R3.2bn in 2017/18 to R2.3bn in the
current year. Recoveries on social projects were lower as
these projects are nearing completion.
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Figure 9: Cash Inflows from Operations

TOTAL 2019 TOTAL 2018

R9 877m R6 218m

1%

® Tariffs billed ® Tariffs billed
® Recoveries from DWS on social projects ® Recoveries from DWS on social projects

Cash inflows from financing and investing activities for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Figure 10) are mainly due to the
additional drawdowns on loans for the repayment of WS05.

Figure 10: Cash Inflows from Financing and Investing activities

TOTAL 2019 TOTAL 2018

2%

® Drawdown from loans ® Drawdown from loans
® Interest received ® Interest received
® Proceeds on the sale of financial assets

® Proceeds on the sale of assets

c) Utilisation of Cash Received

Total cash outflows increased for the year ended 31 March 2019, Figure 11, as compared to outflows for the year ended
31 March 2018 due to increased capital repayments. WS05 matured in August 2018. Cash paid to suppliers decreased
due to the delay in the commencement of new projects and projects reaching finalisation in the current financial year.

Interest paid decreased due to the repayment of WS05.
The Treaty related costs increased by 24% due to increases in Royalties paid and operating costs for works in Lesotho.

Remuneration related costs have remained within 5% of total outflows as only 2% of the total payments made were
towards remuneration.
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Figure 11: Cash outflows

TOTAL 2019 TOTAL 2018

R17 726m R8 172m

0%
0%

® Cash paid to suppliers ® Cash paid to suppliers
® Interest paid ® Interest paid

©® Investments made © Investments made

® Additions to assets ® Additions to assets

® Capital repayments ® Capital repayments

d)  Sources of funding

The total value of Bonds, as reflected in Figure 12, decreased from R18 019 million in 2018 to R9 547 million in 2019 due
to the redemption of WS05.

The composition of the sources of funding shows a 23% increase in the funding from commercial banks. This increase
is due to the additional drawdown of R4.5 billion on VRS and repayments of capital in all projects.

Figure 12: Funding instruments

TOTAL DEBT BY PROJECT 2019 TOTAL DEBT BY PROJECT 2018

R27 150m

2%

® Bonds ® Bonds

® Commercial Paper Programme (CPP) ® Commercial Paper Programme (CPP)
©® Development Finance Institutions (DF) ©® Development Finance Institutions (DF)
® Commercial banks ® Commercial banks
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Figure 13: Total Liabilities

TOTAL DEBT 2019

® Long term liabilities
©® Short-term liabilities

TOTAL DEBT 2018

R27 150m

® Long term liabilities
©® Short-term liabilities

e)  Distribution of debt across projects

As at 31 March 2019, the overall debt outstanding decreased by R4 596 million and is reflected at an overall balance of
R23 billion compared to the balance at 31 March 2018 of R27 billion. The decrease is as a net result of the redemption
of WS05 of R8.9bn; drawdown of R&.5 billion on long-term loans for VRS with capital repayments in all other projects.

Figure 14: Total debt by project

TOTAL DEBT BY PROJECT 2019

TOTAL DEBT BY PROJECT 2018

R27 150m

® LHWP
® MMTS

® BWP
® KWSAP

® VRESAP
© MCWAP

©® VRESAP
© MCWAP

® BWP
® KWSAP

® LHWP
® MMTS

(a0)



TCTA INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2018/2019




THE ECONOMICS OF
DESALINATION




Introduction

Mitigation of Environmental Impacts
Health and Safety

Employment and Employment Equity on Projects

Knowledge and Learning




PART C: SUSTAINABILITY

INTRODUCTION

The Board approval of the revised Environmental
Policy, Projects Compensation Policy and Livelihood
Restoration Policy have made a significant contribution
to strengthening the organisation’s environmental and
social governance framework. Copies of these and other
policies that pertain to the TCTA's environmental and
social sustainability efforts can be accessed on https://
www.tcta.co.za/tcta-policy

The preparation of a formal Environmental Strategy for
TCTA has been initiated to provide strategic direction for
the internalisation and implementation of both new and
existing policies and implementation programmes. The
strategy development process includes a benchmarking
process to ensure that the TCTA environmental
approach
are aligned to good practice and relevant to the

management and management system

organisation’s mandate.

MITIGATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS
CORPORATE ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Corporate Environmental Management System
baseline, for key resource use indicators at the Centurion
office, has been developed over the past three financial
years. Targets for improvement will be informed by the

Figure 15: Average monthly use of key resource
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Electricity Use
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The improvement of environmental sustainability
awareness and waste management practices have
been identified as focal areas for the 2019-2020 year.
During July 2018 the TCTA staff, in support of the DWS
Mandela Day initiative, collected waste from the public
open spaces around the corporate office environment.
In addition to raising personal awareness of the state

of urban waterways, a total of 150kg of plastic were

Water Use

outcome of the first TCTA management review, which
is due to take place early in the new financial year. A
summary of the baseline data for key resource use is
presented in figure 15 below.
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removed from the banks of the Hennops River. All waste
was handed over to the municipality for formal disposal.
The event was featured in the Centurion Record (local
newspaper) which contributed to profiling the impacts of
informal recycling activities in the greater Centurion areas.
The resolution of the social and environmental impacts
of this challenge is the subject of broad, cross-cutting
collaborations by the municipality and private partners.
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TCTA staff develop an understanding of the prevalence of waste in our urban waterways

There has been a growth in TCTAs representation in
various industry fora. TCTA is represented on the Board
of the International Association of Public Participation
Practitioners and the steering committee of the Global
Environment Fund funded Ecological Infrastructure for

Water Security Project. ATCTA Environmental Manager has
also been nominated to represent South African National
Committee on Large Dams on the technical committee of
the International Commission on Large Dams.

PROJECT-BASED ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen TCTA maintains a high
level of environmental performance and compliance.

Environmental Authorisations

TCTA's support to DWS and their EIA Consultant has seen
the submission and subsequent authorisation of, the
MCWAP-2A Environmental Impact Assessment Report
by the Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA). The
Environmental Authorisation (EA) is a significant step
forward for the development but is subject to an appeals
process. A second MCWAP-2A EIA process has been
initiated for the approval of borrow pits from where
selected fill material will be sourced. The Department
of Mineral Resources is the competent authority for this
authorisation process, which is in the scoping phase.

The AMD Long-term Solution EIA process remains
on hold due to the projects’ funding constraints.
The BRVAS EA has been amended to align with the
project implementation timeframes. The Construction
Environmental Management Programme has been
prepared for submission to DEA for approval, early in the
2019-2020 financial year.

Compliance

Independent monitoring of projects performance in terms
of EA conditions and EMPr requirements continue to
demonstrate high levels of environmental performance.
The frequency of inspections by independent ECOs
on the various project sites is managed in response
to the activities and environmental conditions during
the close-out phase of the respective projects. Strong
ECO performance scores of 99.57% and 94.77% have
been awarded for MMTS-2 Water Transfer Scheme and
ORWRDP-2C respectively. DEA has been notified of the
suspension of ECO activities on projects that are on hold
or concluded.

The operational EMPr for the AMD-STI is implemented
on an ongoing basis and internal project monitoring
protocols are maintained to assure performance. There
is a significant focus on water quality monitoring and
management from the operational treatment plants.

()



PART C: SUSTAINABILITY

Figure 16: Environmental Management Performance based on ECO inspection scores

ECO PERFOMANCE TRENDS - 2018-2019 as of 31 March 2019

100%

98%

96%

94%

92%

90%

88%
MMTS-2
W 2016 - 2017 97,79%
W 2017 - 2018 97,80%
12018 - 2019 99,25%

Incidents

No DEA reportable environmental impacts or incidents
have been reported for projects during the year ending
31 March 2019. The internal TCTA incident classification
system has however flagged significant storm damage
incidents that occurred in the ORWRDP-2C project area
during December 2018 and January 2019. The storms
caused damage to built infrastructure and resulted in
excessive stormwater runoff that caused significant
erosion of rehabilitation works in sections of the
construction servitude. The impact on the environment
is being closely monitored as remedial interventions are
developed and approved.

Pollution and Waste Management

Waste management, pollution prevention management
included in all the
construction and PSP contracts. New project planning
incudes the up-front analysis of risks related to the
generation management and disposal of large volumes
of spoil material.

and control requirements are

Resource Transformation and Use

MMTS-2: Biodiversity Offsetting

DEA have accepted the revised biodiversity offsetting
targets and agreements have been signed with the

ORWRDP-2C MCWAP-1
93,26% 98,71%
95,38% 99,44%
96,53% 99,33%

owners of the two affected properties. In accordance
with the approved offsetting plan, and in collaboration
with DEA, the terms of reference for an advisory forum
are being developed. The Offsets Advisory Forum
is to include participation by various authorities and
conservation agencies.

Servitude Rehabilitation

Rehabilitation of MCWAP-1, MMTS-2: WTS and
ORWRDP-2C pipelines have shown progress towards
final signoff of the remaining rehabilitation areas.

On MMTS-2, rehabilitation on 87,5% of the servitude
properties (35 of 40) has been deemed as acceptable
by the PSP. Sign-offs from landowners have been
attained for 80% (32 of 40) of the land portions. A site
inspection of the remaining MCWAP-1 borrow pit and
servitude rehabilitation showed good germination, but
the establishment of acceptable cover is dependent on
rainfall, which is unpredictable. In isolated areas of poor
establishment, the assistance of the landowners will be
enlisted to effect further interventions. ORWRDP-2C
rehabilitation progress is steady. A total of 78% of the
area have achieved final acceptance of the maintained
vegetative cover. A total of 14.9% of the servitude is in
the maintenance period and acceptable cover is still
to be achieved on 7.1 % of the site area. Repairs to the
storm damage are a priority to limit the risk of further
damage to the rehabilitation and infrastructure.

©
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

TCTA strives to ensure that it maintains a safe working
environment on its sites.

HEALTH AND SAFETY ON
CONSTRUCTION SITES

In its implementation of projects, TCTA must comply
with the Occupational Health and Safety Act and the
Construction Regulations of 2014. The organisation is
therefore required to develop project-specific health and
safety specifications, which are used for construction and
audit purposes. TCTA then appoints an agent to perform
the health and safety oversight as well as monthly audits
from which the project’s compliance score is derived. In
the case of ORWRDP-2C, the engineer performed the
function of the agent.

In the 2018/19 financial year, ORWRDP-2C was the only
project that was under construction. The project was
completed and handed over to DWS for operations and
maintenance. At the end of the period under review, the

contractor had demobilised most of the staff on-site and
the audit compliance score was no longer required.

The TCTA Health and Safety measure is referred to as
Recordable Case Rate (RCR). A recordable case refers
to any incident in which the employee is unable to work
for a period exceeding 14 consecutive days. A period of
200 000 hours is the industry standard base rate, which
equates to 100 employees working 40 hours a week and
working for 50 weeks a year injury-free. The maximum
acceptable RCR is 0.5. The formula to calculate RCR is
as follows:

Recordable Case Rate = [Recordable cases] x 200 000

[Total hours]

In the case of ORWRDP-2C, there were no recordable
cases that involved fatalities and time lost to injuries
during the reporting period. The RCR for ORWRDP-2C
remained at 0.32. Table 6 shows the trend of ORWRDP-
2C health and safety compliance.

Table 6: Summary of AMD Plants Health and Safety statistics

Plant Year | LostTime | Fatalities | First | Near | Recordable | Recordable Health & Safety
Injuries Aid miss Cases Case Rate Non-compliance
1

EASTERN 2019 0 100 0 99%
BASIN 2018 1 0 0 12 0 0 None Identified

CENTRAL 2019 0 0 1 108 0 0 97%
BASIN 2018 2 0 1 81 0 0 None Identified

WESTERN 2019 0 0 0 0 0 0 Data requested
BASIN 2018 0 0 0 0 0 Data requested

HEALTH AND SAFETY IN
OPERATIONAL SITES

TCTA oversees the operation and maintenance of
acid mine drainage plants in the Western, Central and
Eastern Basins. The appointed operators have the
appropriate authority to implement and monitor health
and safety as per the Occupational Health and Safety
Act (Act No. 85 of 1993).

There were no fatalities recorded during the reporting
period in the three plants but only injuries leading to lost
time, first-aid cases and near misses. First-aid cases are
injuries that were treated with a first-aid kit, whereas near
misses are incidents that nearly led to an injury.

There were 0 recordable cases reported, resulting in a
recordable case rate of 0. The health and safety statistics
for the three plants in the 2018/2019 financial year are
tabulated in Table 7:

Table 7: Summary of Health and Safety Compliance for ORWRDP-2C

Project Year Lost Time Fatalities Recordable Recordable H&S
InJurles cases case rate compliance score

ORWRDP-2C 2017
2018 0 0
2019 0 0

0.32 94%
0 0.32 N/A
0 0.32 N/A

@
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EMPLOYMENT AND EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

ON PROJECTS

The creation of employment on TCTA projects is an
integral part of the organisation’s contribution to the
government’s transformation agenda and presents
an opportunity to temporarily employ members
of the communities affected by the infrastructure
developments.

PROJECTS UNDER
CONSTRUCTION

ORWRDP-2C was the only project that was under
construction over the reporting period. The project was
completed and handed over to DWS for operations and
maintenance in December 2018.

The employment figures presented in Table 8 represent
the number of persons who were in the employ of the
construction contractor in December 2018.

Table 8: Active construction employees

Employment | Origin | Gender | Ethnic | Annual

Group Group | Totals

— | o [ o

al|l=|=2

T|&|K

51 8|z

Z |l =

Unskilled 19 0 6 14 19 0 19 43

Semi-skilled 3 4 2 5 7 0 7 49

Skilled & o 8 1 6 5 3 8 22
other staff

Total 22 12 9 25 31 3 34 114

HDI, historically disadvantaged individual

OPERATIONS AND
MAINTENANCE
EMPLOYEES

Employees in the service of the operators of the AMD
treatment facilities and those employed on LHWP are
shown in Table 9 below.

Table 9: Active Operation and Maintenance Employees

Employees Gender Ethnic
group
o
) Q
T <
= o
©
2 | =
AMD O&M 13 23 28 8 36
Eastern Basin
AMD O&M 9 35 32 12 44
Central Basin
AMD O&M 6 27 28 5 33
Western Basin
LHWP 0 2 2 0 2
Total O&M 28 87 90 25 115

KNOWLEDGE AND LEARNING

ENTRENCHING THE
KNOWLEDGE AGENDA

TCTA endeavours to engender organisational learning
and growth by leveraging its knowledge assets in
research and evaluation, as well as developing innovative
solutions in water management and infrastructure
development. The organisation captures lessons and
best practices from its diverse projects and associated

interventions addressing challenges to water security,
including those that relate to project structuring and
funding.

It also supports the fostering of inter-institutional
partnerships for enhancing knowledgeability, promoting
best practice across the water value-chain and a
corporate environment that values learning.
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The organisation continued to take active responsibility
for coordination, advisory supportand thoughtleadership
in two pivotal national infrastructure programs. The
first, SIP-3, is directed at the development of the south-
eastern node and corridor, while the second, SIP-18,
deals with the implementation of water and sanitation
infrastructure at the local, regional and national levels.
The effective coordination of both initiatives has a
substantial catalytic effect on the socio-economic
development of the country.

THOUGHT LEADERSHIP IN
THE WATER SECTOR

Over the 2018/19 period, TCTA convened sector-wide
forums to extend its pursuit of thought leadership in the
water sector. The engagement covered a diverse set of
themes related to water resources management, water
services delivery and water infrastructure development.
The specific issues the sessions considered include
effective  water infrastructure development and
coordination, municipal water infrastructure management
and financing, and water valuation and conservation.
Furthermore, TCTA has shone the spotlight on the
growing imperative to diversify the country’s water mix
through non-conventional water sources such as
desalination and reclamation for reuse.

TCTA is entrenching its knowledge and capacity in
seawater desalination through cumulative investment
in a knowledge hub in large-scale desalination. The
desalination knowledge hub anchors a multi-institutional
Desalination Community of Practice that provides a
unigue platform for targeted research and knowledge
exchange. It has established a collaborative partnership
with the Water Research Commission, Department of
Water and Sanitation, Council for Scientific and Industrial
Research, Department of Science and Technology, and
potential project implementers, to explore the pathway
to the first large-scale desalination investments and look
closely into the role of desalination in the water-energy-
climate nexus.

During the review period, TCTA convened and
coordinated a multi-stakeholder sea-water desalination
workshop that attracted the interest of policymakers,
researchers, implementing agencies andindustry leaders.
The workshop provided a platform for knowledge
exchange through intense deliberation, sharing of
information on practical strategies, project experiences,
and current local case studies on desalination and water
reuse projects. Given the imminence of a demand-supply
gap, exacerbated by the effects of climate change, TCTA
is committed to exploring possible alternative water
augmentation solutions and associated infrastructure
investments.

RESEARCH AND
PUBLICATIONS

In 2018/19, TCTA continued to lead research and
generation of technical articles on themes aligned with
the organisation’s business. It researched and prepared
seven articles for publication in local and international
journals. The published articles addressed the critical
and business-linked themes of institutional team
building and organisational performance, the state of
South Africa’s water resources, and the influence of site
selection on seawater desalination capital costs.

Other topics tackled include decision options for the
country’s future seawater desalination investments,
implications of Cape Town water crisis on future water
management and the water security dynamics in South
Africa. The articles sought to establish what the long-
term impact of the various relevant scenarios will be
on socio-economic growth. Lastly, TCTA researched
and published a paper looking at the benchmarking of
potential desalination strategies against international
approaches,
Australian experience. These diverse thought-leading

drawing particular lessons from the
articles on water and development research helped
profile TCTA as a respected knowledge institution, both
locally and internationally.

GENERATING LESSONS
FOR A LEARNING

ORGANISATION

TCTA values continuous organisational learning and
growth and fosters that through focused evaluative work
on its programmes and projects. In this context, during
the year under review, the organisation persisted in
giving prominence to evaluative studies in the pursuit
of effective management of results and promoting
accountability. In particular, the organisation generated
valuable lessons from two evaluative studies that drew
management’s attention to entry points in programming
and implementation. The Communication Programme
and Risk Management System are two of its projects
TCTA reviewed.

Evaluative work will remain central to organisational
learning and will play an important role in mainstreaming
operational and managerial lessons emanating from
our programmes and operations. The evaluations
will enhance TCTA's ability to entrench and reinforce
learning and knowledge flows between employees and
stakeholders for more effective management of results
and the embedment of overall accountability.
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HUMAN CAPITAL,
SOCIAL AND ETHICS
COMMITTEE REPORT

Greg White
Chairperson

| am pleased to present the Human Capital, Social and
Ethics Committee report for the year ended 31 March
2019.

The Human Capital, Social and Ethics Committee
is constituted by the Board to perform an oversight
role in respect of human resources, corporate social
responsibility and the ethics universe. The Committee
assists the Board in ensuring that the TCTA remunerates
fairly, and in a transparent manner so as to promote
the achievement of strategic objectives in the short-,
medium- and long-term. In addition, it exercises
oversight over TCTA's ethics and corporate citizenship
activities, sustainability trends, consumer and stakeholder
relationships, as well as safety, health and environmental
matters.

The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference,
has regulated its affairs in compliance thereof. It is
satisfied that it has discharged its responsibilities as
contained in the terms of reference during the year. The
committee reviewed its terms of reference towards the
beginning of 2019; the revised terms of reference were
approved by the Board on 30 April 2019.

COMPOSITION

The Committee comprises four independent non-
executive directors and the Chief Executive Officer
who is recused from remuneration discussions. The
Board Chairperson is not eligible to be a member of
the committee. Individually and collectively, members
have sound knowledge and experience of strategic and
operational aspects of human resources management,
organisational development and design. Members also
have the requisite knowledge and experience in respect
of corporate ethics and sustainability issues, and social

impact aspects that form an integral component of the
Committee’s responsibilities. Members of executive
management are permanent invitees to meetings.

Refer to pages 71 to 72 for detailed qualifications and
experience of committee members

MEETINGS

Four quarterly meetings and one special meeting were
held during the period under review.

Designations and member attendance during the
reporting period are shown below:

Table 10: Attendance at Human Capital, Social and
Ethics Committee

Name and Designation Attendance

Satish Roopa: Chairman 100%
and Non-Executive

Director

Muzi Chonco: Non- 100%
Executive Director

Simphiwe Khondlo: Non- 100%

Executive Director

Sijabulile Makhathini: 60%
Non-Executive Director

*Ola Busari: Executive 100%
Director (Acting CEO)
**Percy Sechemane: 67%

Executive Director (CEO)

*For the period 1 March to 21 October 2018
**From 22 October 2018
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RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee is, amongst others, responsible for

overseeing the:

e general human capital matters;

e performance management effectiveness;

e talent management;

® remuneration and benefits; and

e organisation’s activities, having regard to any relevant
legislation, other legal requirements or prevailing
codes of best practice for social and ethics matters.
The committee informs the Audit and Risk Committee
on the sustainability risks as recorded in the Risk
Register and provide related input as appropriate.

KEY ISSUES THAT
RECEIVED ATTENTION
DURING THE PERIOD
UNDER REVIEW

e policy development and landscape;

e succession plans for critical roles;

e employee relations monitoring;

® executive management performance contracts and
competency assessments;

e optimisation of the organisational structure;

e human resource and organisational development
reports (quarterly);

e social and ethics reporting (quarterly);

e ethics function and role thereof within the
organisation; and

e effectiveness of organisation-wide communications.

The committee recommended the following for approval
by the Board:

e Corporate Social Investment Strategy;

e  Workplace Relations Strategy;

e Remuneration Strategy;

e Organisational Culture Report and Response Plan;

e Employment Equity Policy;

e Revised Disciplinary Policy and Procedure;

e Learning and Development Policy;

e Talent Management Policy;

e Environmental Policy;

e TCTA Strategic Resourcing Plan and High-Level
Structure;

e Wage Mandate with Organised Labour and Salary
Increments for Non-Bargaining Unit Employees;

e Code of Business Conduct;

e Ethics Policy;

e Conlflict of Interest Policy; and

e Gift and Private Work Policies.

CLOSING REMARKS

The reconstituted following the
appointment of new Board members in May 2019 and
continues to build on the solid foundations established
by the former committee. The committee recognises
that as a knowledge-based organisation, TCTA's human
capital represents its most important asset and is
committed to ensure that this capital base is nurtured
and strengthened to ensure that TCTA fulfils its mandate
and mission, and promotes excellence and sustainability
in all its business activities.

committee was

Greg White
Human Capital, Social and Ethics Committee Chairperson
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VISION, MISSION AND VALUES

Vision

"To be the leader in the sustainable supply of water in
the region”

Mission

“Our mission is to facilitate water security through the
planning, financing and implementation of bulk raw
water infrastructure, in the most cost-effective manner
that benefits water consumers”

Values

"Excellence, Integrity and Respect for one another,
while promoting Unity of Purpose and the Growth of the
Collective.

Excellence

+ consistently give our best, and take pride in our
achievements

« deliver excellent work, efficiently and on time

« think innovatively and creatively to improve our
performance.

Integrity

+ converse honestly and respectfully, stimulating
constructive action

* honour our commitments and truly ‘walk the talk’

* gain trust and credibility through fairness and
mutually cooperative relationships.

Respect

* acknowledge, appreciate and embrace diversity

* honour, respect and consider diverse views and
opinions

* are responsive to one another’s needs and those of
our communities and stakeholders.

Unity

We
+ are united through common goals and the TCTA
vision

* draw on the strengths and skills of our team
« contribute positively to the team’s performance,
spirit and morale.

Growth

We

« willingly share knowledge and information with each
other

+ are innovative and proactive in thought and in action

* support, encourage and provide opportunities for
individual growth.

We conduct our business with professionalism,
uncompromising integrity and diligence. We are
committed to comply with internationally recognised
standards of managerial and technical excellence. We
cherish transparent and consultative relationships with all
our stakeholders. We proactively align ourselves to meet
the challenges of a dynamic environment. We pledge
ourselves to uphold the principles of accountability and
sound governance in executing our duties.

Strategic Goals

Our corporate goals are aligned with the strategic
agenda of the government, in the context of the TCTA
mandate and the expected deliverables. The strategic
goals of TCTA are as follows:

+ Deliver to Ministerial directives relating to the
planning, financing and implementation of bulk raw
water infrastructure, within specifications, agreed
timelines and budget.

«  Operate the business, its projects and processes in a
cost-effective manner, conscious of the imperatives
of public finance management.

*  Ensure that all project activities facilitate social
transformation and build sustainable communities,
by providing jobs and empowering women, the
youth and the disabled.

*  Ensure the continuous availability of high-calibre
human capital for delivering on its organisational
mission into the future.

+  Build the knowledge and capability of the
organisation to support other water institutions,
in pursuit of greater efficiencies in overall water
management and water services delivery.

(=)
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SOCIAL
MANAGEMENT

The social interventions for the reporting period focussed
mainly on stakeholder engagements during the closeout
phases of current projects and planning phases of new
projects as well as Socio-Economic Development and
Corporate Social Investment support.

TCTA has been providing support for extensive
stakeholder engagement at provincial and local levels
during the pre-construction phase of stage 1 (advance
infrastructure) of the uMzimvubu Water Project. The
engagement was aimed at introducing the project,
getting the buy-in and the project social licence,
including to pave the way for further field investigations
and land acquisition. Stakeholder engagement to
support the servitude handover agreements, sign-off
by the landowners/users in ORWRDP-2C, has been
continuing and successful results achieved.

Social Economic Development support focussing mainly
on Corporate Social Investment initiatives (sanitary pads
to the needy girls at local schools) and internships in
partnership with the relevant Ward Councillors in the
Ekurhuleni Municipality and the educational institutes in
the Central and Eastern Basins of the AMD Short-term
Intervention is continuing to be provided.

At ORWRDP-2C the borehole project at Girabola

community was completed including its close-out
report and handed over to the Sekhukhune District

Table 11: Employment and Vacancies

Municipality for operation and maintenance. Further to
this, an agreement was reached with the municipality
and community committees for the donation of
borehole equipment for the projects that were planned
at the Gaphasa and Mampuru but could not go ahead
as ORWRDP-2C project had already been handed over
to DWS.

The social management team is actively involved in the
inception of MCWAP-2A project to ensure that social
issues are proactively addressed in the planning phase
and throughout the project life cycle.

STAFF COMPLEMENT

AND EMPLOYMENT
EQUITY

TCTA's employment numbers for the year ending
31 March 2019 are shown in Table 11. Although 176
positions were approved, only 146 were filled as TCTA
adopted a resourcing strategy which allows flexibility in
terms of filling positions as and when project mandates
are secured.

The financial year 2018/19 marks the end of the three-
year Employment Equity plan. The current three-year
plan with the associated targets and goals stretches
from January 2017 to December 2019, as shown in Table
12 and Table 13. TCTA has shown good results against
its ultimate goals as shown in Table 14.

Level Employment at Appointments* Terminations Employment
beginning of period at end of period
- 1 - 1

Top management

Senior management 8
Professionally qualified 73
Skilled 50
Semi-skilled 8
Unskilled -
Total 139

- 2 8

10 6 76
3 6 47
7 2 14
21 16 146

©
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The breakdown of employment by category and by personnel cost is given in Tables 12 and 13.

Table 12: Employment by Category

Level 2017/2018 2018/2019 2018/2019 2018/2019 Vacancies as

Number of Approved Number of Vacancies percentages
employees* posts employees

Top management 0 1 1 0 -

Senior management 9 10 8 2 20%

Professionally qualified 74 99 76 21 21.2%

Skilled 50 56 47 8 14.3%

Semi-skilled 8 10 14 3 30%

Unskilled - - - - -

Total 141 176 146 34 19.3%

Table 13: Personnel Cost by Employment Category for the period under review*

Personnel Percentage Number employed | Average personnel
expenditure of personnel during period cost per employee
(guaranteed expenditure to R'000
package) total personnel
R'000 cost
Top management 2238 1.33% 1 2238
Senior management 26 599 15.84% 8 3325
Professionally qualified 104 096 61.97% 76 1370
Skilled 32 648 19.44% 47 695
Semi-skilled 2384 1.42% 14 170
Unskilled - - - -
Total 167 966 100% 146 1150

TCTA's Employment Equity status and achievement against set targets for the year under review shows significant
achievement was made with respect to the employment of women in the various employment categories and levels,
especially at senior management level. In this respect, equal remuneration for women and men has been achieved in
TCTA. The challenge for the organization, however, remains to ensure fair representation of people with disabilities.

Targeted recruitment has been prioritized in this regard.

Table 14: Employment and Vacancies

Actual / Target Disabled
Actual 86 50 1.4
Target (31 March 2019) 85.2 49.7 2.5

(=)
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Table 15: Breakdown of Employment Equity by Employment Category as of 31 March 2019

African

Classification

Coloured

Indian White Foreign

Level

Top management 1 -
Senior management 4 - 4 1 - - e

Professionally qualified 31 20 33 24 4 1 3

Skilled 10 24 14 27 1 5 2
Semi-skilled 5 9 4 8 - - -
Unskilled - | - [ | _
Total 51 53 56 60 5 &6 5

Table 16: People Living with Disabilities

I | N |

nationals

Curre

-1 1112
5 2 5 3 5 3 6 3 5 1 4 1
-2 - 2 - 4

Current:

Top management
Senior management
Professionally qualified
Skilled

Semi-skilled

Unskilled

Total

HUMAN CAPITAL PRACTICES

TCTA values its employees and continues to employ

human resource and organizational development

strategies, which position it as an employer of choice.

The organization focused on strategic human resources

activities that continue to have a direct impact on the

productivity and performance levels. The Human

Resource and Organisational Development practices

centred on the following elements:

e the optimal design of the organizational structure
with a strategic resource plan to accompany it;

e the attraction and selection of new talent, fit for the
desired culture;

e the implementation of an appropriate reward and
recognition program;

¢ employee learning and development activities
which complement the skills base required for the
realization of TCTA's vision and mission; and

® improving organizational culture and climate

ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE AND
RESOURCE PLAN

For the year under review, TCTA employed 146 people as
at 31 March 2019, supported by an approved headcount
of 176 for the FY 2018/2019. On an annual basis, a
cautious approach is adopted towards resourcing the
structure. TCTA's planning approach towards the filling
of vacancies is therefore flexible and is informed by
the award of project mandates, reflecting the project
environmentitoperatesin. Acombination of employment
techniques is used, such as permanent placement; fixed-
term contracts; temporary placements; and internal
redeployments. Every attempt is made to optimise the
structure and to appropriately allocate resources. At the
leadership level, a search and selection process for a
new CEO came to fruition. Similarly, the filling of other
critical positions i.e. Company Secretary and the Chief
Internal Auditor were realized. This brought stability to
leadership and critical governance positions.

()
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REMUNERATION

As alluded to above, TCTAs success depends to a
high degree on specialised talent, and in this vein,
remuneration is a key human resource tool to attract,
motivate and retain employees.

While talent is key to success, it is balanced within TCTA
by its pay philosophy which is underpinned by the
principle of pay-for-performance. A second principle
which TCTA subscribes to is fair and transparent
remuneration practices. Thirdly, TCTA ensures internal
and external equity using best practices and comparative
market data.

In order to enhance its Employee Value Proposition (EVP),
TCTA undertook late 2017 an independent remuneration
portfolio review with the intent to ascertain TCTA areas of
improvement. This review resulted in a newly formulated
remuneration strategy, approved by the TCTA Board in
2018, which in return created the momentum to review
the remuneration policy. In 2019 the Board approved the
revised remuneration policy and management amended
the associated processes. In addition to the principles
mentioned above, the strategy considers the long-term
financial wellbeing of its employees, cost control and the

pay gap ratio.

This TCTA remuneration policy applies to all TCTA
employees and the principles described above, guide
remuneration management.

The remuneration policy broadly distinguishes between
two elements, the guaranteed portion and the pay-at-
risk (or commonly referred to as variable pay) element.

Guaranteed Pay

The guaranteed remuneration, or total-cost-to-company,
is determined by three formal pay-lines based on three
employment categories namely critical, important or
administrative roles. These formal paylines are drawn
from national market data on an annual basis, and TCTA
aims to pay at the mid-point of these formal pay-lines.

FOR CRITICALPOSITIONS: - the minimum and maximum
of a formal pay-line shall be 20% below and 25% above
the 75th percentile of national market graded data.

FOR IMPORTANT POSITIONS: the minimum and
maximum of a formal pay-line shall be 20% below and
25% above of the 62nd percentile of national market
graded data.

FOR SUPPORT POSITIONS: the minimum and maximum
of a formal payline shall be 20% below and 25% above
the 50th percentile of national market graded data.

For executive-level positions, a custom survey is
undertaken once per annum with comparable companies
from the Financial, Banking and SOE sectors. During
2018/2019-year TCTA utilised Price Waterhouse Coopers
to conduct the bespoke survey.

The guaranteedpayincludesthe employer’s contributions
to employee benefits (pension, group life insurance and
medical aid insurance), which is a remuneration element
TCTA is progressively growing, since its inception in
2014.

Annual increases are given in line with TCTA's Board
guidance. The Board considers relevant outer and
inner contextual information such as, but not limited
to, economic growth indicators, the Consumer Price
Index (CPI), remuneration trends, TCTA remuneration
portfolio information, and affordability. For the year in
focus, executives annual increase was a cost of living
adjustment as per the Consumer Price Index.

Lastly, during 2018/2019 TCTA underwent an alignment
process where all employees were transitioned to a total-
cost-to-company structure, considering the variations of
structuring that was historic. The opportunity was also
created for employees to define their pensionable and
risk earnings at a reasonable percentage of their total
cost to company.

Variable Pay

With regards to the variable portion of remuneration,
TCTA offers short-term incentives, which is at the
discretion of the Board and is based on organisational,
divisional and individual performance. During the
2018/2019-year TCTA paid out incentives to the value
of R9,776,865.23 to a compliment of 104 employees,
effectively a 1/12th of income earned during the financial
year 2017/2018.

TCTA also cautiously use methods such as attraction
payments, when critical skills are being secured. During
the 2018/2019 financial year only one such payments
were made for a senior employee recruited into a critical
position.

Should the reader wish to refer to actual earnings for
executives, please refer to Note 23.3.3 of the annual
financial statements.

(=)
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CU I_TU RE AN D : Improving HR efficacy;

Strengthening a performance culture (recognizing

ENGAG EM ENT high performers); and

e Aligning systems and processes.
TCTA supports the notion that employees are engaged
when dialogue is prioritized. It has thus adopted an A response plan to the above was developed in

integrated competency framework that recognises 2018/2019 and will continue to be realized in 2019/2020.
employees from a holistic perspective. At the core of

the framework are the following competency categories: In addition, Management and Labour cemented their
Leadership  and  Managerial;  Self-Management; partnership by concluding a Recognition Agreement
Behavioural; Technical and Entry-level Administration. in July 2018. This paved the way to a meaningful
These are underpinned by TCTA values of Unity; Integrity; engagement on all matters of mutual interest.
Respect; Growth and Excellence. All these appeal to the
“Head" (Cognitive); “Heart” (Emotional) and "Hands” TCTA continues to invest in its people through targeted
(performance). training interventions aligned with their performance
development plans (PDPs). On an annual basis, during
At the end of 2017/2018, a climate survey was conducted and after the performance review cycle, employees
and the results indicated that TCTA needed to focus on: commit to improving their skills based on the outcome
* Improving leadership efficacy; of their performance assessments, Table 17 sets out the
* Improving Communication; indicators for training expenditure.

Table 17: Training Costs
Personnel expenditure Training Training expenditure as a Number of Average training
expenditure | percentage of personnel employees trained | cost per employee
R177 572 568.30 R1 863 390.80 1.05% R19 410

Table 18: Reasons for Staff Leaving

2

Death 0 -
Resignation 11 68.75
Dismissal 2 12.50
Retirement 0 -

Il health 0 -
Expiry of contract* 3 18.75
Total 16 100

*Expiry of contract refers to fixed-term contracts ending, not to consultants as per Table 18 above.

TCTA continues to employ sound employee relations management practices through policies that regulate discipline
and professional conduct. Its aim is to encourage employees to develop a working culture that improves performance
and professionalism by adhering to rules, regulations, and procedures. This ensures that a certain standard of conduct
is maintained by all employees and it also sustains a healthy working environment. Cases of misconduct and disciplinary
action taken during this period are set out in Table 19.

Table 19: Labour Relations: Cases of Misconduct and Disciplinary Action

Reason

Verbal warning
Written warning

Final written warning

N N O —

Dismissal

(=)
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LEADERSHIP

The Minister appointed a new Board with effect from 1 May 2019; the National Treasury representative position on
the Board is still vacant. The majority are independent non-executive directors. The following directors have been
appointed:

Figure 17: Board of directors as from 1 May 2019

Gerald Dumas Maemili Ramataboe Simphiwe Khondlo

Independent Non-Executive Independent Non-Executive Independent Non-Executive
Director and Chairperson of Director and Deputy Director
the Board Chairperson of the Board

Satish Roopa Norman Baloyi Mavis Maponya

Independent Non-Executive Independent Non-Executive Independent Non-Executive
Director Director Director

Lindelwa Dlamini Greg White Percy Sechemane

Independent Non-Executive Independent Non-Executive Chief Executive Officer
Director Director
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The areas of expertise of the new Board are set out in Table 20:

Table 20: Areas of expertise of the new Board

Area of Expertise No. of directors with Expertise

Water Board Management 2 25%
Strategic planning 4 50%
New business development 2 25%
Financial management 4 50%
Contract Management 1 13%
Project Management 3 38%
Infrastructure development engineering 1 13%
Investments 3 38%
Development finance 1 13%
Corporate Governance 5 63%
Stakeholder Management/Engagement 1 13%
Compliance 3 38%
Legal compliance 2 25%
Risk Management 3 38%
Corporate Social Investment 1 13%
Change Management 1 13%
Structuring infrastructure projects 1 13%
Environmental strategies 1 13%
Environmental policies development 1 13%
Environmental compliance and reporting 1 13%
Implementation of ISO 14001:2015 1 13%
Labour relations 2 25%
Human resources management 3 38%
Performance management systems 1 13%
Talent Management 1 13%
Transformation designs 1 13%
Accounting and auditing 1 13%
Corporate Treasury 1 13%
Treasury pensions and investments 1 13%

Technology Services 1 13%
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OVERSIGHT

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE ON HUMAN SETTLEMENTS,

WATER AND SANITATION

The Portfolio Committee on Human Settlements, Water
and Sanitation (previously the Portfolio Committee on
Water and Sanitation) oversees the service delivery
performance of TCTA, within the broader context of
its contribution to the sector and the State. During
the reporting period, TCTA attended two Portfolio
Committee meetings, on 18 April 2018 to present the
Corporate Plan for 2018/19 and on 10 October 2018 to
present the Integrated Annual Report for 2017/18. The
main issues were,

SHAREHOLDER'S COMPACT

In terms of Treasury Regulations issued in accordance
with the PFMA, TCTA must, in consultation with the
Executive Authority, agree on its predetermined
objectives, measures and indicators annually. These are
included in the shareholder’s performance agreement

*  The merger of TCTA and the Water Trading Entity;

*  The amount owed by DWS to TCTA,

+ Participation of black industrialists in large water
projects;

*  The appointment of the CEQ,;

* Acid mine drainage; and

* lrregular expenditure.

(Shareholder's Compact) between the TCTA Board and
the Executive Authority. The Shareholder's Compact
promotes good governance practices by clarifying the
roles and responsibilities of the Board and the Executive
Authority.

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY
THE BOARD'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board assumes ultimate responsibility for the
performance and affairs of TCTA. In doing so, it effectively
represents and promotes the organisation’s legitimate
interests, and in turn, as a responsible corporate citizen,
TCTA considers the legitimate needs, interests and
expectations of its shareholder and key stakeholders
now and in the future.

In accordance with the Notice of Establishment 2000, the
TCTA Board is appointed by the Executive Authority (the
Minister of Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation).
The Board provides oversight, strategic direction and
leadership, determines the goals and objectives of
TCTA and approves strategic policies. The Executive
Authority has a duty to, amongst others, ensure that the
appropriate mix of executive and non-executive directors
are appointed and that directors have the necessary
skills, experience and expertise to lead the public entity.

The Board creates sustainable value for our stakeholders
through ethical and effective leadership. It is the focal
point and custodian of good corporate governance in
line with the King IV Code of Corporate Governance (King
IV). The Board sets the strategic direction and the way in
which specific governance areas are conducted within
a framework of effective controls, approved policy and
planning to give effect to TCTA's strategy and direction,
monitors implementation of the strategy and planning,
and finally ensures accountability for organisational

performance through, among others, reporting and
disclosure. The Board acknowledges its crucial role in
exercising ethical and effective leadership to achieve
the necessary governance outcomes. To achieve these
objectives, the Board is committed to ensuring good
corporate governance throughout the organisation, in line
with the recommendations of King IV. The Board ensures
the appropriate application of the principles of King IV
by adopting the required and relevant practices, or
alternative appropriate practices as determined by the
Board, that will give effect to these principles in the
context of the organisation. The King IV application
register is on page 76.

The Board committees assist the Board in discharging
its duties and responsibilities, but without abdicating
the Board's responsibilities. Each committee has
formal, approved, written terms of reference that are
reviewed annually to ensure effective delegation of
roles and responsibilities from the Board. To ensure
effective leadership, the Board monitors how its
committees discharge their responsibilities by annually
setting work plans for each committee and monitors
the implementation thereof with the assistance of the
company secretary. Individual reports from chairs of the
audit and risk committee and the human capital, social
and ethics committee are set out on page 56 and page
106 respectively.

(=)
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BOARD CHARTER

To guide its effective functioning, the Board approved an
amended charter in April 2019, the provisions of which
are subject, at all times, to all statutory and regulatory
requirements, including the Notice of Establishment,
the Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 1999, the
JSE Listings Requirements and King IV. The purpose of
the Board Charter is to regulate the parameters within
which the Board operates and to ensure TCTA applies
the principles of good corporate governance in all
its dealings. The charter also sets out the roles and
responsibilities of the Board and individual directors,
including its composition and relevant procedures of the
Board.

Table 21: Term of Office of Board

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is constituted in terms of the Notice of
Establishment 2000 as well as the Board charter, in line
with the requirements of King IV. The majority of our Board
members are independent non-executive directors, and
individual members bring considerable and diverse
demographics, skills and experience to the Boardroom.
This ensures that decisions are taken prudently and
ensures the interests of the shareholder and key
stakeholders are protected. Directors are appointed
by the shareholder through a formal process, who also
oversees that the required independent background
checks are performed. The following directors’ term of
office ended in 2019:

Ms Z Manase Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairperson of 1 December 2016 to 30 April 2019
the Board

Mr J Modise Independent Non-Executive Director and Deputy 1 December 2016 to 30 April 2019
Chairperson of the Board

Mr M Chonco Independent Non-Executive Director 1 December 2016 to 30 April 2019

Dr M Ellman Independent Non-Executive Director 1 December 2016 to 30 April 2019

Mr S Khondlo Independent Non-Executive Director 1 December 2016 to 30 April 2019

Mr S Roopa Independent Non-Executive Director 1 December 2016 to 30 April 2019

Ms T Moahloli Non-Executive Director 1 December 2016 to 30 April 2019

Ms S Makhathini Independent Non-Executive Director 1 December 2016 to 30 April 2019

The Board thanked all these directors for their contributions and guidance during their tenures and wished them all the
best in their future endeavours. The Board appointments that were made in 2019 are set out on page 66.

INDUCTION AND
TRAINING

On appointment, new directors undergo an induction
programme to facilitate their understanding of the
business environment in which the organisation
operates. This programme is facilitated by the company
secretary and includes among other things, information
and guidance on:

* organisational structure and leadership
configuration;

* business model and funding approach;

» financial performance;

* mandate, ministerial directives and projects; and

* introduction to the business through site visits and
engagement with executive management

Corporate policies and procedures, and information on
directors’ roles and responsibilities in terms of legislation,
regulatory requirements and best practice. All directors
undergo continuing professional development and
are required to attend regular briefings on changes in
legislation, governance and the business environment.

BOARD ATTENDANCE

Attendance is based on four quarterly meetings, ad-hoc
special meetings, a two-day strategy session, a one-
day risk workshop and three special Board meetings,
calculated against the number of meetings a director
was required to attend.

(%)
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Table 22: Attendance at Board Meetings

Atiendance

Ms Z Manase Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairperson of the Board 100%
Mr J Moise Independent Non-Executive Director and Deputy Chairperson of the Board 94%
Mr M Chonco Independent Non-Executive Director 94%
Dr M Ellman Independent Non-Executive Director 82%
Mr S Khondlo Independent Non-Executive Director 76%
Mr S Roopa Independent Non-Executive Director 100%
Ms T Moahloli Non-Executive Director 29%
Ms S Makhathini  Independent Non-Executive Director 71%

Mr P Sechemane  Chief Executive Officer

BOARD LEADERSHIP

A new independent non-executive Chairperson, Mr G
Dumas, was appointed in May 2019. The Board, therefore,
continues to be led by an independent non-executive
Chairperson, in compliance with paragraph 3.84 of the
JSE Listings Requirements and recommended practices
of King IV. The role of the Chairperson is separate and

Table 23: Role and Responsibilities

distinct from that of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
and the separation of powers and responsibilities, as
set out in the Board charter, ensures no single person
has unfettered decision-making powers and that the
appropriate balance of power exists at Board level.

Responsibilities

Chairperson ¢

Deputy .
Chairperson *

CEO c

representing the Board with the shareholder and indirectly with key stakeholders

ensuring the integrity and effectiveness of the Board governance processes

maintaining regular dialogue with the CEO on all operational matters and consult with the Board
on any matter which is a cause for major concern

Acts as a facilitator at Board meetings to ensure no director dominates the discussion, that
appropriate discussion takes place, that members’ opinions are aired, and discussions result in
logical and understandable outcomes

Plays a crucial role in ensuring the Board is properly led

Provides the necessary direction for an ethical and effective Board and should form the link
between the Board, CEO and management

Leading in the absence of the Chairperson

Serving as a sounding board for the Chairperson

Acting as an intermediary between the Chairperson and other members of the governing body, if
necessary

Dealing with stakeholder’ concerns where contact through normal channels has failed, or where
such contact is inappropriate

Chairing discussions and decision making by the governing body on matters where the
Chairperson has a conflict of interest

Leading the performance appraisal of the Chairperson

Leading the execution of approved strategy, policy and operational planning and the chief link
between management and the Board

Monitoring and managing the day-to-day operational requirements and administration of the
organisation

Developing and recommending business plans, policies and objectives for consideration by the
Board and considering the business, economic and political trends that may affect the operations
of the organisation

Managing/ensuring the submission of reports, financial statements and consolidated budgets for
consideration by the Board

Overseeing the financial management of the organisation, including financial planning, cash flow
and management reporting

Involving himself in organisational affairs via the executive committee and acting as its
Chairperson

Not causing or permitting any practice, activity or decision by the organisation that is contrary to
commonly accepted good business practice, good corporate governance or professional ethics

()
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises the appropriate balance
of knowledge, skills, experience, diversity and
independence to discharge its governance role and
responsibilities objectively and effectively. In line with
King IV, non-executive members may be categorised as
independent if the Board concludes there is no interest,
position, association or relationship which, when judged
from the perspective of a reasonable and informed
third party, is likely to influence unduly or cause bias in
decision making in the best interest of the organisation.
Only one non-executive director has served on the Board
in an independent capacity for over nine years. After a
formal assessment, the Board has been concluded that
this member exercises objective judgement and there is
no interest, position, association or relationship which,
when judged from the perspective of a reasonable and
informed third party, is likely to influence unduly or cause
bias in decision making. The Board also concluded that
the majority of directors are independent.

Figure 18: Board composition

® Independent non-executive directors: 77.8%
©® Non-executive directors: 11.1%

® Executive directors: 11.1%

The Board skills are shown in Table 24.
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Table 24: Board Skills and Experience

Surname and

Initials

Gencer |G
B

Independent Non-
Executive Director,
Board Chairperson,
Governance and
Sustainability
Committee
Chairperson

Capacity on
the Board
and Board
Committees

* BCom

* BCompt (Hons)
* HDip (Hons)

» CA(SA)

Surname and
Initials

Mr S Roopa

Independent Non-
Executive Director,
Human Capital, Social
and Ethics Committee
Chairperson,
Member of Audit

and Risk Committee,
Member of Finance
Committee, Member
of Governance

and Sustainability
Committee, Member
of Nominations
Committee.

Capacity on
the Board
and Board
Committees

B Juris

LLB

M.Phil.

Certificate: Transfor-
mation of Institutes
of Higher Education
Certificate: Execu-
tive Programme for
Leaders in Govern-
ment

Certificate: Negoti-
ating International
Contracts & Devel-
opment Finance
Certificate: Global
Housing Trends

Ms Z P Manase Mr JRD Modise
58 53

52
M M
B B

Independent Non-
Executive Director,
Board Deputy
Chairperson, Audit
and Risk Committee
Chairperson,
Nominations

Independent Non-
Executive Director,
Technical Committee
Chairperson, Member
of Human Capital,
Social and Ethics
Committee, Member

Committee of Governance

Chairperson, Member  and Sustainability

of Governance Committee,

and Sustainability Nominations

Committee Committee

* BCom + BSc Civil

* BAcc Engineering (Agric)

« CA (SA), * MSc (Eng

* SAICA Management)

« MBA « Dip: Project

* Advanced Management
Management « Certificate: Property
Programme Practitioner Practice

Ms DT Moahloli Mr MM Choco
37 39
F M
B B

Non-Executive
Director, Member of
Finance Committee
Member of Technical

Independent Non-
Executive Director,
Member of Human
Capital, Social and

Committee Ethics Committee,
Member of Technical
Committee, Member
of Finance, Member
of Nominations
Committee
* BSc * BSc
* BA (Hons) * BSc (Hons) (Hydro-
(Economics) geology)
* MA (Economic < PDBA
Science) « MBA

Dr MJ Eliman
34 72
F M
B C

Independent Non-
Executive Director,
Member of Audit
and Risk Committee,
Member of Human
Capital, Social and
Ethics Committee,
Member of Technical

Independent Non-
Executive Director,
Finance Committee
Chairperson,
member of Audit
and Risk Committee,
Member of Technical
Committee, Member

Committee, of Governance
Nominations and Sustainability
Committee Committee
* BCom (Accounting) * BSc (Chem Eng)
* BCom (Hons) * MSc (Chem Eng)
(Accounting * PhD (Chem Eng)
Sciences) « MBA
Postgrad
* Diploma: Accounting
Science
+ Certificate: Theory in
Accounting
CA(SA), SAICA
Prof O Busari Mr DKP
Sechemane
57
M M
B B

Executive Director:
Chief Executive
Officer for the period
22 October 2018 to

Executive Director:
Acting Chief Executive
Officer for the period

1 March to 21 October

2018 present

* BCom
* MBA

* BSc (Hon) Civil
Engineering

* MSc Eng
Engineering / Hydro
Geology

* PhD: Water Resource
Management

* MBA

» Advanced
(Environmental)
Isotopes Program

()
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Figure 19: Board gender, racial and age diversity'

Racial Diversity

® African: 62.5%
® Indian: 12.5%
® White: 25%

® Male: 75%

BOARD EVALUATION

Formal evaluations of the Board, committees and
individual directors shall be performed at least every
second year by an independent third party. During the
period under review, no performance appraisal was
conducted.

GOVERNING BODY
COMMITTEES

The Board established six committees to assist in
discharging its responsibilities, namely the Audit and
Risk Committee, Finance Committee, Human Capital,
Social and Ethics Committee, Technical Committee,
Governance and Sustainability Committee and the
Nominations Committee.  Delegating authority to
Committees does not in any way release the Board of its
duties and responsibilities.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee complies with
all applicable and relevant legal and regulatory
requirements as necessary under legislation. Also, it
applies the corporate governance principles for audit
committees as required by King IV.

The Board recognises the important role of the Audit
and Risk Committee as part of the risk management
and corporate governance processes and procedures
of TCTA. The Committee’s mandate is amongst others
to review the effectiveness of internal controls, ensure

Gender Diversity

25%
VEY

® Female: 25%

Age Diversity

® 60 years and above: 20%
©® 50 to 59 years: 50%
® 30to 39 years: 30%

satisfactory standards of governance and compliance,
maintain oversight for financial results and integrated
reporting, oversee risk management including risk
control systems. In this regard, the committee also has
oversight of financial reporting risks, internal financial
risks as well as fraud and IT risks as they relate to financial
reporting.

Refer to page 106 for the Chairperson’s report that
reflects the composition, role and responsibilities of
the committee as well as and the members’ attendance
record during the period under review.

Finance Committee

The committee comprises four non-executive directors
and the Chief Executive Officer. Executive managers
attend all meetings by invitation. The committee’s
mandate as set out in its terms of reference is, amongst
others, to consider finance policies and strategies, the
organisational budget, bridging facilities, water tariff
setting review, strategic guidance and effective oversight
on procurement activities and processes including the
supply chain management system to ensure that same
is consistent with the Preferential Procurement Policy
Framework Act, the Broad-Based Black Economic
Empowerment Act and relevant National Treasury
Regulations.

Four quarterly meetings and five special meetings were
held during the period under review. Designations and
attendance for the reporting period are shown in Table
25.

)
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Table 25: Attendance at Finance Committee Meetings

Name and Designation Attendance

Michael Ellman: Chairperson and 100%
Non-Executive Director

Satish Roopa: Non-Executive 100%
Director

Muzi Chonco: Non-Executive 90%
Director

Tshepiso Moahloli: Non-Executive 40%
Director and National Treasury

Representative

*Ola Busari: Executive Director 100%
(Acting CEO)

**Percy Sechemane: Executive 50%

Director (CEO)

*For the period 1 March to 21 October 2018
**For the period 22 October 2018 to present

Human Capital, Social and Ethics
Committee

The committee comprises four non-executive directors
and the Chief Executive Officer who is recused during
remuneration decisions. As required by King IV, this
committee oversees and monitors TCTA activities
in relations to social and economic development,
corporate citizenship and ethical behaviour, stakeholder
and consumer relations as well as safety, health and
environmental issues; the committee also performs
an oversight role in respect of remuneration, human
resource and organisational development matters. The
committee, therefore, assists the Board in ensuring
that the TCTA remunerates fairly, responsibly and in a
transparent manner so as to promote the achievement of
strategic objectives and positive outcomes in the short-,
medium-, and long-term.

Refer to pages 56 for the Chairperson’s report that
reflects the composition, role and responsibilities of
the committee as well as and the members’ attendance
record during the period under review.

Technical Committee

The committee comprises four non-executive members
and the Chief Executive Officer. The committee is
chaired by a non-executive director, appointed by the
Board. Executive managers have a standing invitation

to attend all meetings. The committee assists the
Board in providing strategic leadership to management
on project technical management related functions
and has oversight on organisational project technical
management functions.

Four quarterly meetings were held during the period
under review. Designations and attendance for the
reporting period are shown below:

Table 26: Attendance at Technical Committee
Meetings

Name and Designation Attendance

Simphiwe Khondlo: Chairperson 100%
and Non-Executive Director

Michael Ellman: Non-Executive 100%
Director

Sijabulile Makhathini: Non- 100%
Executive Director

Muzi Chonco: Non-Executive 100%
Director

Tshepiso Moahloli: Non-Executive 25%
Director and National Treasury

Representative

*Ola Busari: Executive Director 100%
(Acting CEO)

**Percy Sechemane: Executive 0%

Director (CEQO)

*For the period 1 March to 21 October 2018
**For the period 22 October 2018 to present

Governance and Sustainability
Committee

The committee comprises five non-executive directors
and the Chief Executive Officer as an ex officio member
and is being chaired by the Board Chairperson.
Executive managers have a standing invitation to attend
all meetings.

The committee is mandated by the Board to provide
strategic guidance and oversight on sustainability
responsibilities, stakeholder management, the setting of
the business direction and strategy, including oversight
on the performance and reporting of the business.

Five meetings were held during the period under review.
Designations and attendance for the reporting period
are shown in Table 26.
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Table 27: Attendance at Governance and Sustainability
Committee Meetings

Attendance

Zodwa Manase  Independent Non- 100%
Executive Director
and Chairperson

Jacob Modise Independent Non- 60%
Executive Director

Michael Ellman  Independent Non- 100%
Executive Director

Simphiwe Independent Non- 80%

Khondlo Executive Director

Satish Roopa Independent Non- 60%
Executive Director

*Ola Busari Executive Director 100%
9Acting CEO)

**Percy Executive Director 100%

Sechemane (CEO)

*For the period 1 March to 21 October 2018
**For the period 22 October 2018 to present

Table 28: Governance and Sustainability Committee
Key Focus Areas

Key focus areas 2019/20

The Board dissolved the committee in May 2019; the
governance responsibilities have subsequently been
delegated to the Nominations Committee and the
sustainability responsibilities to the Human Capital,
Social and Ethics Committee.

Nominations Committee

The committee comprised five non-executive members
and is chaired by the Deputy Board Chairperson. The
mandate of the committee is, amongst others, to oversee
the appointments of the Chief Executive Officer, the
Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Operations Officer, the
Company Secretary, the Chief Internal Auditor and other

members of Executive Management. The committee
also assists the Executive Authority with succession
planning for non-executive directors.

The committee was renamed the Nominations and
Governance Committee in May 2019. Going forward,
it will assist the Board in overseeing the process of
appointments of the Chief Executive Officer and the
Company Secretary.

If required, assist with the appointment process
for members of the Board by recommending the
qualifications and capabilities required for new members
for onward submission to the Executive Authority
and participate in the process of other executive
appointments, develop and oversee the induction
programme for new directors and the continuous
development and training of directors as well as
overseeing the formal performance evaluation process
of the Board and its committees.

Ten meetings were held during the period under review.
Designations and attendance for the reporting period
are shown in Table 28.

Table 29: Attendance at Nominations Committee
Meetings

Name and Designation Attendance

Jacob Modise: Chairperson and 88%
Non-Executive Director

Michael Ellman: Non-Executive 100%
Director

Sijabulile Makhathini: Non- 75%
Executive Director

Muzi Chonco: Non-Executive 75%
Director

Satish Roopa: Non-Executive 100%
Director

Simphiwe Khondlo: Non-Executive 88%

Director

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mrs W de Witt was appointed as company secretary
from 1 October 2018. The Board recognises the pivotal
role of the company secretary in establishing effective
processes and systems to ensure that good corporate
governance forms part of the fibre of the organisation and
is entrenched in its culture.

In compliance with paragraph 3.84(i) of the JSE Listings
Requirements, an annual evaluation of the incumbent
company secretary will be carried out in 2019 to consider
and satisfy the Board of Mrs De Witt's competence,
qualifications and experience. The Board is comfortable
that she maintains an arms-length relationship with
individual directors and confirms that she is neither a
director nor public officer of the organisation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Figure 20: Corporate Governance Framework
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KING IV

Since the publication of King IV in November 2016, TCTA has made significant progress to ensure that every director
and employee understands the importance of good corporate governance and that all need to play a part in ensuring
that TCTA acts as a responsible corporate citizen.

In line with King IV's to ‘apply and explain’ as a way of supporting a claim that good governance is practised, for each
King principle our actions, as well as associated policies and processes, are summarised to support our claim of good
corporate governance.

The dashboard developed using the Governance Instrument and the application register below explains the application
of each of the 16 principles within TCTA.

Figure 21: King IV Dashboard

King IV™ Dashboard - Current Review

Trans Caledon Tunnel Authority Run Date: 6/3/2019 1:46:26PM
Registration Number: 4360104923 Prepared by Sandile Mabaso

King IVIM Management Review

Completeness Meter
40 0

Last Updated: 25 Apr 2019
Last Archived: 31 Jan 2019
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Table 30: Application of King IV Principles

KING IV PRINCIPLE APPLICATION OF A PRINCIPLE

Principle 1:

The governing body should lead
ethically and effectively.

Principle 2:

The governing body should
govern the ethics of the
organisation in a way that supports
the establishment of an ethical
culture.

Principle 3:

The governing body should
ensure that the organisation is
and is seen to be a responsible
corporate citizen.

Principle 4:

The governing body should
appreciate that the organisation’s
core purpose, its risks and
opportunities, strategy, business
model, performance and
sustainable development are all
inseparable elements of the value
creation process.

The Board assumes responsibility for the governance of ethics by setting the
direction for how ethics should be approached and addressed. The Board has
approved the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the Gifts Policies as
well as the Conlflict of Interest Policy providing for arrangements that familiarise,
directors, employees and other stakeholders with the ethical standards of the
organisation.

The members of the Board hold each other accountable for ethical decision-
making and behaviour. The Human Capital Social and Ethics Committee assists
the Board with monitoring and reporting on social, ethical and transformational
practices that support an ethical culture. This includes monitoring adherence to
the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to directors’ employees
and are incorporated by reference in employee contracts and form the
contractual obligations supplier contracts. The codes of Business Conduct
and Ethics are included in employee and director programmes. Ethical
standards are incorporated into organisational policies and procedures, and
the implementation thereof is monitored by the Human Capital, Social and
Ethics Committee.

"Tip-offs Anonymous” is an independently run mechanism which enables
employees and third parties to report any perceived or alleged irregular and
unethical behaviour in a confidential and controlled manner. The allegations
received, via this mechanism, are reported to the Chief Internal Auditor, which
reports to the Audit and Risk Committee in this regard.

The Board ensures that organisational responsibilities for corporate citizen
efforts comply with laws, standards and internal policies and procedures.
The Board has oversight and monitors the performance against measures
and targets agreed to and set out in the TCTA Corporate Plan, including the
Predetermined Objectives, which are annually approved by the shareholder.
Targets are set and measured across areas relating to the workplace, economy,
society and environment; these objectives are aligned and give expression to
the public-interest mandate of TCTA.

The Board is responsible for aligning TCTA's strategic objectives, vision
and mission with performance and sustainability considerations. While the
formulation and development of the organisation’s short-, medium- and
long-term strategy are delegated to management, the Board oversees the
implementation of the strategy.

The Board adopts a stakeholder-inclusive approach in its decision-making
to ensure that legitimate and reasonable stakeholder needs, interests and
expectations are considered for sustainable value creation. The Board also
reviews and monitors the capital and resources required for the achievement
of the organisation strategy.

TCTA has put in place a formal risk management process, which considers the
full range of material risks, including strategic and operational risks that might
affect its performance and sustainability. The Audit and Risk Committee assists
with the governance of risk by continuously monitoring risks and ensuring that
appropriate controls are in place.
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KING IV PRINCIPLE APPLICATION OF A PRINCIPLE

Principle 5:

The governing body should
ensure that reports issued by the
organisation enable stakeholders
to make informed assessments of
the organisation’s performance,
and its short-, medium- and
long-term prospects.

Principle é:

The governing body should serve
as the focal point and custodian
of corporate governance in the
organisation.

Principle 7:

The governing body should
comprise the appropriate balance
of knowledge, skills, experience,
diversity and independence for it
to discharge its governance role
and responsibilities objectively and
effectively.

Principle 8:

The governing body should
ensure that its arrangements

for delegation within its own
structures promote independent
judgement and assist with balance
of power and the effective
discharge of its duties.

Principle 9:

The governing body should
ensure that the evaluation of

its own performance and that
of its committees, its chair and
its individual members, support
continued improvement in its
performance and effectiveness.

The Integrated Annual Report presents the financial and non-financial
information of TCTA in an integrated manner. This report provides stakeholders
with a balanced and holistic view of the organisation’s financial, social,
environmental and economic impacts so that they can better understand the
organisation’s short-, medium- and long-term prospects.

Information on value creation is presented in a concise, understandable and
contextualised manner so that the integrated performance of the organisation
and its prospects are clear.

The organisation strives to continually improve the way in which it communicates
with stakeholders through its reporting practices.

The Board's role, responsibilities, membership requirements and procedural
conduct are documented in a charter. The Board Charter includes the protocol
to be followed if any of its members or any of its Committees need to obtain
independent professional advice at the cost of the organisation.

The Board will also put in place the protocol to be followed by its non-executive
members for requisitioning documentation from and setting up meetings with
management.

The non-executive members of the Board are appointed by the Minister of
Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation, while the Chief Executive (the
only Executive member) is appointed by the Board. These appointments are
effected in accordance with the Notice of Establishment 2000. Although the
Board does not have the power to nominate and elect members, it actively
seeks to collaborate with the shareholder in this regard.

Details of the directors are provided in the Integrated Annual Report that is
available on our website at www.tcta.co.za.

The Board has formally delegated, particular roles and responsibilities to
standing committees, without abdicating its responsibility. The Board has
established the following committees:

e Audit and Risk Committee;

»  Governance and Sustainability Committee;

*  Human Capital, Social and Ethics Committee;
*  Nominations Committee;

e Technical Committee; and

* Finance Committee.

Delegations to Board Committees are recorded by means of using formal
terms of reference that is annually reviewed, and any amendments to it,
approved by the Board.

During the period under review, the Board's performance was not formally
evaluated. However, no material concerns were identified about the
performance by the Board or any of its committees during this period. Due to
the lack of conducting such an assessment, assurance cannot be given on the
performance and effectiveness of the Board.

The Minister of Water and Sanitation has appointed a new Board with effect 1
May 2019. The Board annual plan 2019/20 makes provision for Board and Board
Committee self-assessments to be performed during the current financial
year. A service provider would be appointed to facilitate the independent
performance assessment of the Board during the first quarter in 2020/21.
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KING IV PRINCIPLE APPLICATION OF A PRINCIPLE

Principle 10:

The governing body should
ensure that the appointment of,
and delegation to management
contribute to role clarity and the
effective exercise of authority and
responsibilities.

Principle 11:

The governing body should
govern risk in a way that supports
the organisation in setting and
achieving its strategic objectives.

The CEO reports to the Board and is a member of the Finance, Technical and
Human Capital, Social and Ethics Committees. The CEO has declared to the
Board his membership to governing bodies outside the organisation. The
Board, through its Nominations Committee, would put in place a succession
plan for the CEQO.

The Board has delegated certain responsibilities to management via the CEO,
and these are set out in the Strategic Delegation of Authority Matrix. This matrix
is annually reviewed, and changes to it, approved by the Board. The Board is
satisfied that the Organisation is appropriately resourced and that delegation
to management supports effective governance.

The Board has appointed a Company Secretary with effect 1 October 2018 who
provides independent corporate governance services. The Board is satisfied
with the competence of the Company Secretary, and that the office of the
Company Secretary is empowered and carries the necessary authority.

The Board has approved the employment contract and remuneration of the
Company Secretary.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the governance of risk and has assigned
oversight of the organisation’s risk management function to the Audit and Risk
Committee.

TCTA has adopted an enterprise-wide approach to risk management, enabling
a formal and systematic process for identifying and assessing the organisation’s
material risks.

The Board has an approved Risk Management Policy and formal Risk Charter
that defines the objectives and governance of risk management. The policy
involves continuous risk and opportunity identification at both strategic and
operational level, as well as the evaluation of mitigating controls.

Although the Audit and Risk Committee assess the levels of risk tolerance and
risk appetite for the organisation, ultimately the Board has overall responsibility
for determining the risk tolerance.

Management is accountable to the Board for designing, implementing and
monitoring the processes of risk management and integrating them into the
day-to-day activities of the organisation.

TCTA applies a combined assurance model in its management of corporate
risk, with both internal and external service providers providing assurance over
the process.

The Board oversees this and monitors the effectiveness of the organisation’s risk
management processes through the Audit and Risk Committee. The Board is
satisfied that the risk management process at TCTA is effective in continuously
assessing risks and opportunities and ensuring that these risks are managed in
line with business strategy.
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KING IV PRINCIPLE APPLICATION OF A PRINCIPLE

Principle 12:

The governing body should
govern technology and
information in a way that
supports the organisation setting
and achieving its strategic
objectives.

Principle 13:

The governing body should
govern compliance with
applicable laws and adopted,
non-binding rules, codes and
standards in a way that supports
the organisation in being ethical
and a good corporate citizen.

Principle 14:

The governing body should
ensure that the organisation
remunerates fairly, responsibly
and transparently so as to
promote the achievement of
strategic objectives and positive
outcomes in the short-, medium-,
and long-term.

Information Technology (IT) is seen as a fundamental enabler within TCTA
and is essential to the support, growth and sustainability of the Organisation’s
ambitions.

TCTA has a dedicated IT department, under the Executive Enterprise-Wide
Support Services division that represents the department in all the forums.
The IT strategy, which is aligned to the overall business strategy, guides
appropriate investment in IT systems and technology. The overall responsibility
for IT governance lies with the Board, which has delegated the day-to-day
management of IT and tasked management with the implementation of an IT
governance framework. Information and technology risk is integrated into the
organisation’s risk management processes and is considered by the Audit and
Risk Committee as part of its oversight of IT risk.

The Board ensures compliance with applicable legislation and regulations
through the establishment of the organisation’s regulatory universe containing
all the legislation applicable to the organisation.

Compliance is a non-negotiable part of TCTAs ethos and is integral to every
activity and operation of the organisation. A Compliance Framework and Policy
has been adopted and this clearly states TCTAs commitment to comply not
only with legislation but also with codes, standards and best practice.

The identification of statutory obligations is part of the compliance culture
within TCTA as are continuous monitoring and reporting in a pro-active and
positive manner.

TCTA's Regulatory Universe prioritising key legislation for the organisation has
been created and it lists all sections of the laws and regulations which impose a
responsibility on TCTA and forms a focus of compliance monitoring.

Compliance with procurement legislation is also closely monitored through
TCTA's Supply Chain Management department. The department is required
to ensure that all divisions implement any changes and challenges are
immediately managed throughout the organisation. Strict adherence to supply
chain management regulations is critical, as is the avoidance of any real or
perceived conflict of interest.

The organisation has a Compliance Officer who is responsible for ensuring that
the organisation’s compliance processes are adequate and effective in order to
fulfil its legal and regulatory responsibilities.

There have been no regulatory penalties, sanctions or fines for non-compliance
or contravention of statutory obligations by the Board or senior management
during the 2018/2019 financial year.

The Human Capital Social and Ethics Committee operates under the delegated
authority of the Board and fulfils the important function of ensuring that
remuneration is responsible and fair across the organisation. The Committee
also ensures that remuneration disclosures are accurate, complete and
transparent.
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KING IV PRINCIPLE APPLICATION OF A PRINCIPLE

Principle 15:

The governing body should
ensure that assurance services
and functions enable an effective
control environment, and that
these support the integrity of
information for internal decision-
making and of the organisation’s
external reports.

Principle 16:

In the execution of its governance
role and responsibilities, the
governing body should adopt a
stakeholder inclusive approach
that balances the needs, interests
and expectations of material
stakeholders in the best interests
of the organisation over time.

TCTA adopts a “combined assurance” framework which aims to optimise
the assurance coverage obtained from management and internal assurance
providers on the risk areas affecting the organisation.

TCTA' combined assurance framework is integrated with the organisation’s risk
management approach. Risks facing the organisation are identified, evaluated
and then managed through the implementation of various risk mitigation
strategies.

An assurance on the effectiveness of the organisation’s risk-mitigating controls
is obtained from various assurance providers in a coordinated manner, which
avoids duplication of effort.

The Audit and Risk Committee consider the risks and the assurance provided
through the combined assurance framework, and periodically advises the
Board on the state of risks and controls in TCTA" operating environment. This
information is used as the basis for the Board's review, sign-off and reporting to
stakeholders (via the TCTA Integrated Annual Report) on risk management and
the effectiveness of internal controls within the organisation.

The Board has delegated the governance of stakeholder relationships to the
Human Capital, Social and Ethics Committee. A formal, inclusive Stakeholder
Engagement Framework is in place which has been approved by the Board.

Disclosures on the organisation’s key stakeholders, engagement objectives and
stakeholder focus areas are contained in the TCTA Integrated Annual Report
that is available on our website.

DELEGATION TO MANAGEMENT

The strategic delegation of authority matrix is reviewed annually to provide direction and delegate power to
management via the CEO. The Board is satisfied that the matrix contributes to role clarity and the effective exercise of

authority and responsibilities.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Our executive committee comprises the CEO, the Chief .

Financial Officer and six members of top management
as shown in the Organisational Structure on page 25.
The Chief Internal Auditor has a standing invitation to
attend all executive committee meetings. The Board
delegates authority to executive management, via the
CEOQ, to manage, direct, control and coordinate the day-
to-day business activities and affairs of the organisation,
subject to statutory limits and other limitations set out in
the strategic delegation-of-authority matrix. Within the
authorities delegated by the Board, the key tasks of the
executive committee are to:

oversee the financial, operational and performance
of the organisation;

guide the organisation in respect of key stakeholder
relations;

develop and recommend a strategy for approval by
the board and oversee the implementation of such a
strategy;

receive and consider regular reports from senior
management to monitor and drive improved
financial performance;

keep under review the adequacy of reporting
arrangements and effectiveness of internal control
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and risk management;

* approve expenditure, tenders and other financial
commitments as specified in the delegations-of-
authority;

* where expenditure and other financial commitments
are above authorities delegated to the executive
committee, make recommendations to the Board
seeking the necessary approvals;

« consider all submission papers intended for
consideration by the board and board committees
ahead of circulation, or making recommendations to
the board;

+ perform other functions as determined by the board
from time to time; and

+ review and approve terms of references for relevant
management committees.

Figure 22: EXCO gender and race diversity as of 31 March 2019

Racial Diversity

Gender Diversity

® African: 62.5%
® Indian: 12.5%
® White: 25%

® Female: 25%
© Male: 75%

CODE OF BUSINESS ETHICS

Ethics involves applying moral standards which are
supported by values, to shape the decisions and
actions of individuals in the organisation in the pursuit
of our business objectives. In line with our vision to
be the leader in the sustainable supply of water in the
region, the conduct of our business and employees is
characterised by fundamental values which have been
developed for the benefit of TCTA and its employees
to guide the moral way of acceptable and responsible
behaviour.

TCTA values provide general guidelines on how we
interact with each other and our stakeholders, reflecting
what is important to us and how we conduct ourselves.
Recognising that our public reputation is one of our most
important assets, we are committed to achieving the
highest ethical standards in all our business operations.

TCTA recognises our obligations to all our stakeholders,
particularly, our client, employees, business partners, the
authorities, the environment and the wider community.
In all our actions, the values and associated behaviours
must be used to guide and direct the way we conduct
ourselves. The code of business conduct is supported
by organisational policies and procedures. The Board
has approved a revised code of business conduct in
November 2018 which contain the ethical standards to
which we commit ourselves. This code should be read
in conjunction with other organisational policies and
procedures, specifically the following:

*  Whistle-blowing Policy;

+  Ethics Policy;

*  Fraud Prevention Plan;

+ Anti-money Laundering Policy;
«  Conflicts of Interest Policy; and
+  Gifts Policy.
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CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Board has also adopted a revised conflict-of-
interest policy late in 2018, which reinforced that ethical
and responsible leadership and effective governance
practices require that all employees act in the best
interest of their employer and requires employees to
make fair and objective decisions.

It is therefore not permissible for employees or their
related parties to engage in conduct, whether by acting

or failing to act, that would amount to a conflict or the
potential of a conflict of interest with the organisation.

The responsibility for avoiding conflicts of interest
does not end with individual employees or directors
but extends to their close family and friends or other
beneficiaries who may have interests that conflict with
those of TCTA.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management in TCTA is fundamental for the
delivery of the organisation’s mandate, and achievement
of all corporate objectives. The TCTA Board exercises
oversight in the implementation and management of
risks with the organisation.

TCTA has adopted an enterprise-wide risk management
framework, which allows a holistic view and management
of all strategic, operational, project and financial risks

RISK MANAGEMENT
GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT

A sound risk governance structure provides a solid
foundation for embedding an effective risk management
culture within the organisation. TCTA recognises that

risk management requires a team-based approach for
effective application across the organisation. In order
to ensure that risk management is embedded within
all levels of the organisation, the Board has delegated
the responsibility of managing risks to management.
Management ensures that all risks affecting their areas of
responsibility are identified and mitigated to acceptable
tolerance levels.

APPROACH TO RISK
MANAGEMENT

The management of risk at TCTA entails proactive
identification of potential risks and opportunities in
a continuous and systematic manner in accordance
with the enterprise risk management framework. This
approach enables TCTA to manage risks to an acceptable
tolerance level. The risks are identified, evaluated and
managed at the appropriate levels, and their collective
impact is aggregated.
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RISK RESPONSIBILITIES WITHIN TCTA

Table 31: Risk Responsibilities within TCTA

Responsible Party | Responsibilities

Board of Directors The Board is responsible for risk governance which includes strategic decision
making and risk oversight. Through its sub-committees, the Board recognises
all material risks which TCTA is exposed to and ensures that the requisite risk
management culture, practices, policies, resources and systems are in place and
functioning effectively.

Audit and Risk Committee The Audit and Risk Committee of the Board is responsible for assisting the Board
in its oversight role. It assists the Board with oversight of an effective policy and
plan for risk management. The Committee is aware of and concurs with TCTA's
risk tolerance. It reviews TCTASs portfolio of risks against the organisations risk
appetite and tolerance. The Committee is aware of TCTA's significant risks and
determines whether management is responding appropriately to identify risks.

Executive Committee The Executive Committee sets the tone of risk management from the top that
affects the integrity and ethics and other factors of the control environment within
TCTA. It also ensures that TCTA has sound risk management and corporate
governance practices and processes.

Business Units The business units are responsible for implementing and monitoring the process of
risk management and integrating these into the day-to-day operational activities of
TCTA. They are also responsible for ensuring that risks impacting the achievement
of the business objectives are identified, assessed, managed, monitored, and
reported effectively within defined risk appetites and risk management strategies.

Risk Management Division The Risk Management division develops and implements the enterprise-wide risk
management architecture including; the risk management policy, framework, plan
and processes that ensure that TCTA's risks are identified and effectively managed.
The division also determines the standards and information systems that support
risk monitoring and reporting.

Internal and External Audit Internal and External audit provides assurance on the effectiveness of the control
environment.

RlSK MANAG EM ENT risks were mitigated in line with the organisational risk
appetite and tolerance level.
Some of the strategic and key risks identified during the
Towards the end of the financial year an ACL GRC risk year were as follows:
management software was acquired. The system will

be used for effective management of risks within the

organisation thereby improving the tracking mitigation Strategic risks
and provision of integrated and comprehensive data

management. The following were some of the key strategic risks
identified during the financial year:

MANAG EM ENT OF RlSK e Government perforn;alnce risl; — this risk relates
to government’s inability to honour commitments
DU Rl NG TH E Fl NANClAI— made on certain projects. There have been delays

YEAR in payment of water revenues by DWS during most

of the financial year. Continual discussions were
The risk management implementation plan approved held between TCTA and the DWS during the year
by the Board at the beginning of the year has been in order to manage this risk. The situation improved
successfully implemented. The strategic, operational significantly as at 31 March 2019 when, of the R2.3
and project risks were reviewed in order to ensure that billion invoiced, only R219 million, relating to the VRS
all identified and emerging risks are organisational project, was past due.

=)



PART E: GOVERNANCE

Inefficient ICT — ICT challenges caused by ageing
infrastructure. ~ The newly acquired Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP), Oracle system, was not
successfully implemented. As a result, the Human
Resources (HR) module is functioning and operational
whilst the Finance and the Supply Chain Management
modules have been halted pending the outcome of
the gap analysis which will determine the way forward.
In the meantime, a decision was taken to revert to
the ACCPAC system for financial management and
accounting.

Non - compliance with TCTA policies, governing
legislation and other prescripts”. The introduction
of the National Treasury note 3 presented some
onerous processes which are not aligned to industry
practice. This resulted in the organisation incurring
irregular expenditure. TCTA has since approached
the National Treasury in this regard.

Operational risks

The key project risks is the failure to implement projects

within approved timelines. The following projects were
affected:

Berg River Voélvlei Augmentation Scheme (BRVAS).

The BRVAS project was delayed due to the inability
to raise funding, caused by delays in finalising
implementation ~ agreements, supply
agreements as well as off take agreements. Further,

water

the preparatory funding facilities agreed to in terms
of the directive remains outstanding.

Mokolo Crocodile River Water

Project— Phase 2A

Augmentation

The project has been delayed since institutional
arrangements were not finalised as at year-end, this
impacted the fund-raising process. An amount of
R&69 million was provided by DWS which enabled
TCTA to appoint the Professional Service Provider
(PSP).

Financial risks

The organisation is exposed to financial risks associated
with projects funding and liability management. The key
treasury risks such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk and
credit risk were well managed during the financial year.
The following were some of the risks managed:

The delays in receiving water revenues from the
Department of Water and Sanitation continued
to pose liquidity challenges to the organisation.
However, the organisation had sufficient commercial
paper facilities in place and maintained sufficient
banking facilities with reputable institutions which
could be drawn on to meet short-term cash
requirements.

The organisation is required to comply with borrowing
limits obtained from National Treasury. At the end of
the financial year, the utilised portions of Vaal River
Eastern Sub-system Project (VRESAP) and the Mooi-
Mgeni Transfer Scheme (MMTS-2) projects were very
close to the borrowing limits approved by National
Treasury. Hence, any issue of commercial paper

against these projects had to be closely monitored in
order to avoid any breach of the borrowing limits.
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KEY RISK IDENTIFIED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
2018/19

The table below shows the key strategic risks and their mitigation measures, as well as the inherent and residual ratings
in line with the TCTA risk rating matrix.

Table 32: Key Strategic Risks

Risk Inherent | Mitigation Measure Residual
risk Risk

Key

Failure to implement projects on time in line
with stakeholder expectations - This risk relates to
government’s inability to honour agreements and
commitments made towards certain projects i.e.
delay in processing TCTA submissions which affect
the implementation of projects.

Failure to raise funding - The qualified audit
opinion on the 2018/19 financial statements,
current economic outlook, the reluctance of
National Treasury to issue guarantees and negative
publicity around DWS may affect the raising

of commercial funding for the new projects. In
addition, social projects and preparation stages
of some commercial projects depend on funding
from DWS to commence the department’s budget
constraints may affect the allocation of funding for
these projects.

Inefficient ICT - The ICT infrastructure (i.e. Servers,
Desktops etc.) have reached the end of their life
span or are close to reaching the end of their life
span. In addition, there is a misalignment between
the ICT strategy and business strategy.

Non-compliance with TCTA policies, governing
legislation and other prescripts - The National
Treasury practice note 3 has presented some
onerous processes which are not aligned to
construction industry practice. The introduction
of note 3 resulted in TCTA incurring irregular
expenditure.

Non-compliance with loan covenants

The qualified audit opinion and inadequate
monitoring of loan covenants may result in the recall
of loans and strain the country fiscus.

M Extreme

A High

Medium

Active engagement with the
Department of Water and Sanitation
and National Treasury

Negotiating with funders to waive the
qualified audit opinion condition on the
loan agreements.

Engaging and communicating with
Funders in order to profile TCTA as an
SOE with a strong credit rating.
Security arrangement through explicit
and implicit government guarantees.
Independent credit rating of the
projects.

Implementation of ICT governance
charter and framework
Procurement of new IT infrastructure.

Application for exemption from the
prescribed expansion limits on capital
projects

Negotiating with funders to waive the
condition relating to the qualified audit
opinion on the loan agreements.
Quarterly Monitoring of compliance
with loan covenants.

A ow

The following heatmap illustrates the inherent and residual risks in line with the TCTA risk rating matrix.
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PART E: GOVERNANCE

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, CODES, RULES

AND STANDARDS

The Board recognises its accountability to all TCTA's
stakeholders under the regulatory requirements
applicable to its business and remains committed to
high standards of integrity and fair dealing in its conduct.
Given the importance of complying with the ever-
increasing domain of regulatory requirements, and the
increased national and international emphasis placed on
regulatory supervision, The Board, Executive Committee
and employees continue to monitor, align and adhere
to compliance requirements. Further, TCTA remains
vigilant in monitoring material risks and developing an
appropriate control environment to ensure organisation-
wide compliance. During the year, there were no material
penalties, sanctions, fines for contravening or non-
compliance with statutory obligations imposed on the
organisation, but many incidents of irregular, fruitless and
wasteful expenditure which management is addressing.

The responsibility for effective implementation of
compliance throughout TCTA has been delegated
to the Compliance Officer. The compliance function
enables the business to adhere to applicable regulatory
requirements by ensuring that actions, processes and
procedures are risk-appropriate and that the business
can achieve its business goals without fear of penalties
and loss of reputation. Incidents of non-compliance
are reported to the responsible executives or heads
of business units, divisions for prompt resolution.
The compliance function is also charged with the
responsibility of assisting, guiding and advising the
various divisions and departments within TCTA on how
to discharge their duties in managing their compliance
responsibilities and obligations.

The Board oversees compliance management and has
delegated the review and approval of the organisation’s

compliance program to the Audit and Risk Committee
and the authority to oversee compliance matters within
TCTA. The Audit and Risk Committee requires that:

e the Compliance Framework and Policy be revised
every three years and submitted to the Audit and
Risk Committee for approval;

e the compliance programme, which is the calendar
for the planned compliance activities be submitted
on an annual basis for approval by the Audit and
Risk Committee;

e the compliance function reports non-compliance
with laws and regulations or supervisory
requirements to the Audit and Risk Committee; and

e the compliance function submits a report on the
level of compliance with laws and regulations in
every meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee.

In addition, Public Finance Management Act (PFMA)
requires the Board to ensure that TCTA and its
employees comply with the provisions applicable to
Schedule 2 Companies, as well as any other legislation
applicable to the organisation. Accordingly, the Board —
in its capacity as TCTA's accounting authority — ensures
that the organisation adheres to the requirements for the
assessment of risk and annual budget submissions, and
the annual conclusion of a Shareholder’s Compact. The
Board also further ensures that the organisation adheres
to all procedures for quarterly reporting to the Executive
Authority through submission of quarterly PFMA reports.

The Board has noted the ineffectiveness of supply chain-
related controls, which resulted in significant irregular
expenditure in terms of the PFMA, as highlighted in the
annual financial statements.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The TCTA in-house Internal Audit division is governed
by an approved Internal Audit Charter and upholds the
Institute of Internal Auditors (lIA) International Standards
for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing
(Standards) in executing deliverables. Internal Audit
provides reasonable assurance to the Board, Audit and
Risk Committee and Management, on the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and
governance processes.

Internal Controls

Assurance and advisory reviews were conducted for
the 2018/19 financial year, in line with the approved
risk-based Internal Audit Plan. The outcome of the
completed internal audit reviews informed the process
to form an opinion on the annual assessment.

There is room forimprovement in monitoring and tracking
the timeous resolutions of action plans committed to by

(=)
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management, on internal and external audit reports. The
Irregular Expenditure focus contributed, to some extent,
to the slower rate of implementation of corrective actions
to mitigate risks raised in the audit findings. This fact was
considered in informing the Annual Written Assessment
for 2018/19.

Risk Management

The review of the adequacy and effectiveness of controls
indicates that the embedment of risk management into
all daily operations, has not yet been fully embraced.
No formal Risk Management review was conducted
in the period, as such the following were considered:
Reports presented to management structures and board
oversight structures; the progress of implementing
action plans in the strategic risk registers; and the root
causes identified during the execution of internal audit
reviews. A Combined Assurance approach, albeit not
formalised, is pursued by the Risk Unit, Internal Audit,
Compliance and other assurance providers, is to further
enhance the control environment.

The organisational resilience achieved through an
effective business continuity management process can
be further strengthened by enhancing the business
continuity management programme and documenting
key business processes to mitigate the risk of continuity
of operations, in the event of an emergency or a disaster.

The Fraud risk was managed as part of risk management.
A fully outsourced Anti-fraud Hotline was available to
employees and external parties to report allegations
of fraud and/or corruption anonymously. Internal Audit
administers the Hotline, the risk Unit facilitates the
management of fraud risks, as part of the broader risk
management process. Allegations reported in the period
were investigated and reports were presented to the
ARC. Corrective action was also implemented to address
control weaknesses identified during the investigation.

Governance

TCTA subscribes to King IV Report and Code. No formal
Governance Review has been conducted for the Board
that served during the period, as a result the adequacy
and/or effectiveness of the Board cannot be informed

by an outcome from an assurance review. Overall good
governance practices were pursued, to comply with the
JSE requirements, Company’s Act — as far as relevant to
TCTA and the King IV Principles. A Company Secretary
was appointed in the period, and this has improved
the governance processes that the role is responsible
for. Internal audit and other assurance providers should
continue to pursue effective leadership, ethical culture
and legitimacy to achieve improved performance against
set strategic objectives.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Internal Audit division reports functionally to, the
Audit and Risk Committee and administratively to the
Chief Executive Officer.

COMBINED ASSURANCE

King IV recommends that organisations determine the
appropriate Combined Assurance Model, that will suit
its needs.

TCTA's Combined Assurance approach, albeit not
formalised, saw an improved collaboration with all
assurance providers to enhance the control environment
further. These included management, the Risk and
Compliance units and the Auditor-General South Africa.

ANNUAL WRITTEN
ASSESSMENT

Conclusion

The overall internal audit opinion on the TCTA internal
control environment is that the system of internal
controls, risk management and governance processes
are partially adequate and partially effective. Efforts are
being made to improve the control weaknesses, which
if implemented, should enable TCTA to achieve its
strategy through effective performance.

)
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PART F: INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY

BUSINESS CONTINUITY

The Information and Communication Technology (ICT) environment is a key business process enabler and vehicle
for delivery of services, towards the achievement of corporate objectives. Providing a secure and resilient platform is
critical, not only for business continuity but also for ensuring the integrity of data.

During the year ended March 2019, the average uptime recorded for critical servers was 99.41%, which is above the
95% target. This was achieved despite the ageing ICT infrastructure, due to active and continual monitoring and
maintenance of the infrastructure where possible.

Figure 24: Critical Server Uptime
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Although the organisation has not secured a dedicated disaster recovery site, measures have been taken to mitigate the
risk. These include daily backup of all corporate data to an off-site storage facility, and regular testing of the backup to
ensure functionality. The success rate achieved for data backup is 97% at first attempt and 100% at the second attempt.
A business impact assessment has also been conducted, and the disaster recovery plan reviewed and updated.
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Figure 25: Data Backup Success Rate
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The ageing ICT infrastructure remains a threat to business continuity. However, the organisation has embarked on an
infrastructure renewal programme, having issued a tender in the fourth quarter of the year under review. The tender
calls for a cloud-based and integrated solution that encompasses infrastructure-as-a-service (laaS), disaster recovery
and connectivity.

REPORTABLE INCIDENTS

The following incidents were reported during the period under review:

+ the data/fibre line from TCTA to Dube Trade Port (where the ERP system was hosted at the time), provided by
Liquid Telecom, went down on Friday 22 June 2018 due to a fault in the Centurion area. It was restored on Saturday
23 June 2018. Due to the line failure, the ERP system was not accessible for one day;

* the Domain Controller, the server responsible for authenticating users, failed on Saturday 23 June 2018 and was
recovered the same day. This did not impact on business operations as it took place during a weekend;

+ the Data Centre Cooling System in server room malfunctioned on two occasions, resulting in water flooding and
high temperatures in the server room. On both occasions service providers were appointed on an emergency basis
to repair the system;

+ the data line from TCTA to Dube Trade Port, provided by Liquid Telecom, went down on Friday 28 September 2018
due to fibre cable damage along Lenchen South in the Centurion area. It was repaired in the same afternoon. Due
to the line failure, the ERP system was not accessible for half a day;

+ servicing of the fire suppression system in the Data Centre became overdue as a result of the procurement process
failing on two occasions. A service provider was finally appointed during quarter four. The fire suppression system
has been serviced and a certificate issued. Should there be a fire in the server room, the system will respond and
extinguish the fire; and

+ incidents of social engineering and phishing continue to increase. By its very nature, social engineering is essentially
a ‘'mind game’ and very difficult to prevent through a technical solution. It requires awareness and training of
employees to protect themselves from such activities.

)



PART F: INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY

TECHNOLOGY AND INFORMATION
GOVERNANCE

In terms of King IV, the Board has the responsibility to govern technology and information in a way that supports the
organisation’s setting and achieving its strategic objectives. In line with this, the Board approved a new ICT governance
charter and framework, which defines the roles of Board and management concerning the governance of technology
and information and set a framework to be followed thereof. Further, the Board approved a three-year ICT strategic
plan, as well as a Cybersecurity strategy and plan.

Table 33 shows TCTA's level of compliance with King IV practices in the governance of technology and information.

Table 33: compliance with King IV practices

1. The Board should assume responsibility for the governance of technology and information by
setting the direction for how technology and information should be approached and addressed in
the organisation.

Applied

2. The Board should approve a policy that articulates and gives effect to its set direction on the
employment of technology and information.

3. The Board should delegate to management the responsibility to implement and execute effective
technology and information management.

4. The Board should exercise ongoing oversight of technology and information management and
oversee that it results in the following:

a. integration of people, technologies, information and processes across the organisation;

b. integration of technology and information risks into organisation-wide risk management;
c. arrangements to provide for business resilience;

d. proactive monitoring of intelligence to identify and respond to incidents, including cyber-
attacks and adverse social media events;

e. management of the performance of, and the risks pertaining to, third-party and outsourced
service providers;

f. the assessment of value delivered to the organisation through significant investments in
technology and information, including the evaluation of projects throughout their life cycles
and of significant operational expenditure;

g. the responsible disposal of obsolete technology and information in a way that has regard to
environmental impact and information security;

h. ethical and responsible use of technology and information; and
i. compliance with relevant laws.

5. The Board should exercise ongoing oversight of management of information and ensure that it
results in the following:

a. the leveraging of information to sustain and enhance the organisation’s intellectual capital;
b. aninformation architecture that supports confidentiality, integrity and availability of information;

c. the protection of personal information; and

d. the continual monitoring of the security of information.

6. The Board should exercise ongoing oversight of the management of technology and, ensure that it
results in the following:

(5¢)
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Applied

Principle

a. atechnology architecture that enables the achievement of strategic and operational objectives;
b. the management of risks pertaining to the sourcing of technology; and

c. monitoring and appropriate responses to developments in technology, including the capturing
of potential opportunities and the management of disruptive effects on the organisation and
its business model.

7. The Board should consider the need to receive periodic independent assurance on the effectiveness
of the organisation’s technology and information arrangements, including outsourced services.

8. The following should be disclosed in relation to technology and information:
a. an overview of the arrangements for governing and managing technology and information;

b. key areas of focus during the reporting period, including objectives, significant changes in
policy, significant acquisitions and remedial actions taken as a result of major incidents;

c. actions taken to monitor the effectiveness of technology and information management and
how the outcomes were addressed; and

d. planned areas of future focus.

- Satisfactorily Applied - Partly Applied - Not Applied - Not Applicable

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES AND PROJECTS

During the period under review, two important systems were successfully implemented, namely, the Risk Management
System and the Compliance Management System. The system for preparation of the annual financial statements, which
was procured in the previous financial year, was successfully and fully utilised for the reporting period ended March
2019.

In the previous financial year, it was reported that the organisation embarked on two critical ICT projects, namely,
a Treasury Management System (TMS) and an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system. The TMS system was
successfully implemented and fully functional. However, the ERP project did not meet all the objectives that it was set
to achieve. Hence, the organisation decided to put on hold the Finance and Supply Chain Management modules of the
system, while it continues with Human Capital Management module. The latter has been in operation since March 2018.
The organisation is currently in the process of appointing an independent ERP specialist to conduct a comprehensive
assessment of the two modules that have been put on hold and advise the organisation on the appropriate course of
action towards finding a resolution.
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PART F: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO PARLIAMENT ON
TRANS-CALEDON TUNNEL AUTHORITY

Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on Trans-Caledon Tunnel Authority

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qualified opinion

| have audited the financial statements of the Trans-Caledon Tunnel Authority (TCTA) set out on pages 108 to 279,
which comprise the aggregated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, the aggregated statement of
comprehensive income, aggregated statement of changes in equity, aggregated statement of cash flows, as well as the
notes to the annual financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion section of this auditor’s
report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the entity as at 31 March
2019, and the financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa 1999
(Act No.1 of 1999) (PFMA)

Basis for qualified opinion
AMD receivable

| was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Acid Mine Drainage (AMD) receivable as
the financial models provided as audit evidence for the receivable did not substantiate the amounts disclosed in the
annual financial statements. | was unable to confirm this receivable by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to
determine whether any adjustments were necessary to AMD receivable stated at R727 million (2018: R774 million), as
disclosed in note 14 to the annual financial statements.

Provision for compensation

Included in note 17 to the annual financial statements, is a provision stated at R375 million (2018: R340 million) relating
to compensation to individuals affected by the loss of income as a result of re-appropriation of land in respect of the
Lesotho Highlands Water Project (LHWP). | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to substantiate
the provision for compensation, as disclosed in note 17 to the annual financial statements. | was unable to confirm the
provision by alternative means. As a consequence, | was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required
to the amounts of provision for compensation in the annual financial statements.

Capital commitments

| was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for Capital commitments, as disclosed in note 22 to the
annual financial statements. The capital commitments schedule provided as audit evidence did not substantiate the
amounts disclosed in the annual financial statements. | was unable to confirm the commitments by alternative means.
Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary to commitments stated at R520
million (2018: R280 million), in note 22 to the annual financial statements.

Context for the opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of this auditor’s report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO PARLIAMENT ON

TRANS-CALEDON TUNNEL AUTHORITY

7. I am independent of the entity in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants and, parts 1 and 3 of the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (IESBA codes) as well as the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled
my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA codes.

8. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Key audit matters

9. Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance in my audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the financial
statements as a whole and in forming my opinion, and | do not provide a separate opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Tariff receivable

Tariff receivable amount to R20 354 million, as disclosed in note 10.4 to the
annual financial statements.

Tariff receivable is a non-derivative financial asset with determinable
receipts based either on costs to be reimbursed or a tariff determined
to enable TCTA to repay the project debt and operating costs over long
term periods.

Tariff receivable is a key audit area due to significant management
judgement involved, the complex financial models developed to value
the receivable, the significant audit effort that is required to validate the
balance and its significance in the business of TCTA. This is also the largest
asset balance on the aggregated statement of financial position.

In particular, there is significant focus on considering whether the tariff
receivable is valued appropriately as the TCTA determines the carrying
amount by computing the present value of estimated future cash flows
at the financial instrument's original effective interest rate. The estimated
future cash flows are subject to significant judgement, assumptions, and
estimates about future events.

These included an assessment of:

e The estimation of current and future construction costs, which is
derived from the approved long term cost plans. Matters arising in
the current year including variation orders and actual progress versus
expected progress, which alter this assessment each year.

e The projection of water volume consumption required for each project.
e The internal rate of return used to discount all cash flows for projects.

e Consumer Price Index used to estimate future net cash flows.

Based on the points noted above and the significance of the tariff
receivable balance, this area remained an area of focus for the period
under review.

My procedures included amongst others, the following:

I made use of an auditor’s expert (IFRS expert) to assess
reasonability and appropriateness of the financial models
and its compliance to the relevant accounting standards
(IFRS 9). | reviewed the tariff receivable models for
mathematical accuracy, and consistency of formulae used
across all tariff models as at reporting date.

| inspected the consistency of the effective interest rate in
the current year to prior years and to the date of project
inception, and assessed its applicability to the nature of
the receivable.

| inspected the agreements and MoU’s between TCTA
and the Department of Water and Sanitation (DWS) to
determine whether the relationship between the two
parties justified the assumptions management made in
the configuration of the financial models. (e.g. whether the
essence or substance of the contractual obligations of the
parties, supported the valuation method applied).

| assessed the reasonability of total construction costs
incurred across tariff models.

| assessed the reasonability of forecasts of water volumes,
Consumer Price Index (CPI), forecast tariff rates and total
construction costs across tariff models.

| reviewed the reasonability of the disclosure and
presentation relating to the tariff receivable as well as the
presentation of current and non-current tariff receivables.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO PARLIAMENT ON
TRANS-CALEDON TUNNEL AUTHORITY

Material uncertainty relating to going concern

10.

1.

| draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

| draw attention to note 27 to the annual financial statements, which indicates that a qualified audit opinion is, unless

waived, an event of default in some of TCTA's Vaal River System (VRS) loans. This results in an indication of a material

uncertainty on TCTA's ability to continue as a going concern.

Emphasis of matter

12.

| draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures

13.

As disclosed in note 26 to the annual financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2018 have been
restated as a result of errors in the financial statements of the entity at the year ended, 31 March 2019.

Other matter

14.

| draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Previous period audited by a predecessor auditor

15.

The financial statements of the previous year were audited by a predecessor auditor in terms of section 4(3) of the
Public Audit Act, on 31 August 2018.

Responsibilities of accounting authority for the financial statements

16.

17.

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS and the requirements of the PEMA, and for such internal control as the accounting authority
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing TCTA's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-General's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

18.

19.

100

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to this
auditor’s report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO PARLIAMENT ON
TRANS-CALEDON TUNNEL AUTHORITY

Report on the audit of the annual performance report
Introduction and scope

20. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued
in terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance information against
predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented in the annual performance report. | performed procedures
to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

21. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved performance
planning documents of the entity. | have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance
indicators/ measures included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or
assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be included
as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.

22. | performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly presented and
whether performance was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. | performed further
procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the
reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

23.  The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected objectives are as follows:
Objective 2 - Manage the implementation of projects to meet defined objectives
Achievement of critical project milestones dates

24.  The entity did not have a project charter that sets out clear critical project milestones and criteria to allow for consistent
collection of data for the MWP project. As a result, the following targets were not measureable:

e Finalise handover of project from DWS and initiate project preparatory activities

e Handover report completed July 2018
Approval of critical project milestone dates (MCWAP 2A: Tender design and documentation complete by March 2019)

25.  The entity did not prepare technical indicator descriptions, which would enable the determination of the nature and
the required level of performance for the above indicator and or target. The target was not specific on what constitutes
tender documentation and whether tender completion refers to the date when specifications are complete or when the
bidders had responded and provided all documentation. Therefore, the target was furthermore not measurable.

Objective 3 - Operate and maintain AMD Plants and LHWP infrastructure in accordance with requirements
Maintaining or reducing of water levels within the mine voids

26.  There is no direct correlation between the targets and the indicators since the indicators relate to the maintenance or
reduction of water level in the voids and the target refers to the volumes of water treated. In addition, the technical
indicator description for quality of water treated, does not define the numerator and denominator factors to be
considered in determining the percentages targeted (within 90-94):

e An average volume of water treated in the Western Basin of between 30 - 33 MI/d
e Quality of treated water from the Western Basin, Central and Eastern Basin within 90-94% of DWS specification
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO PARLIAMENT ON
TRANS-CALEDON TUNNEL AUTHORITY

Objective 4 - Structure project funding and secure institutional arrangements, as well as requesting necessary
authorisations

Institutional arrangement secured

27.  The entity reported on targets which are not within the control of the TCTA and which do not require TCTA performance
to achieve them. The following serve as examples:

e AMD-LTS: Agreements submitted to the parties (Department of Water and Sanitation and each off-taker) for
signing by June 2018

e MWP: Terms of reference prepared and ready for signature by key stakeholder principal in September 2018

28. 1 did notraise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for those
objectives:

e Objective 5 — Raise Funding for implementation of infrastructure projects; and

e Objective 6 — Manage debt within the approved borrowing limits and ensure debt will be repaid.
Other matters
29. | draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets

30.  Referto the annual performance reportin Section B of the Integrated Annual Report for information on the achievement
of planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the under/ over achievement of a number of targets.
This information should be considered in the context of the material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the
reported performance information in paragraphs 29 to 34 of this report.

Adjustment of material misstatements

31. | identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing. These material
misstatements were on the reported performance information of Objective 2 Manage the implementation of projects
to meet defined objectives. As management subsequently corrected only some of the misstatements, | raised material
findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information. Those that were not corrected are
reported above.

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation
Introduction and scope

32.  In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report material
findings on the compliance of the entity with specific matters in key legislation. | performed procedures to identify
findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

33.  The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislations are as follows:
Annual financial statements

34.  Thefinancial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting
framework and supported by full and proper records, as required by section 55(1) (a) and (b) of the PFMA.
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35.

Material misstatements on non-current assets, current assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditure identified by the
auditors in the submitted financial statements were corrected and the supporting records were provided subsequently,
but the uncorrected material misstatements and supporting records that could not be provided for non-current assets,
current assets, non-current liabilities, current liabilities and disclosure items resulted in the annual financial statements
receiving a qualified opinion.

Expenditure management

36.

37.

Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to R104 million as disclosed
in note 25 to the annual financial statements, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA. The majority of this amount
related to expenditure incurred in the prior years, but identified in the current year. The irregular expenditure was
mainly caused by deviations that were not properly approved.

Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent fruitless expenditure amounting to R1 million as disclosed in
note 25 to the annual financial statements, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA. The majority of the fruitless
and wasteful expenditure was caused by payments for licenses not utilised due to post implementation challenges that
were identified during the system change from Accpac to Oracle.

Procurement and contract management

38.

Some of the goods, works or service were not procured through a procurement process which is fair, equitable,
transparent and competitive, as required by section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PEFMA. Similar instances of non-compliance were
also reported in the prior year.

Other information

39.

40.

41.

42.

The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report which includes the audit committee’s report. The other information does not include the
financial statements, the auditor’s report and those selected objectives presented in the annual performance report
that have been specifically reported in this auditor's report.

My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance with
legislation do not cover the other information and | do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected objectives presented in the
annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

| did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. After | receive and read this information,
and if | conclude that there is a material misstatement, | am required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and request that the other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, | may have
to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be
necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

43.

| considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information and
compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. The
matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the
qualified opinion, the findings on the performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in
this report.
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44,

45.

46.

The leadership of the entity did not adequately establish policies and procedures related to key finance business
processes and components, in order to enable and support the understanding and execution of internal control
objectives, processes and responsibilities on certain balances and transactions reported in the annual financial
statements related to the projects being implemented in Lesotho. In addition, leadership did not effectively implement
clarifying standard operating procedures relating to certain aspects of performance reporting.

Management did not implement adequate proper record keeping in a timely manner to ensure that complete, relevant
and accurate information is accessible and available to support credible financial and performance reporting. Although
implementation occurs across borders, certain supporting schedules are not obtained and quality assured prior to
inclusion in the annual financial statements. This resulted in significant delays in submission of information impacting
the audit process and ultimately the audit outcome.

Management did not always understand the requirements of the SCM legislation and National Treasury Framework for
Programme Performance Information (FMPPI) and thus inadequately applied the requirements of the SCM legislation
and the FMPPI.

Other reports

47.

| draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could have, an impact on the
matters reported in the entity’s financial statements, reported performance information, compliance with applicable
legislation and other related matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements or my
findings on the reported performance information or compliance with legislation.

Investigations

48.  An independent consultant conducted two forensic investigations into the procurement processes in respect of the
Central and Eastern Acid Mine Drainage projects, at the request of the board of directors. The investigations were
concluded in the previous period and resulted in disciplinary and criminal proceedings against two ex-employees and
the relevant service providers, in respect of the Central Basin. One employee’s service was terminated and the other
received a written warning and subsequently resigned. The criminal investigations were still ongoing at the date of this
report.

Pretoria

20 December 2019
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Annexure - Auditor-General’s responsibility for the audit

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed on reported performance information
for selected objectives and on the entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s report, | also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the [board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority

e conclude on the appropriateness of accounting authority use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the TCTA ability to continue
as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information
available to me at the date of this auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause an entity to
cease continuing as a going concern

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. | am responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion

Communication with those charged with governance

3. | communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my
audit.

4. | also confirm to the accounting authority that | have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing
on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

5. From the matters communicated to those charged with governance, | determine those matters that were of the
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore key audit matters. |
describe these matters in this auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in this auditor’s report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest of such
communication.
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1. AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY

The Audit and Risk Committee is pleased to present the
report for the financial year ended 31 March 2019.

The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference,
approved by the Board of Directors. The terms of reference
cover, among others, the Committee’s statutory duties,
monitoring and oversight role on: financial and non-financial
reporting and disclosure; adequacy and effectiveness
of the system of internal controls, risk management and
governance processes.

The Committee reports that it has fulfilled all its statutory
duties as required by the PFMA, has conducted its affairs
in compliance with its terms of reference as adopted by the
Board, and has discharged all its responsibilities contained
therein.

2. EXECUTION OF STATUTORY DUTIES

In the conduct of its duties the committee has, inter alia,
reviewed the following functions:

2.1 Effectiveness of Internal Control

Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit work, which
was based on the risk assessments conducted by the entity
revealed some weaknesses, which have been raised with
management, and for which agreed action plans have
already been put in place to address them in the ensuing
period.

Through our analysis of audit reports and engagement
with management we can report that the system on
internal control for the period under review was found as
partially adequate and effective. These include specifically
control weaknesses controls around procurement. The
Auditor General has further a major issue of inadequate
supporting documentation in relation to transactions for
Lesotho Highlands Water Project. This resulted in significant
or material non-compliance with prescribed policies and
procedures.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the report of the Auditor
General and confirm that there are financial reporting
challenges arising from structural weaknesses with the
project that will need to be addressed urgently in the next
period. The Committee has received commitment from
management that a working team comprising of all the
parties within the Lesotho Highlands project, the Department
of Water and Sanitation, the Lesotho counterparts, including
the LHDA and the LHWC will be established.

2.2 Internal Audit
The committee acknowledges the gradual improvement
within the division in effectively supporting the committee

in fulfilling its role. The capacity and competency is being
augmented through a co-source internal audit partnership.
To cater for the growing size of the entity and the complexities
inherent in the TCTA activities.

2.3 Risk Management

TCTA has a Risk Management Framework and Policy which

is being implemented by management and regularly

monitored by the Committee. Enhancements to the
process have been recommended and it is expected that
implementation is underway, to effectively manage key risks.

The risk areas of concern that need to be expedited:

* Embedding risk management in daily operations to fully
realise the benefits of Enterprise-wide Risk Management
(ERM).

e Effective management of debt, arising from delays
experienced in the receipt of revenue from DWS, which
results in delays of project implementation which are of
national importance.

* The need to improve overall ICT Governance, including
but not limited to the IT Infrastructure, as an enabler to
the implementation of the TCTA Strategy.

® Enhance compliance to applicable legislation and
policies on, for example, irregular expenditure,
consequence management etc. The committee
acknowledges the impractibility of implementing Note
3 of the NT Regulations relating to irregular expenditure
and this matter is currently under discussion with the
National Treasury.

e The Committee has highlighted delays in key and
significant projects, due to the DWS dependency for
funding arrangements.

2.4 Governance

e The Board is committed to good corporate governance
and embraces the King IV principles of effective
leadership, ethical culture, performance and legitimacy.

® The committee seeks to integrate these principles into
policies and procedures in the ensuing period.

2.5 Combined Assurance

The committee is committed to implementing combined
assurance to obtain maximum benefit from all assurance
providers. A Combined Assurance Framework has been
adopted for full implementation in the 2020/21.

2.6 Annual and Monthly Management Reports Submitted
in Terms of Legislation

Monthly and quarterly reports on financial and performance
information were presented in the committee meetings
and monitored throughout the year. The committee
recognises that management information provided requires
improvement to satisfy legislative requirements and
improvements are in process.

2.7 Evaluation of annual financial statements
The committee has reviewed the annual financial statements
and acknowledges the findings of the AGSA. There is a
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need by all relevant stakeholders for TCTA to review the

governance structures in relation to the Treaty obligations,

to ensure that information required for financial reporting is
supported and accessible timeously.

In respect of the annual financial statements, the Committee

e Confirmed the going concern as the basis of preparation
of the annual financial statements;

e Reviewed compliance with the financial conditions of
loan covenants;

e Examined and reviewed the annual financial statements,
and all financial information disclosed to the public, prior
to submission and approval by TCTA's Board of Directors;

e Ensured that the annual financial statements fairly
present the financial position of TCTA as at the end of
the financial year, as well as the results of operations and
cash flows for the financial year;

Committee Members
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P Sechemane (CEO) NA NA NA NA NA

28-July-2018

e Considered accounting treatment, significant unusual
transactions and accounting judgments, especially those
relating to the Tariff Receivable, which is the present
value of the entitlement to future revenues from DWS to
repay all expenditure incurred on the projects.

3. AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETING
ATTENDANCE

The Audit and Risk Committee consists of the members
listed hereunder. During the financial year under review,

the Committee met nine (9) times and appropriate feedback
was provided to the Board on matters that are within the
mandate of the committee. The table below reflect the
members attendance.
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v'= Present; A = Apology; NM = No longer a member; ) = Teleconference; NA = Not Appointed;

4. DATE AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at the date of the report, the Committee is comprised of the following members:

e M Ramataboe
e S Roopa

* M Maponya

e N Baloyi

The Committee recommended approval of the Annual Financial Statements on 11 December 2019.

Maemili Ramataboe
Chairperson
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ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Tariff receivable*

AMD receivable

Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets

Tariff receivable*

Short-term financial market investments
Loans and other receivables
Prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

AMD receivable

Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

RESERVES

Retained income

LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term financial market liabilities
Provisions

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Non-contractual amounts

Provisions

Short-term financial market liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2019 2018

Restated *

Note(s) R mil R mil
8 6 6
9 4 14
10.4 18 976 20 253
14 415 569
19 402 20 842
10.4 1378 3617
10.5 482 371
12 229 259
13 279 127
18 3048 3849
14 312 205
5728 8428
25131 29270
11 836 640
10.6.3 20 672 17 653
17 355 323
21 027 17 976
15 1141 1044
16.1 187 75
17 57 39
10.6.2 1882 9 496
3268 10 654
24 294 28 630
25131 29270

The accounting policies on pages 114 to 125 and the notes on pages 126 to 261 form an integral part of the annual

financial statements
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2019 2018
Restated *

Note(s) R mil R mil

Construction revenue 19 688 542
Construction costs 19 (688) (542)
Other operating income 1471 1474
Expenses (1471) (1692)
Legal fees and litigation costs (9) (12)
Depreciation 8 (1) (4)
Amortisation 9 (10) (6)
Operating costs for the work in Lesotho 30 (83) (166)
Lesotho Highlands Water Commission (LHWC) costs 23.2.1 (14) (16)
Staff costs 29.3 (157) (92)
Directors' emoluments and related costs 23.3 (9) (10)
Royalties and license fees 28 (218) (914)
AMD operations and maintenance 29 (228) (273)
Other operating expenses 29 (42) (199)
Operating surplus/(deficit) (219)
Net finance income/(costs) 197 (456)
Finance income 20.1 3103 2935
Finance costs 20.2 (2 906) (3391)
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 198 (675)
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 198 (675)

*See Note 4 & 25
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Restated* Balance at 31 March 2017
Loss for the year

Total comprehensive Loss for the year
Opening balance as previously reported
Balance at 31 March 2018 as restated
Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 March 2019

* See Note 4 & 25

Retained  Total equity
income
R mil R mil
1313 1313
(675) (674)
(675) (674)
638 639
638 639
198 198
198 198
837 837
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2019 2018
Restated *
Note(s) R mil R mil

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts on tariff receivable 9877 6218
Cash paid to suppliers and employees 3334 (2 955)
Cash generated from project activities A 6 543 3264
Interest paid C (2 205) (2 202)
Net cash from operating activities 4 338 1062

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Disposal of property, plant and equipment - 1
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 8 (1) (1)
Purchase of other intangible assets 9 - (4)
Payments to acquire financial assets (125) -
Proceeds on the sale of financial assets - 2634
Interest received B 265 364
Net cash from investing activities 139 2994

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 6 550 -
Repayments on long-term borrowings (11 778) (2 826)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 230 244
Repayments on short-term borrowings (278) (183)
Movement in other liability 1 - =
Net cash from financing activities (5 276) (2 765)
Total cash movement for the year (800) 1289
Cash at the beginning of the year 3849 2 559
Total cash at end of the year 3 049 3 848

* See Note 4 & 25
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2019 2018

R mil R mil
CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM PROJECT ACTIVITIES
Surplus for the year 198 (675)
Adjustments for non cash flow items:
Depreciation on non-current assets 11 10
Net interest income 2636 3013
Interest income and imputed interest on tariff receivable (2 832) (2118)
Construction revenue (686) (542)
Other income (1471) (1 696)
Non cash flow in operating expenses (11) (290)
Changes in working capital:
Loans and other receivables (51) (59)
Prepayments (97) 4
Payables and provisions (excluding interest payable) 73 14
Capitalised to/(removed from) tariff receivable 8814 5198
Non cash flow item in accounts receivable (40) 403
Non cash flow item in accounts payable (3) 3
Cash (used in)/generated from project activities 6 541 3 265
INTEREST RECEIVED
Amount due at beginning of the year 18 65
Income during the year adjusted for non-cash items 251 317
Interest accrued 270 371
Bond premium amortised (17) (52)
Interest on RSA account (2) (2)
Amount due at the end of the year (4) (18)
Interest received 265 364
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NOTES TO THE AGGREGATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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2019 2018
R mil R mil
C. INTEREST PAID

Amount not paid at beginning of the year (443) (514)
Expensed during the year adjusted for non-cash items (2191) (2131)
Amount expensed (excluding imputed interest) (2 906) (3384)
Less: bond discount amortised 7 6
Deficit on switch auction 1 -
Capital adjustment to inflation-linked liability 656 1104
Interest on compensation 25 28
Interest capitalised to the principal amount 30 115
Accrued interest on switched bonds (4) -
Amount not paid at the end of the year 429 443
Interest paid (2 205) (2202)

D. RECONCILIATION OF FINANCIAL MARKET LIABILITIES TO FINANCING ACTIVITIES AS AT 31 MARCH

Liabilities at beginning of year 27 149 28 741
Long-term borrowings 17 654 25504
Short-term borrowings 9 495 3237
Cash flow from financing activities (5 276) (2 765)
Non cash flow items 680 1173
- Capitalised interest 30 115
- Capital adjustment to inflation-linked liability 660 1104
- Bond discount / premium (10) (46)
Liabilities as at end of year 22 554 27 149
Long-term borrowings 20672 17 654
Short-term borrowings 1882 9 495
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21

2.2

114

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Trans-Caledon Tunnel Authority (TCTA) is a specialised liability management body, established in terms of
Government Notice No 2631 in Government Gazette No 10545, dated 12 December 1986. The Notice was replaced
by Government Notice No 277 in Government Gazette No 21017, dated 24 March 2000. The entity is domiciled in
South Africa. The address of the registered office is 265 West Avenue, Tuinhof Building, 1st Floor Centurion.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out below.
These accounting policies have been consistently applied to all years presented.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). In terms of IAS 8 section 10, where IFRS does
not specifically apply to a transaction, other event or condition, management shall use its judgement in developing
and applying an accounting policy where that policy results in reliable financial statements and information which
users can use for their economic decision-making needs. These financial statements are a faithful representation
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the entity; they reflect the economic substance of
transactions, other events and conditions and not merely the legal form, they are neutral and free from bias and they
are prudent, complete in all material aspects.

The Accounting Standards Board (ASB), as mandated by the PFMA set the reporting standards for the preparation
of annual financial statements of government institutions, has issued Directive 12 which requires that qualifying
entities prepare their annual financial statements in accordance with the Generally Recognised Accounting Practices
(GRAP). The Directive has set out the criteria that institutions are to meet in order to qualify for the application of
GRAP as the reporting framework. TCTA has conducted the self-assessment in accordance with the criteria in the
Directive which indicates, on initial assessment that TCTA qualifies to apply the standards of GRAP in the preparation
of the annual financial statements. In terms of section 92 of the PFMA, TCTA has been exempted to apply GRAP
as a reporting framework and to allow the continuance of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
reporting framework. This exemption is granted for the financial years ending 2019 to 2023.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and historical cost convention. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with IFRS, requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgements. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying TCTA's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are disclosed in note 3. TCTA presents financial information on an individual project basis
on the statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income( note 6) and the statement of cash flows
(Annexure A) of TCTA which will be useful to the users of these financial statements.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
2.3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

On initial recognition property, plant and equipment is measured at cost. An item can only be recognised as
property, plant and equipment if it is probable that:

° future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to TCTA;
° the cost of the item can be reliably measured; and
o the item is expected be used during more than one accounting period.

Subsequent costs

The costs of day-to-day servicing of assets are not recognised as property, plant and equipment, but are expensed
as repairs and maintenance in the year incurred.

Costs of replacing or upgrading components of an asset can be capitalised, provided that the recognition criteria
have been met. The costs of replacement/upgrading are capitalised to the carrying amount of the component of
property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, while the carrying amounts of components replaced, are
derecognised. Cost of improvements are also capitalised when it meets the recognition criteria.

TCTA applies the cost model for all classes of assets by recognising it at cost, adjusted for accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Furniture, vehicles, computer and office equipment

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful lives,
using the straight-line method.

Office Furniture 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Computer Hardware and Office equipment 2 years
Networking equipment 2 years
Video conferencing equipment 2 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period
in terms of the property, plant and equipment procedures, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their expected useful lives or the lease term.
There are currently no assets held under finance leases.

Leasehold improvements

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment. Depreciation is calculated
on the straight-line basis over the shorter of the remaining period of the lease and the useful life of the asset. The
useful life of the asset will be assessed at least on an annual basis and will depend on an extension of the current
lease agreement.

Disposals of property, plant and equipment and derecognition of property, plant and equipment

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount at the date of sale.
These are included in surplus/deficit when the asset is derecognised. An item of property, plant and equipment
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal.
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2.3.2

116

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment

IAS 36: Impairment of assets, is applied to all property, plant and equipment. At each reporting date, TCTA reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets may be impaired.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit. A reversal of an impairment
deficit for an asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. This occurs if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment deficit was recognised.

Recoverable amount

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is determined as being the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value in use.

Fair value less cost of disposal

This is the price that would be received to sell an asset less any incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of
an asset or cash-generating unit, excluding finance costs. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. Where it is not possible to determine the fair value less costs of disposal because
there is no basis for making a reliable estimate of the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in an arm'’s length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties, the value in use is deemed to be its recoverable amount.
Value in use

Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset/cash-generating unit.
The discount rate utilised is the weighted average cost of capital applicable to the cash-generating unit/ asset. In

instances where the recoverable amount is determined based on present value techniques, the discount rates used
to determine the fair value less the cost of disposal and key assumptions and valuation techniques are disclosed.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Subsequent costs

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Useful lives

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Amortisation

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed
at least at the end of each reporting period. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as the expense category that is consistent with the function
of the intangible assets.
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Amortisation of the asset begins when the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected
future benefit. Amortisation is recorded in surplus/deficit.

Computer software 2 years
Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Financial assets
Classification

TCTA recognises a financial asset in its statement of financial position when, and only when, it becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are classified based on TCTA's business model. (IFRS
9 (2009, 2010)). TCTA considers if it holds the financial assets to collect contractual cash flows or to sell it prior to
maturity to realise fair value changes. TCTA holds its financial assets to maturity and thus elected to collect the
cash flows from holding the asset. TCTA considers the characteristics of the contractual cash flows of the financial
assets to determine whether the conditions for amortised cost have been met as detailed below. Assets are initially
measured at fair value plus, in the case of a financial assets not at fair value through surplus or deficit, particular
transaction costs. Assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

TCTA measures financial assets at amortised cost when the following conditions for measurement at amortised
cost have been met:

J the assets are held within TCTA's business model where the objective is to hold assets in order to collect con-
tractual cash flows; and
o the contractual terms of the financial assets result in cash flows on specific dates that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
TCTA's financial assets mainly consist of the redemption assets, the tariff receivable and derivative instruments.
Redemption assets

Redemption assets consist of an investment portfolio, aggregated for the redemption of the bonds as and when
they mature. TCTA currently makes investments in order to smooth the refinancing of its mega bond issues. There
have been fundamental changes in the approach to investing following the credit crisis. Credit evaluation is first
categorised relative to two other considerations i.e. liquidity and price.

For any counterparty to be considered for investments, TCTA will have to evaluate them from three perspectives:

o The first is externally, where the counterparty’s credit rating is considered, country of origin, their expertise in
investments and the track record of the organisation is taken into account.
J The second aspect is the internally generated assessment, which deals with liquidity and credit of the organ-

isation. This is to allow TCTA to set clearly defined limits that ensure spreading of risk and limits exposure to
particular assets or industry.

o The last aspect is the product, similar to the first aspect, the product should be rated by a reputable credit rating
agency in line with money market products and hence would normally hold assets that are of short to medium
term duration.They also must subscribe to industry organisations for similar type instruments with clearly de-
fined benchmarks.

Redemption assets are carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

The redemption assets are not reflected separately, but as part of financial investments. All fixed investments are
held-to- maturity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Tariff receivable

The tariff receivable is a non-derivative financial asset with determinable receipts based either on costs to be
reimbursed or a tariff determined to enable TCTA to repay the project debt over approximately a twenty year
period. This category consists of the right to receive cash from the Department of Water and Sanitation (DWS) with
respect to construction work completed on DWS projects or services rendered by TCTA in managing debt on each
project. The tariff receivable arises as a result of TCTA incurring costs in terms of the directive from the Minister of
Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation in each project.

The tariff receivable arises as the contra to the construction revenue earned in each project, and is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

TCTA revises its estimates of costs and revenue annually and adjusts the carrying amount of the tariff receivable to
reflect actual and revised estimated cash flows. TCTA recalculates the carrying amount by computing the present
value of estimated future cash flows at the financial instrument’s effective interest rate determined in accordance
with IFRS 9. The adjustment is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The critical accounting
estimates and judgements from management are included in note 3.

TCTA previously fixed the effective interest rate calculated at initial recognition which resulted in an adjustment of
the carrying amount when future cash flows were re-estimated. The adjustment was recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive income as an AG8 adjustment per IFRS 39. The new standard still makes provision for this
adjustment however, management have amended the accounting policy relating to the subsequent measurement
of the tariff receivable. Refer to note 24 for detailed analysis on the impact.

Derivative assets and liabilities are initially classified at fair value through surplus or deficit on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are classified as current and non-
current on the basis of their settlement dates.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost.
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those that are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit are individually assessed
for impairment at initial recognition and a loss allowance is recognised if there is any indication of impairment as
the present value of expected credit losses over the lifetime of the individual asset. At each reporting date, the loss
allowance for a financial asset is measured at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit
risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on the financial asset
has not increased significantly since the initial recognition, the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses. If, in the next reporting date, the credit risk of a financial asset that was assessed
to have significantly increased in the previous reporting date, is assessed to no longer significantly increased the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses at the current reporting date,
except for trade receivables or contract assets that results from transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 15,
and do not contain a significant financing component in accordance with IFRS 15 (or when the entity applies the
practical expedient in accordance with paragraph 63 of IFRS 15). The loss allowance for these is always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. An impairment gain or loss is recognised at each reporting
date if the loss allowance amount as measured at a reporting date is different from the loss allowance amount as
measured at a previous reporting period. The impairment gain or loss amount equals the difference between the
two amounts being compared. TCTA assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. When
assessing the significance of the increase in credit risk, TCTA uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over
the expected life of the financial asset instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses by comparing
the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and consider reasonable and supportable information (both
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past and forward looking information), that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition

TCTA takes into account the following information in the assessment of its credit risk:

J TCTA's mandate and its importance to the relevant section of South Africa’s economy.

o The agreement between TCTA and its counterparties. - The nature of TCTA's counterparties.
o The recoverability of the counterparties’ receivables.

J Any other relevant information.

In addition to the reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, TCTA
measures expected credit losses of a financial asset ina way that reflects:

o An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;
and. - The time value of money;.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually, are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include TCTA's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
ofdelayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

Loans and receivables comprise amounts due by DWS on projects funded from the fiscus. TCTA recovers the costs
incurred on mandated projects from DWS on a monthly basis and the payment terms are as set in the Memorandum
of Agreement between TCTA and DWS.

Derecognition of financial assets

TCTA derecognises financial assets when, and only when, the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If TCTA neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, TCTA recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If TCTA retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, TCTA continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received. A transfer occurs when the entity transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
of the financial asset or assumes a contractual obligation to pay cash flows to one or more recipients in terms of an
arrangement that meets the requirements of IFRS 9.3.2.5.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is the method used to calculate the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise call deposits, cash at banks and

on hand. For the purpose of the aggregated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank
balances, call deposits and cash on hand and is measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through surplus or deficit (FVTPL)' or ‘other
financial liabilities” at amortised cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Short-term financial market liabilities
Funding portfolio

The short-term funding portfolio comprises short-term commercial paper classified as “other liabilities” and are held
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Strategic portfolio

The strategic portfolio is a trading portfolio established for interest rate risk management purposes.

Locally registered bonds held-for-trading purposes are carried at fair value, which is determined with reference
to exchange rate quoted prices at the close of business on the reporting date. Resultant gains or losses on the
subsequent measurement are included in surplus or deficit for the year in which they arise. At present, no such
instruments are held by TCTA. Refer to note 5.2.3.2 for information relating to the management of interest rate risk.
TCTA engages in repurchase agreements in locally registered bonds, within limits, with the panel of marketmakers
to enhance the marketability of the bonds in issue. The repurchase agreements are recognised at transaction value
and are classified as “other liabilities” at amortised cost.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective interest basis.

Long-term financial market liabilities
Funding portfolio

Comprises the long-term funding for the specific projects as detailed below:

J Locally registered bonds in issue are classified as "“other liabilities” and are hence carried at amortised cost,
applying the effective interest rate method.
o Local loans are stated at amortised cost and classified as “other liabilities”. At reporting date, foreign loans are

stated at amortised cost and restated at the rates of exchange ruling at that date. Gains or losses are recognised
in surplus or deficit.

. Long-term commercial paper (more than twelve months to maturity), classified as “other liabilities”, are held at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Payables are classified as “other liabilities” and are stated at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

TCTA derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, TCTA's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
where there is a current legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.3.7

2.3.8

Finance costs

Finance costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

The cost of all short-term employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the
related services.

Leave benefits

Annual leave is granted pro rata in accordance with the number of full calendar months worked and is subject to a
cap.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an employee'’s
employment as a result of either:

o an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or;
o an employee’s decision to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when TCTA has a legal or constructive present obligation as a result of a past event and
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Provisions are only used for those expenditures for which the provision was initially recognised.
Compensation

Compensation relates to provision for compensation payments being made on the Lesotho Highlands Water
Project (LHWP) over a fifty year period. These arose due to the relocation of the recipients during the construction
of the LHWP which RSA is sharing the benefits of. The recipients have the option to receive compensation as a
lump sum, annual payments made in cash or a set amount of maize grain. The LHDA is directly responsible for the
management and payment of the underlying contracts. TCTA annually receives estimates of the future cash flows
payable on these contracts.

The annual cash flows are increased by the forecast Lesotho CPl rate. These cash flows are considered management's
best estimate of the obligation payable to the LHDA and are discounted at a market-related discount rate reflective of
the appropriate time value of money. The compensation provision raised by TCTA relates to the RSA government'’s
obligation.

The provision for compensation has been revised to include an additional amount relating to compensation for
host communities where households affected by the project have elected to be resettled. This amount is intended
to fund infrastructure projects for the benefit of the host communities. The lumpsum provision is calculated by the
LHDA based on the area of range land lost and the agreed rate per hectare. The undisbursed lumpsum amount is
escalated on an annual basis using the Lesotho CPI rate. TCTA has adopted the LHDA method of valuation. (refer
note 23.5).

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 23.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Provision for leave pay

In terms of TCTA's policy, employees are entitled to accumulate annual leave not taken to a maximum of 40
working days. Accumulated annual leave exceeding the maximum of 40 working days is forfeited on 30 June of
the succeeding year.

Provision for incentives

The TCTA remuneration policy allows for a performance bonus to be paid annually based on a formal assessment
of each individual’s job-related performance during the year.

Liabilities of the water delivery component of the project in Lesotho

The Lesotho Highlands Water Project (LHWP) was configured to augment the water supply to South Africa and to
generate hydro-electrical power for Lesotho. In terms of the provisions of the Treaty between the Government of
the Republic of South Africa (RSA) and the Government of the Kingdom of Lesotho (GOL), the RSA is responsible
for all costs relating to the water transfer component of the project and the GOL is responsible for the total cost of
the components relating to the generation of hydro-electrical power.

TCTA's Notice of Establishment (NOE) of March 2000 places the obligation on TCTA as part of its non-Treaty functions
to fulfil all the RSA's financial obligations in terms of or resulting from the Treaty.

The RSA's financial obligations in terms of the Treaty on the water transfer part located within Lesotho includes
making cost related payments to the LHDA in terms of Article 10, Royalty Payments to GOL in terms of Article 12
(refer to note 2.3.11) and contributions to the operating costs of the Lesotho Highlands Water Commission (LHWC)
in terms of Article 9.

Cost related payments include all costs wholly and reasonably incurred by the LHDA for the implementation and
operation and maintenance of the water transfer part of the project. Cost related payments are payable when the
costs become due for payment by the LHDA, in the case of borrowings raised by the LHDA, the payments will
become due when the loans become redeemable. The RSA has elected to repay loans raised by the LHDA directly
to the lenders (refer to note 10.9.3). Article 10(5) further provides that cost related payments to the LHDA may be
made on cash flow forecasts presented by the LHDA to allow the LHDA to meet its payment obligations. TCTA and
LHDA entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOA) effective 1 April 2005 that provides an operating
framework for making funds available to the LHDA for the payment of water transfer costs incurred by the LHDA.
The framework requires the LHDA to submit cash flow forecasts on a monthly/weekly basis to TCTA for payment.
This arrangement has the effect that the borrowings for the project are centralised within the TCTA and ensures
better management of the RSA's contingent liabilities associated with Government guarantees.

The LHWC is a bi-national commission established in terms of the Treaty and is responsible and accountable to
the two Governments for the successful implementation of the LHWP. The LHWC comprises of two delegations
representing the respective Governments and is administered by a Secretariat. The LHWC located in Maseru,
has approval, monitoring and advisory powers over the activities of the LHDA and TCTA. Decision making by the
LHWC is on a consensus basis and serves as the channel for government inputs on the LHWP. The running costs
of the LHWC are shared by the governments of the RSA and the GOL. Each party is liable for the costs of its own
delegation and all other costs are met by the parties on an equal basis. TCTA makes monthly funding contributions
to the LHWC for the RSA share of the operating costs.

2.3.10 Construction contracts
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TCTA construction contracts relate to infrastructure projects which TCTA is directed to implement by the Minister
of Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation from time to time. These infrastructure projects are accounted for in
terms of IFRS 15 and deal with the construction of a single asset such as a dam or pipeline, and in some instances a
number of assets which are closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design, technology and function
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2.3.11

or ultimate purpose or use. TCTA applies IFRS 15 Construction Contracts separately for each construction contract
as required in the directive from the Minister of Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation.

When the performance obligations of construction contracts are satisfied over time, TCTA recognises contract
revenue and contract costs associated with the construction contract as revenue and expenses respectively by
reference to the input method in IFRS 15.

Contract costs

Contract costs comprise:

a) costs that relate directly to the specific contract;

b) costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the contract; and
c) such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the customer under the terms of the contract.

Costs that are included as part of contract activity in general can be allocated to specific projects and include:
a) insurance;

b) costs of design and technical assistance that are not directly related to a specific project; and

c) construction overheads.

Such costs are allocated using appropriate methods that best reflect project utilisation and are applied consistently
to all costs having similar characteristics. This allocation is based on all costs being absorbed by the projects, in a
ratio that reflects a normal level of construction activity in each project.

Coststhatare specifically chargeable to DWS underthe terms of each project contractare included in the construction
costs. These costs may include general administrative costs during construction and development costs for which
reimbursement is specified in terms of the Implementation Agreement or any other relevant contract relating to
each project.

Contract revenue

Contract revenue comprises:

a) the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract; and

b) variations in contract work, and claims:
i) to the extent that is probable that they will result in revenue; and
ii.) they are capable of being reliably measured.

The input method of recognizing revenue is determined by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date bear to the estimated total contract cost. TCTA will recognise revenue using the input methods
as it closely reflects the amounts due as revenue as it recovers all costs incurred at cost. This is relevant for capital
expenditure costs and costs that relate to project management and project finance, and contributes to TCTA's
progress in satisfaction of its performance obligations.

Royalties

Royalties, as defined in the Treaty, are paid to the Government of Lesotho for the benefit of receiving South Africa’s
share of the yield from the Orange River through the Lesotho Highlands Water Project, a gravity scheme, rather than
through the least cost Orange-Vaal Transfer Scheme (OVTS), a pumping scheme wholly located within South Africa.

In terms of Article 12, Paragraph (10) of The Treaty between Governments of the Republic of South Africa(RSA) and
the Kingdom of Lesotho, royalties comprise of a fixed and a variable component.

The fixed component relating to the investment element of the net benefit of LHWP compared to the OVTS and
adjusted on a monthly basis in accordance with the Producer Price Index (PPI) published in the Republic of South
Africa. The compensation will be for fifty years and commenced from January 1995.

The variable componentis based on the volume of water delivered to South Africa and is made up of the net benefit
on being able to gravitate from LHWP rather than pumping from OVTS.

123



PART F: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

It comprises of:

o The difference in electricity costs. This component is adjusted on a monthly basis in accordance with the Produc-
er Price Index (PPI) and corrected on a yearly basis when the Eskom selling price of electricity becomes available
(usually in October of every year).

o The difference in operation and maintenance costs, which is also adjusted on a monthly basis in accordance
with the PPI.

Royalties are recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income in the period it is incurred.

2.3.12 Interest income

Interest income comprises interest receivable on loans, advances, trade receivables and income from financial
market investments. Interest is only recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to TCTA. The total interest income (calculated using the effective interest method) for financial
assets that are measured at amortised cost are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

2.3.13 Leasing

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases - lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the
leased assets at commencement of the lease or the present value of the minimum lease payments. A corresponding
finance lease obligation is included in the statement of financial position. Lease payments consists of finance costs
and the repayment of the lease obligation in such a manner as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance costs are directly recognised in surplus/deficit.

Operating leases - lessee

Leases of assets to TCTA under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor,
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged against surplus/ deficit on a
straight- line basis over the period of the lease.

2.3.14 Related party transactions
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TCTA has applied the government-related entities exemption in terms of IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures, and
has only disclosed significant transactions with entities controlled by the Government of South Africa in note 24.
Management considered the closeness of the related party relationship in determining the information to be
disclosed.

Other factors relevant in determining the significance of transactions which should be disclosed include:
significant in amount

carried out on a non-market terms;

outside normal day-to-day business operations;

disclosed to regulatory or supervisory authorities; or

reported to Executive Committee (Exco) and the Board of Directors.
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2.3.15 Fruitless and wasteful and irregular expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is defined as expenditure which was made in vain and could have been avoided
had reasonable care been exercised.

Irregular expenditure means expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that
is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including the PFMA, or any regulations made
in terms of that Act.

Both fruitless and wasteful expenditure and irregular expenditure are recognised as expenditure in the aggregated
statement of comprehensive income.

2.3.16 Impairment of assets

The entity assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also:

J tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment
annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed dur-
ing the annual period and at the same time every period.

J tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment deficit.

An impairment deficit of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised
immediately in surplus or deficit. Any impairment deficit of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment deficit recognised in
prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment deficit
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment deficit been recognised
for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment deficit of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other
than goodwill is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment deficit of a revalued
asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.3.17 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying ec